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SAIC 2006 Annual Report

SAIC - From Science to Solutions ™

SAIC 15 a leading systems, solutions and technical services company. We solve our customers’ mission-critical problems
with innovative applications of technology and expertise. In medical labs researching cancer cures, in the desert testing
next-generation robotics, in the ocean deploying tsunami warning systems, SAIC people and technologies are there.
In crime labs investigating new evidence, in Iraq helping protect and support our men and women in uniform,
SAIC s there.

SAIC has a reputation for exceeding customer expectations. Qur people are empowered to deliver outstanding value
and productivity, and to go the extra mile for our customers.

SAIC is a platform-independent provider of scientific, engineering and systems integration services. We draw on a
wealth of technology and integration options to better serve our customers.

SAIC is committed to recruiting, retaining and developing a diverse team of talented professionals. For us, success
depends on bringing people together to solve some of the toughest problems facing our nation and the world.

We do all this with the constant and deliberate commitment to ethical performance and integrity that has marked
SAIC since its founding,

ON THE COVER:

Across land, sea and space, we are there. Our technical professionals deploy
with military forces to develop and test new systems and hardware. (Left) SAIC
professional Reginald Howze provides critical technical support for weapons
demilitarization.

We develop new technologies for space defense and space intelligence. (Center)
SAIC Mechanical Designer Jimmy Wong helps develop a high-resolution earth-
observing system for a micro-satellite.

(Right) Program Manager Elizabeth Burch (top) and Software Engineer Stephanie
Banaag are helping the next generation of military forces respond to current and
emerging threats via new military training technologies.
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Message to
Stockholders

CEOC Ken Dahlberg

Fiscal Year 2006 was a productive and exciting
year, but it was also a challenging one. I'm proud
to report that our company and our employees
continued to deliver strong performance to our

customers and solid value to our shareholders.
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Our Performance in FY2008

Dedication and tremendous effort from our people —in
the face of difficult challenges — helps explain why SAIC
was able to deliver solid financial performance in a year
that was anything but business as usual. The U.S. gov-
ernment — our largest customer responsible for 89% of
our revenues — was confronted with huge, unexpected
operational requirements after Hurricanes Katrina and
Rira as well as large ongoing costs to support the war on
terrorism. Many government customers — and the SAIC
organizations that supported them — faced markedly
altered programs, budgets and missions.

The dedication and heroism of our employees in the
hurricane-devastated areas deserves special mention. It is
this type of commitment and capability that makes SAIC
a truly special organization.

Even with all of these events, our revenues grew 8%
to reach $7.8 billion. Net income jumped 127% to $927
million. This net income figure includes $582 million of
income from discontinued operations, driven primarily
by a gain from the sale of our former Telcordia Tech-
nologies subsidiary in March 2005. Considering only
continuing operations, net income and diluted earnings
per share rose 27% and 32%, respectively, compared to
FY2005.

We continued to be faced with challenges on our
contract with the Greek government to provide security
infrastructure for the Athens 2004 Summer Olympics.
We are working diligently to have an outcome that is
mutually satisfactory to our company and customer.

Our focus on improving our competitiveness con-
tinued this fiscal year with initiatives to streamline more
of our operations, improve 1T resources, and upgrade
training programs.We also invested more in research and
development and in developing our people.

Cash flow from operations was strong, helping grow
the balance sheet to $2.7 billion in cash and marketable
securities. We continue to look for ways to deploy cash
that generates maximum shareholder value.

Qur Strategic Thrusts Should Drive
Our Growth
Our strategic focus in our intelligence business area has
yielded outstanding revenue growth. We also made two
important acquisitions to strengthen our intelligence
capabilities: Object Sciences Corporation in FY2006 and
Presearch Inc. in FY2005.

In the chemical-biological defense area, we added

CENTERS, which Washington Rchnolog); cgted r} 47
of “Top 10 Deals” for 2005. b

In the area of logistics transformation, we’re well

positioned to continue delivering innovative solutions to
DoD. And we've seen a resurgence in our transportation
business as government agencies look for ways to make
the transportation infrastructure more resilient in the face
of terrorist attacks or natural disasters.

We also plan to step up and deliver more solutions to
the warfighter. We responded to one of the Bush admin-
istration’s top defense priorities — defeating and defend-
ing against improvised explosive devices (IEDs) — with
new technology for a multipurpose troop transport.

Biending Public and Private Ownership
While we remain committed to completing an initial
public offering, we also remain committed to maintain-
ing significant employee ownership. We believe employee
ownership continues to offer a strong value proposition,
helping us recruit and retain top talent, and motivating
our employees’ best efforts for our customers and our
shareholders.

Heading into the Future

Having a strong staff of highly qualified people is
essential to capture and execute new opportunities.
Recruiting and retaining excellent personnel has always
been a top priority for SAIC. But as important, we
continue to take steps to strengthen our management
team and improve our operating efficiency.

This is an exciting time at SAIC. Going forward, we
have every reason to be optimistic about our future. We
earned this optimism by our strong performance — not
just last year, but throughout our 37-year history.

Our employees are passionate about our mission.
Working together, we are determined to achieve our
company’s vision to “‘be the leading systems, solutions,
and technical services company, solving our customers’
most important business and mission-critical problems
through innovative applications of technology and
domain knowledge.”

Kons DA/%

Ken Dahlberg
CEOQO and Chairman of the Board




SAIC 2006 Annual

Report

Financial Highlights
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From Science to Solutions™

SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
10260 Campus Point Drive
San Diego, California 92121

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held July 14, 2006

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Science Applications
International Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), will be held at the SAIC Conference Center,
1710 SAIC Drive, McLean, Virginia, on Friday, July 14, 2006, at 11:00 A.M. (local time). For the convenience
of our stockholders, the meeting will be videocast to Conference Room 2040 in Building D of our offices at
10260 Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California and to other locations and will be webcast on our website
(www.saic.com) and our internal website, ISSAIC. The Annual Meeting is being held for the following purposes:

1. To elect four Class I Directors;

2. To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2007;

3. To consider and vote upon a stockholder proposal regarding majority voting for the
election of Directors; and
4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any

adjournments, postponements or continuations thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on May 17, 2006, are entitled to notice of and to vote
at the Annual Meeting and at any and all adjournments, postponements or continuations thereof. A list of
stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting will be available for inspection at 10010 Campus Point Drive, San
Diego, California, and 1710 SAIC Drive, McLean, Virginia for at least 10 days prior to the meeting and will also
be available for inspection at the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Douglas E. Scott

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

San Diego, California
June 7, 2006

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. However, to ensure that your shares are
represented at the meeting, please submit your proxy or veting instructions (1) over the Internet, (2) by
telephone or (3) by mail. For specific instructions, please refer to the questions and answers beginning on
the first page of this Proxy Statement or the instructions on the proxy and voting instruction card.
Submitting a proxy or voting instructions will not prevent you from attending the Annual Meeting and
voting in person, if you so desire, but will help the Company secure a quorum and reduce the expense of
additional proxy solicitation.

.
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From Science to Solutionsm™

SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
10260 Campus Point Drive
San Diego, California 92121

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held July 14, 2006

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to the stockholders of Science Applications International
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the solicitation of proxies by its Board
of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company (the “Annual Meeting”) to be held at
the SAIC Conference Center, 1710 SAIC Drive, McLean, Virginia, on Friday, July 14, 2006, at 11:00 A.M.
(local time) and at any and all adjournments, postponements or continuations thereof. This Proxy Statement and
the proxy and voting instruction card are first being mailed or delivered to the stockholders of the Company on or
about June 7, 2006.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING
What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting?

At the Annual Meeting, the stockholders of the Company are being asked to consider and vote upon:

1. The election of four Class I Directors;

2. The ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2007;

3. A stockholder proposal regarding majority voting for the election of Directors; and

4, Such other business as may propérly come before the meeting or any adjournments,

postponements or continuations thereof.
When and where will the Annual Meeting be held?

The Annual Meeting will be held at the SAIC Conference Center, 1710 SAIC Drive, McLean, Virginia,
on Friday, July 14, 2006, at 11:00 A.M. (local time).

Who can attend the Annual Meeting?
All stockholders or their duly appointed proxies may attend the meeting.
INFORMATION ABOUT VOTING RIGHTS AND SOLICITATION OF PROXIES
Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share
(the “Class A common stock™), and/or Class B common stock, par value $0.05 per share (the “Class B common

9
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stock™), as of the close of business on May 17, 2006 (the “Record Date™), are entitled to notice of and to vote at
the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, the Company had 169,163,606 shares of Class A common stock and
206,147 shares of Class B common stock outstanding. The Company has no other class of capital stock
outstanding. The Class A common stock and the Class B common stock are collectively referred to herein as the
“Common Stock™ and vote together as a single class on all matters.

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence at the meeting, either in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the total voting
power of the shares of Common Stock outstanding on the Record Date is necessary to constitute a quorum and to
conduct business at the Annual Meeting. Although abstentions may be specified on all proposals (other than the
election of Directors), abstentions will only be counted as present for purposes of determining the presence of a
quorum.

How many votes am I entitled to?

Each holder of Class A common stock will be entitled to one vote per share and each holder of Class B
common stock will be entitled to 20 votes per share, in person or by proxy, for each share of Common Stock held
in such stockholder’s name as of the Record Date on any matter submitted to a vote of stockholders at the Annual
Meeting. However, in the election of Directors, all shares are entitled to be voted cumulatively. Accordingly, in
voting for Directors: (i) each share of Class A common stock is entitled to as many votes as there are Directors to
be elected; (ii) each share of Class B common stock is entitled to 20 times as many votes as there are Directors to
be elected and (iii) each stockholder may cast all of such votes for a single nominee or distribute them among any
two or more nominees as such stockholder chooses. To apportion your votes among two or more nominees other
than on a pro rata basis, you must either submit your proxy or voting instructions using a proxy and voting
instruction card or by ballot in person at the Annual Meeting, stating explicitly how you intend to apportion your
votes. You may not submit your proxy or voting instructions over the Internet or by telephone if you wish to
distribute your votes unevenly among two or more nominees. Unless otherwise directed, shares represented by
properly executed proxies will be voted at the discretion of the proxy holders so as to elect the maximum number
of the Board of Directors’ nominees that may be elected by cumulative voting.

How do I vote my shares?

Shares of Common Stock represented by properly executed proxies received in time for voting at the
Annual Meeting will, unless such proxies have previously been revoked, be voted in accordance with the
instructions indicated thereon. In the absence of specific instructions, the shares represented by properly executed
proxies will be voted FOR the election of Directors so as to elect the maximum number of the Board of
Directors’ nominees that may be elected by cumulative voting, FOR the ratification of the appointment of
Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending January 31, 2007, and AGAINST the stockholder proposal regarding majority voting for the election of
Directors. No business other than that set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting is expected to
come before the Annual Meeting; however, should any other matter requiring a vote of stockholders properly
come before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the proxy holders to vote such shares in accordance with
their best judgment on such matter.

There are four different ways to vote your shares:

By Interner: You may submit a proxy or voting instructions over the Internet by following the
instructions at www.proxyvote.com.

By Telephone: You may submit a proxy or voting instructions by calling 1-800-690-6903 and following
the instructions.
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By Mail: If you received your proxy materials via the U.S. mail, you may complete, sign and return the
accompanying proxy and voting instruction card in the postage-paid envelope provided.

In Person: If you are a stockholder as of the Record Date and attend the meeting at the SAIC
Conference Center in McLean, Virginia, you may vote in person at the meeting.

Submitting a proxy will not prevent a stockholder from attending the Annual Meeting and voting in
person. Any proxy may be revoked at any time prior to the exercise thereof by delivering in a timely manner a
written revocation or a new proxy bearing a later date to the Corporate Secretary of the Company as described
below, or by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. The mailing address of the Corporate Secretary
is 10260 Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California 92121. Attendance at the Annual Meeting will not,
however, in and of itself constitute a revocation of a proxy.

How are the shares held by the Retirement Plans voted?

Each participant in the SAIC Retirement Plan of the Company (the “SAIC Plan”), the Telcordia
Technologies 401(k) Savings Plan of Telcordia Technologies, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
prior to its sale on March 15, 2005 (the “Telcordia Plan”), and the AMSEC Employees 401(k) Profit Sharing
Plan of AMSEC LLC, a joint venture of which the Company owns 55% (the “AMSEC Plan”) (collectively, the
“Retirement Plans”) has the right to instruct Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, as trustee of the Retirement
Plans (the “Trustee™), on a confidential basis as to how to vote his or her proportionate interests in all allocated
shares of Common Stock held in the Retirement Plans. The Trustee will vote all allocated shares held in the
Retirement Plans as to which no voting instructions are received, together with all unallocated shares held in the
Retirement Plans, in the same proportion, on a plan-by-plan basis, as the allocated shares for which voting
instructions have been received. The Trustee’s duties with respect to voting the Common Stock in the Retirement
Plans are governed by the fiduciary provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended (“ERISA”). The fiduciary provisions of ERISA may require, in certain limited circumstances, that the
Trustee override the votes of participants with respect to the Common Stock held by the Trustee and to
determine, in the Trustee’s best judgment, how to vote the shares.

How are the shares held by the Stock Plans voted?

Under the terms of the Company’s Stock Compensation Plan, Management Stock Compensation Plan and
Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan (collectively, the “Stock Plans”), Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovia™), as
trustee of the Stock Plans, has the power to vote the shares of Class A common stock held by Wachovia in the
Stock Plans. Wachovia will vote all such shares of Class A common stock in the same proportion that the other
stockholders of the Company vote their shares of Common Stock.

Who is soliciting these proxies?

The Board of Directors is soliciting these proxies and the cost of the solicitation will be borne by the
Company, including the charges and expenses of persons holding shares in their name as nominee incurred in
connection with forwarding proxy materials to the beneficial owners of such shares. In addition to the use of the
mail, proxies may be solicited by officers, Directors and regular employees of the Company in person, by
telephone or by email. Such individuals will not be additionally compensated for such solicitation but may be
reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with such solicitation.
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PROPOSAL I—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation provides for a “classified” Board of Directors consisting of
three classes which shall be as equal in number as possible. The number of Directors is currently fixed at 12
Directors, with four Directors in each of Class I, IT and III.

At the Annual Meeting, four Class I Directors are to be elected to serve three-year terms ending in 2009
or until their successors are elected and qualified or their earlier retirement, death, resignation or removal or
disqualification from service as a Director pursuant to any current or future provision of the Bylaws. Currently,
W.H. Demisch, J.A. Drummond, H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr. and C.B. Malone serve as Class I Directors. All such Class
I Directors will be standing for reelection with the exception of C.B. Malone. L.A. Simpson has been nominated
to stand for election as a Class I Director in Ms. Malone’s place. Mr. Simpson previously served as a Director of
the Company from July 1999 to February 2002. In accordance with the policy of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee, Mr. Simpson has agreed to resign from the Board in December 2008 when he reaches
age 72, which is the mandatory retirement age for independent Directors. In addition, J.H. Warner, Jr., a Class II
Director, is retiring as a Director immediately before the Annual Meeting as a result of reaching the mandatory
retirement age for employee Directors. Upon Mr. Warner’s resignation, there will be a vacancy on the Board.

All nominees have been nominated by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, all of the
nominees are, and will be, able and willing to serve. Each nominee has consented to be named in this Proxy
Statement and to serve if elected.

Unanimous Recommendation of the Board of Directors; Vote Required

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR each nominee. The four nominees
who receive the most votes will be elected as Class I Directors, and abstentions and withheld votes will generally
not have an effect on the outcome of this vote. The Board of Directors, however, has adopted a policy whereby
any nominee for Director in an uncontested election (i.e., an election in which the number of nominees does not
exceed the number of Directors to be elected) who receives a greater number of votes “withheld” from his or her
election than voted “for” such election will tender his or her resignation for consideration by the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. In such a circumstance, the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee will recommend to the Board of Directors the action to be taken with respect to such offer of
resignation, and the Board of Directors will promptly disclose its decision as to whether or not to accept or reject
the tendered resignation in a press release, Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Comimission or some other permissible manner.

Shares of Common Stock represented by properly executed, timely received and unrevoked proxies will
be voted in accordance with the instructions indicated thereon. In the absence of specific instructions, the shares
represented by properly executed proxies will be voted FOR the election of Directors so as to elect the maximum
number of the Board of Directors’ nominees that may be elected by cumulative voting. In the event that any of
the four nominees listed below should become unable to stand for election at the Annual Meeting, the proxy
holders intend to vote for such other person, if any, as may be designated by the Board of Directors, in the place
and stead of any nominee unable to serve.

Set forth below is a brief biography of each nominee for election as a Class 1 Director and of all other
members of the Board of Directors who will continue in office:

NOMINEES FOR ELECTION AS CLASS I DIRECTORS—TERM ENDING 2009

W.H. Demisch, age 61

Director Director since 1990
Mr. Demisch has been a principal of Demisch Associates LLC, a consulting firm, since 2003. He was a
Managing Director of Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, formerly Wasserstein Perella Securities, Inc., from
1998 to 2002. From 1993 to 1998, he was Managing Director of BT Alex. Brown, and from 1988 to 1993, he
was Managing Director of UBS Securities, Inc.
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J.A. Drummond, age 66

Director Director since 2003
Mr. Drummond was employed by BellSouth Corporation from 1962 until his retirement in December 2001. He
served as Vice Chairman of BellSouth Corporation from January 2000 until his retirement. He was President
and Chief Executive Officer of BellSouth Communications Group, a provider of traditional telephone
operations and products, from January 1998 until December 1999. He was President and Chief Executive
Officer of BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. from January 1995 until December 1997. Mr. Drummond is
also a member of the board of directors of Borg-Warner Automotive, AirTran Holdings, Inc. and Centillium
Communications, Inc.

H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr., age 51

Director Director since 1997
Mr. Kraemer has been an executive partner of Madison Dearborn Partners, LLC, a private equity investment
firm, since April 2003, and has served as a professor at the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern
University since January 2005. Mr. Kraemer previously served as the Chairman of Baxter International, Inc.,
or Baxter, a health-care products, systems and services company, from January 2000 unti! April 2004, as Chief
Executive Officer of Baxter from January 1999 until April 2004 and as President of Baxter from April 1997
until Aprit 2004. Mr. Kraemer also served as the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Baxter
from November 1993 to April 1997.

L.A. Simpson, age 69 Nominee for Director
Mr. Simpson has served as President and Chief Executive Officer, Capital Operations, of GEICO Corporation,
an auto insurer, since May 1993. Mr. Simpson previously served as Vice Chairman of the Board of GEICO
from 1985 to 1993. Mr. Simpson is also a member of the board of directors of VeriSign, Inc., Western Asset
Funds, Inc. and Western Asset Income Fund and serves as a trustee of Western Asset Premier Bond Fund.

CLASS II DIRECTORS—TERM ENDING 2007

K.C. Dahlberg, age 61

Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman of the Board and Director Director since 2003
Mr. Dahlberg has served as Chairman of the Board since July 2004 and Chief Executive Officer and President
since November 2003. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Dahlberg served as Corporate Executive Vice
President of General Dynamics Corp. from March 2001 to October 2003. Mr. Dahlberg served as President of
Raytheon International from February 2000 to March 2001, and from 1997 to 2000 he served as President and
Chief Operating Officer of Raytheon Systems Company. Mr. Dahlberg held various positions with Hughes
Aircraft from 1967 to 1997. Mr. Dahlberg is also on the board of directors of Teledyne Technologies,
Incorporated.

J.P. Walkush, age 54

Executive Vice President and Director Director since 1996
Mr. Walkush has served as Executive Vice President since July 2000 and a Director since April 1996.
Mr. Walkush has held various positions with the Company from 1976 to 1979 and since 1981, including
serving as a Sector Vice President from 1994 to 2000.

A.T. Young, age 68

Lead Director Director since 1995
Mr. Young retired from Lockheed Martin Corp. in 1995 after having served as an Executive Vice President
from March 1995 to July 1995. Prior to its merger with Lockheed Corporation, Mr. Young served as the
President and Chief Operating Officer of Martin Marietta Corp. from 1990 to 1995. Mr. Young is also on the
board of directors of the Goodrich Corporation.
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CLASS I DIRECTORS—TERM ENDING 2008

D.H. Foley, age 61

Executive Vice President and Director Director since 2002
Dr. Foley has served as Chief Engineering and Technology Officer since January 2005, Executive Vice
President since July 2000, and a Director since July 2002. Dr. Foley has held various positions with the
Company since 1992, including serving as Group President from February 2004 to January 2005 and a Sector
Vice President from 1992 to July 2000.

J.J. Hamre, age 55

Director Director since 2005
Dr. Hamre has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Center for Strategic & International
Studies, a public policy research institution, since 2000. Dr. Hamre served as U.S. Deputy Secretary of
Defense from 1997 to 2000 and Under Secretary of Defense (Comptroller) from 1993 to 1997. Dr. Hamre is
also a member of the board of directors of ChoicePoint, Inc., ITT Industries, Inc., and MITRE Corporation.

A.K. Jones, age 64

Director Director since 1998
Dr. Jones is the Quarles Professor of Engineering at the University of Virginia, where she has taught since
1989. From 1993 to 1997, Dr. Jones was on leave of absence from the University to serve as Director of
Defense Research and Engineering in the U.S. Department of Defense. Dr. Jones also served as a Director of
the Company from 1987 to 1993.

E.J. Sanderson, Jr., age 57

Director Director since 2002
Mr. Sanderson retired from Oracle Corporation in 2001 after having served as an Executive Vice President
since 1995. At Oracle, Mr. Sanderson was responsible for Oracle Product Industries, Oracle Consulting, and
the Latin American Division. Prior to that he was President of Unisys World-wide Services and partner at both
McKinsey & Company and Accenture (formerly Andersen Consulting).
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PROPOSAL II—RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent
registered public accounting firm to audit the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year
ending January 31, 2007. During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006 (“Fiscal 2006, Deloitte & Touche LLP
served as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and also provided certain tax and other
audit-related services as set forth in the section entitied “Audit Matters” below. Representatives of Deloitte &
Touche LLP will be at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate questions and will have the opportunity to
make a statement if they desire to do so.

Stockholders are not required to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm. However, the Company is submitting the appointment for
ratification as a matter for good corporate practice. If stockholders fail to ratify the appointment, the Audit
Committee will consider whether or not to retain Deloitte & Touche LLP. Even if the appointment is ratified, the
Audit Committee may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any
time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders.

Unanimous Recommendation of the Board of Directors; Vote Required

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of
Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal
year ending January 31, 2007. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of Class A
common stock and Class B common stock, voting together as a single class, present or represented and entitled to
vote at the Annual Meeting is required to approve the proposal. Shares of Common Stock represented by
properly executed, timely received and unrevoked proxies will be voted in accordance with the instructions
indicated thereon. A stockholder who submits a ballot or proxy is “present,” so an abstention will have the same
effect as a vote against the proposal. In the absence of specific instructions, properly executed, timely received
and unrevoked proxies will be voted FOR the proposal.
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PROPOSAL HI—STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL REGARDING MAJORITY VOTING FOR THE
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The following proposal was submitted by Christopher A. Smith, 3440 Hamlin Road, Lafayette, California
94549. Mr. Smith has requested that the Company include the proposal and supporting statement in its Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting, and if properly presented, this proposal will be voted on at the Annual
Meeting. As of the Record Date, Mr. Smith beneficially owned 21,965 shares of the Company’s Class A
common stock. The stockholder proposal and supporting statement is quoted verbatim in italics below. The
Company is not responsible for the contents of the proposal or supporting statement,

The Board of Directors does not support the adoption of the resolution proposed below and asks
stockholders to consider its response, which follows the stockholder proposal.

Stockholder Proposal

“RESOLVED: That SAIC stockholders recommend that the Board of Directors take the necessary steps to
require that a director be elected by a favorable majority of (a) votes cast for the nominee plus (b) votes withheld
from nominee, unless (x} the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected and (y) proxies
are solicited by or on behalf of a person other than SAIC. In conjunction with specifying a majority vote
threshold, the Board should address the status of incumbent directors who do not receive the required number of
votes and who would be considered “holdover” directors under the law of Delaware, where SAIC is
incorporated, and the procedure for filling any vacancy that arises as a result of an incumbent director’s failure
to obtain the required vote.

Supporting Statement

Who supports Majority Voting? Institutional Shareholder Services, The Council of Institutional Investors, The
CFA Institute’s Centre for Financial Market Integrity, The California Public Employees Retirement System
(CALPERS), and many other organizations.

Currently, SAIC uses a cumulative, or plurality voting standard for director elections, which means that the
nominee who receives the most votes will be elected. Nearly all corporate director elections, including at least
the last ten ar SAIC, are uncontested; in other words, there is only one candidate for each open seat (Harvard
Law School Professor Lucian Bebchuk has estimated that there were only about 80 contested elections at public
companies from 1996 to 2002).

In uncontested situations, a plurality voting standard ensures that a nominee will be elected even if holders of a
majority of shares voting exercise their right to withhold support from the nominee on the proxy card. Indeed,
under plurality voting, a SINGLE SHARE could elect a nominee. Because so few outside shareholders actually
attend the annual meeting, absent a proxy contest, directors who are nominated by the incumbent board will win
election no matter how unpopular or ineffective they are.

Section 216 of the Delaware General Corporation Law allows a corporation to deviate from the plurality default
standard by establishing a different standard in its charter or bylaws. This proposal, if implemented by the
Board, would do that by requiring directors to be elected by a majority of shares voting for a nominee or
withholding their votes from the nominees at a meeting. The plurality standard would be retained for contested
elections.

The proponent believes that a majority voting standard for director election would create a more robust system
of board accountability. Under the case law of Delaware, the power of stockholders over director election is
supposed to be a safety valve that justifies giving the board substantial direction to manage the corporation’s
business and affairs. Requiring a nominee to garner majority support among stockholders — thus giving
stockholders’ withheld votes real meaning — would help restore this safety valve.

The proponent urges you to mark your proxy FOR this resolution.”
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Board of Directors’ Statement in Opposition to the Stockholder Proposal

The stockholder proposal requests that the Company take the necessary steps to adopt a majority voting
standard for uncontested Director elections rather than plurality voting. Plurality voting is the default standard for
companies incorporated in Delaware, like the Company, and the voting approach used by the vast majority of
companies. Under plurality voting, nominees who receive the most affirmative votes are elected to serve as
Directors.

The Board of Directors has thoroughly examined and considered the arguments for and against the
stockholder proposal. After careful consideration, the Board of Directors recommends a vote against the proposal
for the following reasons:

»  The Current Plurality System Has Worked. The Company has a history of using the plurality system
to elect strong Boards. During the past ten years, every Director nominee has received the affirmative
vote of at least 96.0% of the voting power of the Common Stock voted with respect to his or her
election at the Company’s Annual Meetings. During that same time period, no more than 3.9% of the
voting power of the Common Stock was withheld from the election of any Director nominee at those
same Annual Meetings. Consequently, changing from the Company’s plurality voting requirement to
the proposed majority voting standard would not have had an effect on the outcome of the elections of
any Director nominated for election during the past ten years.

e The Current Plurality System is Compatible with Cumulative Voting. The plurality voting standard
is compatible with the Company’s cumulative voting provisions, which allow stockholders to
aggregate their votes for a single Director nominee. Together, plurality voting and cumulative voting
provide stockholders a meaningful ability to express their preferences in the election of Directors. The
ability to cumulate votes in Director elections is universally recognized as a strong measure
protecting stockholder rights. However, the majority voting standard advocated by the stockholder
proposal may raise difficult issues in the context of cumulative voting. While the rules governing
plurality voting are well understood, majority voting at companies that have cumulative voting
presents technical and legal issues for which there is limited precedent. These difficulties have led
influential advocacy groups and corporate governance organizations like the American Bar
Association Committee on Corporate Laws to indicate that majority voting is not necessary for
companies that allow cumulative voting.

«  The Stockholder’s Proposed Approach Could Create “Holdover” Directors. The Board of Directors
and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee have spent considerable time studying the
various issues implicated in changing from the traditional plurality standard in the election of
Directors to a majority standard. One significant issue raised is the status of “holdover” Directors
under Delaware corporate law. Specifically, in an uncontested election an incumbent nominee who
fails to receive the requisite majority vote under the standard recommended by the stockholder
proponent would nonetheless remain in office indefinitely as a “holdover” Director until his or her
successor was duly elected. The holdover Director would have no obligation to resign or offer to
resign, and the remaining Directors would not have the power to remove that Director from the
Board. The proponent recognizes the holdover issue in his supporting statement but does not provide
guidance regarding how to address the issue.

» The Board of Directors Has Adopted an Alternative that Responds to the Proponent’s Concerns.
The Board of Directors has adopted an approach that it believes responds to the proponent’s concemns
and is compatible with cumulative voting, while addressing the “holdover” problems discussed
above. Following its review of the proponent’s proposal, the Board of Directors amended its
Corporate Governance Guidelines, as previously described in more detail in this Proxy Statement
under “Proposal I — Election of Directors.” Pursuant to this new policy, which will be in effect for the
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election of the Class I Directors at the Annual Meeting, any Director nominee in an uncontested
election (i.e., an election in which the number of nominees does not exceed the number of Directors
to be elected) who receives a greater number of votes “withheld” from his or her election than votes
“for” such election must tender his or her resignation to the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee. In such a circumstance, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will
recommend to the Board of Directors the action to be taken with respect to such offer of resignation,
and the Board of Directors will promptly disclose its decision as to whether or not to accept or reject
the tendered resignation in a press release, Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or some other permissible manner. This approach is sometimes referred to as
a “modified plurality” voting policy. The Board of Directors believes that this approach is effective in
giving stockholders a meaningful role in the election of Directors and in removing a Director opposed
by stockholders, while addressing some of the procedural problems and concerns detailed above.
Furthermore, the Company’s adoption of this kind of resignation policy is consistent with actions
taken by many other large public companies, including peer companies like General Dynamics and
Raytheon and others like Hewlett-Packard, General Electric and Microsoft.

Given the legal uncertainties and practical implications of adopting the proposed majority voting
standard, the Board believes that its “modified plurality” approach detailed above represents the best alternative
currently available to demonstrate accountability to stockholders. The Board does not believe it is in the best
interests of the Company to make additional changes to its process of electing Directors at this time and
recommends against adoption of the stockholder proposal. The Board of Directors, however, will continue to
assess the effects of a majority voting standard in the context of the current and emerging best corporate
governance practices for the Company and its stockholders. '

Unanimous Recommendation of the Board of Directors; Vote Required

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote AGAINST the stockholder proposal
regarding majority voting for the election of Directors. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of
the voting power of Class A common stock and Class B common stock, voting together as a single class, present
or represented and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to approve the stockholder proposal. Shares
of Common Stock represented by properly executed, timely received and unrevoked proxies will be voted in
accordance with the instructions indicated thereon. A stockholder who submits a ballot or proxy is “present,” so
an abstention will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal. In the absence of specific instructions,
properly executed, timely received and unrevoked proxies will be voted AGAINST the stockholder proposal.

18




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors Meetings and Committees

During Fiscal 2006, the Board of Directors held 15 meetings of the entire Board and one meeting of only
the independent Directors. Average attendance at such meetings of the Board of Directors was 91%. During
Fiscal 2006, ali incumbent Directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the meetings of the Board of
Directors and committees of the Board of Directors, other than J.J. Hamre who attended 71% of such meetings.
In addition, all Directors other than J.J. Hamre and C.B. Malone attended the 2005 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. It is the Company’s policy that all Directors attend the Company’s annual meetings.

The Board of Directors has the following principal standing committees: an Audit Committee, a
Compensation Committee, an Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee, a Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee and a Stock Policy Committee. The charters of these committees are available at the
Company’s website at www.saic.com/corporategovernance/.

Audit Committee

The functions of the Audit Committee are described below under the heading “Audit Committee Report”
and the Audit Committee’s charter is attached to this Proxy Statement as Annex I. The Audit Committee held 15
meetings during Fiscal 2006. The Audit Committee is comprised of five independent Directors as defined by the
current listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) and the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines. The Board of Directors has determined that W.H. Demisch, J.A. Drummond,
H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr. and C.B. Malone qualify as Audit Committee financial experts as defined by the rules under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The backgrounds and experience of the Audit Committee
financial experts are set forth above in “Proposal I — Election of Directors.” The current members of the Audit
Committee are C.B. Malone (Chairperson), W.H. Demisch, J.A. Drummond, A.K. Jones and H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee’s responsibilities include: (i) determining the compensation of the Chief
Executive Officer and reviewing and approving the compensation of the other executive officers named pursuant
to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; (ii) exercising all rights, authority and functions under all
of the Company’s stock, retirement and other compensation plans; (iii) approving and making recommendations
to the Board regarding non-employee Director compensation; (iv) preparing an annual report on executive
compensation for inclusion in the Company’s Proxy Statement or Annual Report on Form 10-K, in accordance
with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission; and (v) providing guidance and
monitoring the formulation and implementation of human resource management. The Compensation Committee
held 13 meetings during Fiscal 2006. The Compensation Committee is comprised of four independent Directors
as defined by the current listing standards of the NYSE and the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines.
The current members of the Compensation Committee are E.J. Sanderson, Jr. (Chairperson), W.H. Demisch,
A.K. Jones and HM.J. Kraemer, Jr.

Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee’s duties include: (i) reviewing and making
recommendations regarding the ethical responsibilities of the Company’s employees and consultants under the
Company’s administrative policies and procedures; (ii) reviewing and assessing the Company’s policies and
procedures addressing the resolution of conflicts of interest involving the Company, its employees, officers and
Directors and addressing any potential conflict of interest involving the Company and a Director or an executive
officer; (iii) reviewing and establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
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regarding violations of the Company’s policies, procedures and standards related to ethical conduct and legal
compliance; and (iv) reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s ethics, compliance and
training programs and related administrative policies. The Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee held
six meetings during Fiscal 2006. The current members of the Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee are
A K. Jones (Chairperson), J.A. Drummond, J.J. Hamre, C.B. Malone and J.H. Warner, Jr.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities include: (i) evaluating,
identifying and recommending nominees to the Board, including nominees proposed by stockholders;
(ii) reviewing and making recommendations regarding the composition and procedures of the Board; (iii) making
recommendations regarding the size, composition and charters of the committees of the Board; (iv) reviewing
and developing long-range plans for Chief Executive Officer and management succession; (v) developing and
recommending to the Board a set of corporate governance principles, including recommending to the Board an
independent director to serve as the Lead Director; and (vi) developing and overseeing an annual self-evaluation
process of the Board and its committees. A copy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s
charter is available at the Company’s website at www.saic.com/corporategovernance/.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held five meetings during Fiscal 2006. The
current members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are J.A. Drummond (Chairperson),
K.C. Dahlberg, C.B. Malone, J.H. Warner, Jr. and A.'T. Young. J.A. Drummond, C.B. Malone and A.T. Young
are independent Directors as defined by the current listing standards of the NYSE and the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines. Currently, A.T. Young serves as the Company’s Lead Director.

As indicated previously, the Board of Directors has delegated to the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee the responsibility for recommending nominees for membership on the Board. The Board
believes its membership should reflect a broad range of experience, knowledge and judgment beneficial to the
broad business diversity of the Company. The Company expects a high level of commitment from its Directors
and will review a candidate’s other commitments and service on other boards to ensure that the candidate has
sufficient time to devote to the Company. In recommending nominees for membership on the Board, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has been directed by the Board to observe the following
principles: (i) a majority of Directors must meet the independence criteria established by the Company; (ii) based
upon the desired Board size of 12 Directors, no more than five Directors may be employees of the Company;
(iii) only a full-time employee who serves as either the Chief Executive Officer or a direct report to the Chief
Executive Officer will be considered as a candidate for an employee Director position; and (iv) no Director
nominee may be a consultant to the Company. Further, the retirement age for independent Directors is age 72 and
the retirement age for employee Directors is age 65. It is the policy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee to nominate only candidates who will not attain the applicable retirement age during their term of
office or those who have agreed to resign from the Board upon their applicable birthday.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee utilizes a variety of methods for identifying and
evaluating nominees for Director. The Committee regularly assesses the Board’s current and projected strengths
and needs by, among other things, reviewing the Board’s current profile, its Director membership criteria as
stated in the Corporate Governance Guidelines and the Company’s current and future needs. To the extent that
vacancies are anticipated or otherwise arise, the Committee prepares a target candidate profile and develops an
initial list of Director candidates identified by the current members of the Board, business contacts, community
leaders and members of management. The Committee may also retain a professional search firm to assist it in
developing a list of qualified candidates, although the Committee has not utilized the services of such firms to
date. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee would also consider any stockholder
recommendations for Director nominees that are properly received in accordance with the Company’s Bylaws, as
discussed below, and applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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The Committee then screens and evaluates the resulting slate of Director candidates to identify those
individuals who best fit the target candidate profile and Board membership criteria and provides the Board of
Directors with its recommendations. The Board of Directors then considers the recommendations and votes on
whether to nominate the Director candidate for election by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting or to appoint
the Director candidate to fill a vacancy on the Board.

As indicated above, any stockholder may nominate a person for election as a Director of the Company by
complying with the procedures set forth in the Company’s Bylaws. Pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Company’s
Bylaws, in order for a stockholder to nominate a person for election as a Director, such stockholder must give
timely notice to the Corporate Secretary of the Company prior to the meeting at which Directors are to be
elected. To be timely, notice must be received by the Corporate Secretary not less than 50 days nor more than 75
days prior to the meeting (or if fewer than 65 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the meeting date is given
or made to stockholders, not later than the 15th day following the day on which the notice of the date of the
meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made). Such notice must contain certain information about the
nominee, including his or her name, age, business and residence addresses and principal occupation during the
past five years, the class and number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such nominee and such
other information as would be required to be included in a proxy statement soliciting proxies for the election of
the proposed nominee. The notice must also contain certain information about the stockholder proposing to
nominate that person. Pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Company’s Bylaws, the Company may also require any
proposed nominee to furnish other information reasonably required by the Company to determine the proposed
nominee’s eligibility to serve as a Director.

Stock Policy Committee

The Stock Policy Committee’s responsibilities include: (i) during intervals between the regularly
scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors, exercising all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors
with respect to establishing the Market Factor in the Company’s stock price formula and the fair market value
price of the Class A common stock; (ii) selecting an independent appraisal firm to review the value of the
Company’s stock; (iii) reviewing and recommending any changes to the formula adopted by the Board of
Directors for the purpose of determining the fair market value of the Company’s Class A and Class B common
stock; and (iv) reviewing and recommending any changes to the Company’s stock programs and in the function
of the Company’s broker dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc. The Stock Policy Committee held eight meetings during
Fiscal 2006. The current members of the Stock Policy Committee are J.P. Walkush (Chairperson), K.C.
Dahlberg, W.H. Demisch, D. H. Foley and A.T. Young.

Communications with the Board

Stockholders may contact Directors by writing to them either individually, the independent Directors as a
group, or the entire Board of Directors at the following address:

Science Applications International Corporation
Attention: Corporate Secretary

10260 Campus Point Drive, M/S F-3

San Diego, CA 92121

Communications sent to an individual Director will be forwarded directly to the individual Director.
Communications sent to the Board of Directors will be forwarded to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and
to the Lead Director. Communications sent to the independent Directors as a group will be forwarded to the Lead
Director on behalf of all independent Directors.
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EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth information regarding the annual and long-term compensation for services
to the Company for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, of those persons who were, at
January 31, 2006 (1) the Chief Executive Officer and (2) the other four most highly compensated executive
officers of the Company, all of whom are collectively referred to as the Company’s “Named Executive Officers.”
The following table sets forth the annual and long-term compensation earned by the Named Executive Officers
for the relevant fiscal year, whether or not paid in such fiscal year:

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation
Number of
Restricted  Securities
Name and Other Annual Stock Underlying All Other
Principal Position(s) Year Salary(1) Bonus(2) Compensation(3) Awards(4) Options Compensation(S)
K.C. Dahlberg ...... 2006 $1,000,000 $1,100,000 $10,250  $400,023 200,000 $15,482
Chairman, 2005 1,000,000 1,500,000 77,897(6) 299,989 260,000 —

Chief Executive 2004 250,000(7) 1,010,000(8) 229,459(9) 2,687,686 225,000 —
Officer and

President

DH.Foley ......... 2006 473,846 500,000 650 100,006 40,000 15,336
Chief Engineering 2005 457,692 484,994 300 110,012 65,000 9,052
and Technology 2004 446,923 415,018 —_ 109,998 70,000 13,445
Officer

JH. Warner, Jr. ..... 2006 475,962 450,000 5,575 100,006 25,000 14,598
Executive 2005 475,962 550,018 5,375 99,996 55,000 9,052
Vice President 2004 475,962 510,015 4,725 99,992 50,000 13,445

W.A. Roper,Jr. ..... 2006 475,962 400,000 350 100,006 40,000 14,691
Executive 2005 475,962 799,996 6,275 130,003 55,000 9,052
Vice President 2004 475,962 500,009 5,825 149,988 60,000 13,442

G.T. Singley ........ 2006 375,000 500,000 2,343 100,006 40,000 14,424
Group President 2005 315,000 400,003 2,594 65,002 45,000 9,052

2004 273,269 234,998 2,418 49,996 30,000 13,462

08 Includes amounts paid in lieu of unused comprehensive leave.

2) Amounts include the award of the following number of shares of Class A common stock with a market
value as of the date of grant (calculated by multiplying the stock price of the Class A common stock on
the date of grant by the number of shares awarded) for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, as
follows: (a) K.C. Dahlberg: 5,000 net shares (on an after tax basis) with a market value of $219,600 based
on an original bonus amount of $357,354, 10,000 shares with a market value of $405,500 and O shares;
(b) D.H. Foley: 1,701 net shares (on an after tax basis) with a market value of $74,750 based on an
original bonus amount of $100,000, 3,699 shares with a market value of $149,994 and 3,834 shares
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with a market value of $140,018; (c) J.H. Warner, Jr.: 1,113 net shares (on an after tax basis) with a
market value of $48,897 based on an original bonus amount of $50,000, 1,850 shares with a market value
of $75,018 and 2,191 shares with a market value of $80,015; (d) W.A. Roper, Jr.: 1,170 net shares (on an
after tax basis) with a market value of $51,400 based on an original bonus amount of $80,000, 2,466
shares with a market value of $99,996 and 1,917 shares with a market value of $70,009; and (¢) G.T.
Singley: 1,543 net shares (on an after tax basis) with a market value of $67,800 based on an original
bonus amount of $100,000, 3,206 shares with a market value of $130,003, 3,012 shares with a market
value of $109,998.

3) Represents amounts paid or reimbursed by the Company on behalf of the Named Executive Officers for
athletic, airline and country club memberships, financial planning and tax preparation services and
relocation expenses. :

(49  Amounts reported represent the market value on the date of grant (calculated by multiplying the stock
price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant by the number of shares awarded), without giving
effect to the diminution in value attributable to the restrictions on such stock. Restricted stock vests as to
20%, 20%, 20% and 40% of the underlying shares on the first, second, third and fourth year anniversaries
of the date of grant, respectively. See “Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock and Options for Retirees” for
rights to continued vesting after retirement for certain holders. The amount reported represents the
following number of restricted shares of Class A common stock awarded for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively: (a) K.C. Dahlberg: 9,108 shares, 7,398 shares and 84,545 shares; (b) D.H. Foley:
2,277 shares, 2,713 shares and 3,012 shares; (¢) JJH. Warner, Jr.: 2,277 shares, 2,466 shares and
2,738 shares; (d) W.A. Roper, Jr.: 2,277 shares, 3,206 shares and 4,107 shares; and (e) G.T. Singley:
2,277 shares, 1,603 shares and 1,369 shares. As of January 31, 2006, the aggregate restricted stock
holdings (other than restricted stock which has been deferred into the Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan)
for the Named Executive Officers were as follows: (a) K.C. Dahlberg: 0 shares; (b) D.H. Foley:
3,313 shares with a market value as of such date of $145,507; (¢) J.H. Warner, Jr.: 1,366 shares with a
market value as of such date of $59,995; (d) W.A. Roper, Jr.: 0 shares; and (¢) G.T. Singley: 2,449 shares
with a market value of $107,560. Dividends are payable on such restricted stock if and when declared.

5) Represents amounts contributed or accrued by the Company for the Named Executive Officers under the
Company’s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan, Employee Stock Retirement Plan and SAIC Retirement Plan.

(6) Includes $67,897 for country club dues.

@) Mr. Dahlberg joined the Company as Chief Executive Officer in November 2003. Accordingly,
compensation for fiscal year 2004 is for a partial year.

) Includes $660,000 paid as a cash sign-on bonus.

® Represents the reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with the relocation of K.C. Dahlberg
and his family to the Company’s principal place of business.
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Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

The following table se.ts forth information regarding grants of options to purchase shares of Class A
common stock pursuant to the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan made during Fiscal 2006 to the Named
Executive Officers:

Potential Realizable
Value at Assumed

Number of Annual Rates of Stock

Securities % of Total Price Appreciation

Underlying Options Granted for Option Term(3)

Options to Employees in Exercise Price Expiration

Name Granted(1) Fiscal 2006 (Per Share)(2) Date 5% 10%
K.C.Dahlberg ...  200,000(4) 3.0% $40.55 3/31/10  $2,240,643 $4,951,236
DH.Foley ...... 65,000(4) 1.0 40.55 3/31/10 728,209 1,609,152
J.H. Warner, Jr. .. 55,000(4) C* 40.55 3/31/10 616,177 1,361,590
W.A. Roper, Jr. .. 55,000(4) * 40.55 3/31/10 616,177 1,361,590
G.T. Singley ..... 45,000(4) * 40.55 3/31/10 504,145 1,114,028
* Less than 1% of the total options granted to employees in Fiscal 2006.

1) All such options vest as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% of the underlying shares on the first, second, third
and fourth year anniversaries of the date of grant, respectively. See “Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock
and Options for Retirees” for rights to continued vesting after retirement for certain holders.

)] The exercise price is equal to the stock price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant.

(3)  The potential realizable value is based on an assumption that the stock price of the Class A common stock
will appreciate at the annual rate shown (compounded annually) from the date of grant until the end of the
five-year option term. These values are calculated based on the regulations promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission and should not be viewed in any way as an estimate or forecast of the future
performance of the Company’s Common Stock.

(4)  Although the listed grants of options were made during Fiscal 2006, such grants relate to service for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2005.

Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Values

The following table sets forth information regarding the exercise of options during Fiscal 2006 and
unexercised options to purchase Class A common stock granted during Fiscal 2006 and prior years under the
Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan to the Named Executive Officers and held by them at January 31, 2006:

Number of Securities Value of Unexercised
Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money Options
Options at January 31, 2006  at January 31, 2006(1)

Shares Acquired Value

Name on Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
K.C. Dahlberg . .. .. — — 102,000 383,000 $1,175,580 $2,647,070
DH.Foley........ 50,000 $650,100 85,000 190,000 995,570 1,560,030
JH. Wamer, Jr. .. .. 55,000 719,950 64,000 146,000 744,630 1,158,270
W.A. Roper, Jr. .. .. 120,000 1,755,600 216,000 184,000 2,711,580 1,624,870
G.T. Singley ...... 17,000 222,530 22,200 84,800 248,214 541,726

(1) Based on the stock price of the Company’s Class A common stock as of such date less the exercise price
of such options.
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Employment and Severance Agreements

SAIC and Mr. Dahlberg are parties to two letter agreements, each dated October 3, 2003 (the “Dahlberg
Letter Agreements”) pursuant to which Mr. Dahlberg serves as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant
to the Dahlberg Letter Agreements, Mr. Dahlberg received or will receive: (1) a base salary of $1,000,000 per
year, (2) a cash sign-on bonus of $660,000, (3) an award of 84,545 shares of vesting Class A common stock,
(4) an award of a vesting option to purchase up to 225,000 shares of Class A common stock, (5) reimbursement
of expenses incurred in connection with the relocation of Mr. Dahlberg and his family to the Company’s
principal place of business, (6) a gross up to Mr. Dahlberg’s salary to cover the federal, state and local income
and employment tax liability on the relocation benefits, (7) a country club membership, (8) first class seating for
business travel, (9) up to $10,000 for financial planning and/or tax preparation within the first two years of
employment and (10) disability insurance. The Dahlberg Letter Agreements provide that in the event
Mr. Dahlberg’s employment is involuntarily terminated before November 2006, for reasons other than cause, the
Company would continue Mr. Dahlberg’s base salary, target short-term bonus and benefits until November 2006.
In order to receive these severance benefits, Mr. Dahlberg would be required to sign a release and a
non-compete/non-solicitation agreement. At the end of the severance period, Mr. Dahlberg would be provided
with at least two years of non-paid consulting status during which his unvested options and stock would continue
to vest. For purposes of the Dahlberg Letter Agreements, “cause” is defined as (1) a willful failure to
substantially perform his duties, (2) gross misconduct or (3) conviction of a felony.

The Company has entered into severance agreements with each of its executive officers, including each of
the Named Executive Officers with the exception of Dr. Warner who is retiring as an executive officer. The
severance agreements provide that if the officer is involuntarily terminated without cause or resigns for good
reason within a 24 month period following a change in control, the officer will be paid all accrued salary and a
pro rata bonus for the year of termination and a single lump sum equal to three times the officer’s then current
salary and bonus amount. The officer will also receive such life insurance, disability, medical, dental,
hospitalization, financial counseling and tax consulting benefits as are provided to other similarly situated
executives who continue in the Company’s employ for the 36 months following termination and up to 12 months
of outplacement counseling. Vesting will be accelerated as provided in the Company’s various equity incentive
and deferral plans. The officer is not entitled to receive a “gross up” payment to account for any excise tax that
might be payable under the Internal Revenue Code, although he or she may elect to receive the full value of the
severance payments and pay the excise tax or have the severance payments reduced to the extent necessary to
avoid an excise tax.

Other than these agreements, the Company has not entered into any employment or severance agreements
with its executive officers.

Director Compensation

All non-employee Directors are paid an annual retainer of $25,000 and the Chair of a committee of the
Board is paid an additional annual retainer of $10,000, except for the Chair of the Audit Committee who is paid
an additional annual retainer of $15,000. The Lead Director is also paid an additionat annual retainer of $10,000.
Non-employee Directors also receive $1,500 for each meeting of the Board of Directors and $2,000 for each
meeting of a committee on which they serve and are reimbursed for expenses incurred while attending meetings
or otherwise performing services as a Director of the Company. The Directors are eligible to defer their fees into
the Company’s Keystaff Deferral Plan and Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan. In addition, a stock bonus of
1,000 shares of Class A common stock will be offered to independent Director nominees as an inducement to
join the Board.

Non-employee Directors are eligible to receive stock options under the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan. For services rendered as a Director during Fiscal 2006, W.H. Demisch, J.A. Drummond, J.J. Hamre, A K.
Jones, HM.J. Kraemer, Jr., C.B. Malone, E.J. Sanderson, Jr. and A.T. Young each received options to purchase
11,000 shares of Class A common stock at $43.92 per share (which was the stock price on the date of grant). All
such options vest as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% of the shares of Class A common stock underlying such options
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on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the date of grant, respectively. See “Continued Vesting on
Vesting Stock and Options for Retirees” for rights to continued vesting after retirement for certain holders.

~ See “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” for information with respect to transactions
between the Company and certain persons related to or entities in which certain Directors of the Company may
be deemed to have an interest.

Continued Vesting on Vesting Stock and Options for Retirees

Certain qualifying retirees may continue holding and vesting in their vesting stock (including units of
vesting stock held in the Key Executive Stock Deferral Plan) and stock options after retirement, if they have held
such securities for at least 12 months prior to retirement. Qualifying retirement is defined as terminating service
with the Company (i) after age 592 with at least ten years of service with the Company; (ii) after age 59 2 when
age at termination plus years of service with the Company equals at least 70; or (iii) after reaching the applicable
mandatory retirement age regardless of their length of service with the Company for officers and Directors
subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Section 16 Officers
and Directors”). The Company has the right to terminate this continued vesting in certain circumstances. The
Company also has the right to repurchase shares held by retirees after their options are exercised and/or their
shares are fully vested. If a retiree is a participant in the Company’s Alumni Program (a program for eligible
retirees where the Company has no repurchase right on their shares during the first five years after termination,
but would have the right to repurchase the shares during the second five years on an established schedule with the
ability to accelerate the repurchase during the second five years), the Company has the right to repurchase shares
held by the retiree upon the termination of the retiree’s participation in the Alumni Program. This policy change
was implemented for all unvested stock and options awarded after July 1, 2004. However, for Section 16 Officers
and Directors retiring after reaching mandatory retirement age, this policy change applies to all unvested stock
and options held by them, regardiess of when the vesting stock and options were awarded.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Compensation Committee consists exclusively of non-employee, independent Directors, and is
responsible for establishing and administering the programs that govern the compensation and benefits for the
executive officers of the Company, including the executive officers named in this Proxy Statement.

Compensation Policy

The Company’s compensation policies, plans and programs seek to closely align the financial interest of
the Company’s employees, including executive officers, with the financial interest of its owners. Consistent with
this philosophy, the compensation policy of the Company, which is endorsed by the Compensation Committee, is
that the compensation of executive officers be related to and contingent upon the performance of the Company as
a whole, the performance of business units under their management and their individual contribution and
performance. In this way, the Company seeks to encourage continuing focus on increasing the Company’s
revenue, profitability and stockholder value, while at the same time motivating its executive officers to perform
to the fullest extent of their abilities.

Methodology

As members of the Compensation Committee, it is our responsibility to determine the compensation of
the Chief Executive Officer and to review and approve the compensation of the other executive officers named
pursuant to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These determinaticns are made in light of
individual, corporate and business unit performance, the performance of our competitors and other similar
businesses and relevant market compensation data. To assist the Compensation Committee in carrying out these
responsibilities, Pearl Meyer & Partners, an executive compensation consulting firm (“PM&P”), was retained by
the Compensation Committee to review the Company’s existing executive compensation programs, including the
compensation paid to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the four other highest paid executive officers
of the Company during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006 (“Fiscal 2006”) and to provide a competitive
assessment of the various components of such compensation.

We analyzed the Company’s compensation practices, guided by three key principles:

1. Performance-based: Compensation levels should be determined based on Company, business unit and
individual results compared to quantitative and qualitative performance priorities set at the beginning
of the year.

*  Operating cash flow, segment operating income after tax (SOIAT), eamings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA), revenue and contract awards are key
quantitative performance measures considered in making compensation decisions.

* Individual performance goals related to customers, employees and organizational initiatives for
group and business unit executives and functional goals for corporate executive management are
taken into consideration in the qualitative assessment of individual performance.

2. Stockholder-aligned: Equity should be awarded as a significant component of incentive compensation.
* Equity awards have historically comprised a significant portion of incentive compensation
awarded to the Chief Executive Officer and the other executive officers.
* The Company’s Stock Ownership Guidelines align executive officer and management interests
with those of stockholders by promoting increased stock ownership.

3. Fair: Compensation levels should be perceived as fair, both internally and externally.
« Compensation levels are compared to those of the Company’s peers.
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* Competitive pay levels are considered in the context of an evaluation of Company and business
unit results relative to the results of the Company’s peers.

* Executive compensation is compared to other compensation levels within the Company to
ensure that appropriate internal equitable relationships are achieved.

Components of Executive Compensation

Base Salary - The Company has continued to set the annual base salaries of its executive officers at
competitive levels and continues to cause a significant portion of an executive officer’s compensation to consist
of annual and longer-term incentive compensation which are variable and closely tied to corporate, business unit
and individual performance. For Fiscal 2006, more than half of the executive officers’ total compensation was
paid as incentive compensation. As a result, much of an executive officer’s total compensation was “at risk” and
dependent on performance during the prior fiscal year.

Incentive Compensation - An executive officer’s incentive compensation may consist of cash, fully
vested stock, vesting stock, options, stock units or a combination of these components. Generally, an annual
bonus is given after the end of the fiscal year based on individual, corporate and business unit performance for
such fiscal year and an executive officer’s respective responsibilities, strategic and operational goals and levels of
historic and anticipated performance. By awarding bonuses of vesting stock and vesting stock options, the
Company seeks to encourage individuals to remain with the Company and continue to focus on the long-term
technical and financial performance of the Company and on increasing stockholder value. Further, the exercise
price of all stock options granted is equal to the stock price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant.
Therefore, such options only have value to the extent that the stock price of the Company’s Class A common
stock increases during the term of the stock option.

Perquisites and Personal Benefits - The Company does not provide substantial perquisites and personal
benefits to its executive officers that are not available to other employees. We do not have programs for
providing perquisites and personal benefits to executive officers, such as company cars, permanent lodging or
defraying the cost of personal entertainment or family travel (except for a country club membership provided to
our Chief Executive Officer and two other executive officers and up to $14,500 for financial planning and/or tax
preparation services for executive officers). Our health care and other insurance programs are the same for all
eligible employees, including officers. Our loan programs, although modest in nature, are not available to
executive officers. The Company has, however, entered into certain severance agreements with its executive
officers that provide for the payment of salary and bonus and the continued provision of certain benefits if the
officer is involuntarily terminated without cause or resigns for good reason within a 24-month period following a
change in control.

Company Performance

In evaluating the performance and establishing the incentive compensation of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Company’s other executive officers, the Compensation Committee recognized that the Company
exceeded the performance objectives in two of the five key financial performance objectives and fell short in
three financial performance objectives. The Company achieved over 114% of its planned objectives in the areas
of operating cash flow and contract awards, 95% of its EBITDA objective, 99% of its revenue objective, and
93% of its SOIAT objective. In analyzing the Company’s performance, the Committee observed that
management had made significant progress against the Company’s non-financial -objectives, including
implementation of a company wide Talent Management Review in concert with management succession
planning, upgrading the Program Management training program and establishing additional leadership forums
designed to improve communications with employees. In addition, in Fiscal 2006, management completed four
acquisitions, and approximately five percentage points of the consolidated Fiscal 2006 growth was a result of
acquisitions completed in Fiscal 2006 and in prior years. Further, in Fiscal 2006, management also prepared the
Company to become SOX 404 compliant. The Committee also considered the Company’s losses on the Greek
Olympics contract and its significant impact on the Company’s financial results for the fiscal year.
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Chief Executive Officer Compensation

Mr. Dahlberg serves as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and receives an annual base salary of
$1,000,000 pursuant to an employment agreement. PM&P has concluded that Mr. Dahlberg’s base salary is
competitive with the market median in its compensation survey database for chief executive officers for
comparable companies of similar size.

Mr. Dahlberg received a short-term incentive bonus of $1,100,000 for Fiscal 2006 consisting of $742,646 in
cash and 5,000 net shares (on an after tax basis) of fully vested Class A common stock having a market value on the
date of grant of $219,600 based on an original bonus amount of $357,354. Mr. Dahlberg’s Fiscal 2006 short-term
incentive target was $1,250,000 as established by the Compensation Committee at its meeting in March 2005. Mr.
Dahlberg also received a long-term incentive bonus of 9,108 vesting shares of Class A common stock having a
market value on the date of grant of $400,023 and an option to purchase 200,000 shares at an exercise price of
$43.92 per share. The vesting stock bonus and options both vest at the rate of 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first,
second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

The Compensation Committee believes that Mr. Dahlberg’s incentive compensation was well warranted
based on the Company’s overall performance. During Fiscal 2006, Mr. Dahlberg demonstrated strong leadership,
high integrity and ethical behavior, established a well formulated strategic business plan and achieved overall
financial performance that, in the aggregate, met plan.

Executive Officer Compensation Review

PM&P has reviewed the compensation for each of the other four highest paid executive officers of the
Company during its last fiscal year and has reported to the Compensation Committee that, based on industry
survey data collected by PM&P, the compensation of these executive officers was within an acceptable range of
competitive market levels for individuals with comparable duties and responsibilities.

Deductibility of Compensation under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m)

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, generally limits the deductibility of
certain compensation in excess of $1 million paid in any one year to the chief executive officer and the other four
highest paid executive officers. The Compensation Committee will continue to monitor compensation programs
in light of Section 162(m); however, the Compensation Committee considers it importan: to retain the flexibility
to design compensation programs that are in the best long-term interests of the Company and its stockholders.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

The Company’s general philosophy is to encourage employees to have significant stockholdings in the
Company so that they have sufficient economic incentive to maximize the Company’s long-term performance
and stock value. Under the Company’s stock ownership guidelines for its officers, all officers are expected to
acquire and maintain stockholdings in the Company in amounts expressed as a multiple of base salary. The
guidelines provide for various window periods within which the stock ownership levels are to be achieved. These
guidelines establish a clear link between stock ownership, long-term strategic thinking and compensation
programs that are tied to corporate performance and the interests of the stockholders.

Conclusion

The Committee believes that the caliber and motivation of all our employees, and especially our
executive leadership, are essential to the Company’s performance. We also believe that the compensation
policies, plans and programs the Company has implemented have encouraged management to increase its focus
on the long-term financial performance of the Company and contributed to achieving the Company’s technical
and financial success. We will continue to evolve and administer the Company’s compensation programs in a
manner that we believe will be in the stockholders’ interests.

E.J. Sanderson, Jr. (Chair)
W.H. Demisch

A K. Jones

H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr.

March 30, 2006
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Stockholder Return Performance Presentation

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total return on
the Class A common stock against the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Stock
Index and the cumulative total return of the Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index for the five (5) fiscal
years ended January 31, 2006. The comparison of total return shows the change in year-end stock price,
assuming the immediate reinvestment of all dividends for each of the periods.

SAIC Stock Price Growth vs. S&P 500 and Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in its oversight of: (i) the integrity of
the Company’s financial statements, including the financial reporting process, system of internal control over
financial reporting and audit process; (ii) compliance by the Company with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iil) the registered public accountant’s qualifications and independence; (iv) the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function and registered public accountants; (v) financial reporting risk assessment and mitigation; and
(vi) the preparation of the report of the Audit Committee to be included in the Company’s annual proxy statement.
The Audit Committee’s job is one of oversight and it recognizes that the Company’s management is responsible for
the preparation and certification of the Company’s financial statements and that the registered public accountants
are responsible for auditing those financial statements. Additionally, the Audit Committee recognizes that financial
management, including the internal audit staff, and the registered public accountants, have more time, knowledge,
and detailed information on the Company than do Audit Committee members. Consequently, in carrying out its
oversight responsibilities, the Audit Committee is not providing any expert or special assurance as to the
Company’s financial statements or any professional certification as to the registered public accountant’s work.

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee have been set forth in a written charter since 1975.
As set forth in more detail in the Audit Committee Charter which is attached to this Proxy Statement as Annex I,
the Audit Committee’s primary responsibilities fall into the following categories.

» Internal Controls and Disclosure Controls — Review and make recommendations on the assessment
performed by management on internal control over financial reporting and the report and attestation of
the registered public accountants on management’s assessment of internal controls over financial
reporting; review the internal control assessment with the registered public accountants, the internal
auditor, and management; review any major issues as to the adequacy of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting and any special audit steps adopted in light of material control deficiencies;
review the disclosure controls and procedures of the Company designed to ensure timely collection and
evaluation of information required to be disclosed in the Company’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or posted on the Company’s website; and review the registered public
accountant’s procedures and management of the audit relating to internal control over financial
reporting.

*  Independent Audit — Retain a registered public accounting firm for the purpose of preparing or issuing
an audit report on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and performing other audit,
review or attest services; preapprove the compensation and fees to be paid to the registered public
accountants, preapprove all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the registered public
accountants in advance and evaluate the qualifications, performance and independence of the registered
public accountants; oversee the work of the registered public accountants; ensure the objectivity of the
registered public accountants by reviewing and discussing all relationships between the registered
public accountants and the Company and its affiliates; obtain and review a report by the registered
public accountants that describes their internal quality-control procedures; review the proposed audit
scope and procedures to be utilized; obtain and review a post-audit report from the registered public
accountant; and review all critical accounting policies and practices to be used, major issues regarding
accounting principles and financial statement presentation and analyses prepared by management and/
or the registered public accountants setting forth significant financial reporting issues and judgments
made in connection with the preparation of the financial statements.

¢ Internal Audit — Review the qualifications, organizational structure and performance of the internal
audit function; review, approve and update the rolling three-year internal audit plan; receive periodic
summaries of findings from completed internal audits and the status of major audits in process;
receive timely notification of any issues or concerns identified during the course of internal audits
and review; and discuss with the registered public accountants the responsibilities, budget and
staffing of the Company’s internal audit function.
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*  Financial Reporting — Review and discuss with management, the registered public accountants and the
internal auditor the Company’s annual and quarterly consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations™ that will be contained in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q; discuss with the registered public accountants the auditor’s judgments about the
quality and not just the acceptability of accounting principles used to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and review the type of information to be disclosed in the Company’s
earnings press release; and discuss the earnings press releases and review any financial information and
earnings guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies.

e Ethical and Legal Compliance — Review the effectiveness of the Company’s system for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations; establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of
complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters (including procedures
for receiving and handling complaints on a confidential and anonymous basis); review and monitor
compliance with the code of ethics for the principal executive officer and senior financial officers;
review the code of ethical conduct and reporting applicable to the Company’s in-house and outside
attorneys; and receive, evaluate and handle any complaints submitted to or reported to the Audit
Committee.

s Other Responsibilities — Discuss and evaluate the Company’s guidelines and policies regarding risk
assessment and risk management; discuss the Company’s major financial risk exposures and the steps
management has take to monitor and control such exposures; and review the Company’s litigation,
government investigation and legal compliance matters for the purpose of determining the adequacy
and appropriateness of the Company’s financial reserves and control processes.

In the course of fulfilling its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has:

* met with the internal auditor and the registered public accountants to discuss any matters that the
internal auditor, the registered public accountants or the Committee believed should be discussed
privately without members of management present;

* met with management of the Company to discuss any matters management or the Committee believed
should be discussed privately without the internal auditor or the registered public accountants present;

+ reviewed and discussed with management and Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent
auditors, the audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006,

* discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP the matters required to be discussed by Statement of Accounting
Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees); and

» received the written disclosures and the letter required by Independence Standards Board Standard
No. I (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees).

Based-on the reviews and discussions summarized in this Report and subject to the limitations on our role
and responsibilities referred to above and contained in the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board of Directors that the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements referred to
above be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006 for
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

C.B. Malone (Chairperson)
W.H. Demisch

J.A. Drummond

A.K. Jones

H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr.

March 31, 2006
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AUDIT MATTERS
Independent Auditor

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent
registered public accounting firm to audit the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending
January 31, 2007. Stockholders are being asked to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP at the
Annual Meeting pursuant to Proposal 11, as described above.

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

Aggregate fees billed to the Company for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2006 and January 31, 2005
by the Company’s principal accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and their respective affiliates (collectively, the “Deloitte Entities”), were as follows:

2006 2005

AUAIE FEES (8) .« o ittt ittt e $6,282,000 $3,339,000
Audit-Related Fees (D) . ... i i i e e 1,278,000 1,889,000
Tax Fees(c) ..... P 210,000 499,000
Al Other Fees ... i i i e e e — —

Total FoeS .ot vttt e e e e e e $7,770,000 $5,727,000

(a) Audit fees include audit of consolidated financial statements, required statutory audits, quarterly reviews
and consents related to SEC filings. Audit fees for the year ended January 31, 2006 include $2,700,000
for an audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the six months ended July 31, 2005
for inclusion in a registration statement of SAIC, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, and $425,000 for
services related to registration statement filings.

(by  Includes fees for consuitation and planning related to the Company’s Sarbanes-Oxley Section
404-readiness activities of $881,000 and $130,000 for the years ended January 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively; audits of employee benefit plans of $238,000 and $217,000 for the years ended January 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively; accounting consultation of $0 and $17,000 for the years ended January 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively; other stand alone audits of $159,000 and $192,000 for the years ended
January 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and a three year stand alone audit, review of interim result and
issuance of comfort letter in connection with an offering memorandum issued by the buyer of the
Company’s subsidiary, Telcordia Technologies, Inc. for the year ended January 31, 2005.

(c) Represents fees for tax services related to preparation and/or review of various statutory tax filings
including U.S., foreign, state, benefit plans and others, including research and discussions related to tax
compliance matters.

The Audit Committee has considered whether the above services provided by the Deloitte Entities are
compatible to maintaining the independence of the Deloitte Entities. The Audit Committee has the responsibility
to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the registered public accountant in advance.
Further, the Chair of the Audit Committee has the authority to pre-approve audit and non-audit services as
necessary between regular meetings of the Audit Committee, provided that any such services so pre-approved
shall be disclosed to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. All of the Audit, Audit-Related and
Tax Fees set forth above were pre-approved by one of these means.
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Class A Common Stock

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as of the Record Date, no person (other than Vanguard
Fiduciary Trust Company (‘“Vanguard”) in its capacity as trustee of the Retirement Plans) beneficially owned
more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock. The following table sets forth, as of the
Record Date, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the number of shares of Class A common stock
beneficially owned by each Director, each nominee for Director, each of the Named Executive Officers and all
executive officers and Directors as a group:

Amount and
Nature of
. Beneficial Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner Ownership(1) Class(2)
K.C. Dahlberg ...... B 290,926 *
W.H. Demisch .o e 158,835 *
J A Drummond . ... 10,876 *
DH. BOley .ttt e e 208,272 *
J I HAMIE . o e e 2,120 *
ALK JONes .. e e 65,203 ok
HM.J Kraemer, Jr. ... .. 101,845 *
CB. Malone ........... e 122,018 *
WAL ROper, Jr. o 485,546 *
BT Sanderson, Jr. ... e 15,897 *
LA, SimIPSON oottt i e e e , 0 0%
Gl SInglEY ..ottt e e e 92,352 g
J P WalKush . oot 331,615 *
JH. Wamer, Jr. .o e e e ‘ 404,153 *
AT Y OUNE ettt et e e e 84,420 *
Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, as trustee
400 Vanguard Boulevard
Malvern, PA 10355 . i 69,573,599 41.1%(3)
All executive officers and Directors as a group (22 persons) ................. 2,994,039 1.8%(4)
* Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and less than 1% of the voting power of

the Common Stock.

(1)  The beneficial ownership set forth in the table includes: (a) the approximate number of shares allocated to
the account of the individual by the Trustee of the SAIC Retirement Plan as follows: K.C. Dahlberg
(875 shares), D.H. Foley (110 shares), G.T. Singley (1,427 shares), J.P. Walkush (23,638 shares), J.H.

" Warner, Jr. (302 shares) and all executive officers and Directors as a group (84,4435 shares); (b) shares
held in a rabbi trust in the form of share units for the account of the individual in the Key Executive Stock
Deferral Plan, the Stock Compensation Plan and/or the Management Stock Compensation Plan as
follows: K.C. Dahlberg (101,051 shares), W.H. Demisch (23,349 shares), J.A. Drummond (2,216 shares),
D.H. Foley (17,243 shares), I.J. Hamre (1,120 shares), A.K. Jones (3,502 shares), H.M.J. Kraemer, Jr.
(18,884 shares), W.A. Roper, Jr. (184,680 shares), G.T. Singley (6,892 shares), J.P. Walkush (49,184
shares), J.H. Warner, Jr. (46,114 shares), A.T. Young (29,522 shares) and all executive officers and
Directors as a group (570,067 shares); (c) shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days following
the Record Date as follows: K.C. Dahlberg (154,000 shares), W.H. Demisch (24,600 shares),
J.A. Drummond (7,200 shares), D.H. Foley (155,000 shares), A.K. Jones (24,600 shares), HM.J.
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Kraemer, Jr. (24,600 shares), C.B. Malone (11,400 shares), W.A. Roper, Jr. (170,000 shares), E.J.
Sanderson, Jr. (12,600 shares), G.T. Singley (47,000 shares), J.P. Walkush (81,000 shares), J.H. Warner,
Jr. (118,000 shares), A.T. Young (24,600 shares) and all executive officers and Directors as a group
(1,086,405 shares); (d) shares held directly by or jointly with spouses, minor children or other relatives
sharing a household with the individual as follows: W.H. Demisch (98,309 shares) and all executive
officers and Directors as a group (104,209 shares); and (e) shares held by certain trusts established by the
individual as follows: C.B. Malone (110,618 shares), J.H. Warner, Jr. (116,506 shares) and all executive
officers and Directors as a group (362,878 shares).

2) Based on 169,163,606 shares of Class A common stock outstanding as of the Record Date.

3) At the Record Date, Vanguard, as Trustee for the Retirement Plans, beneficially owned the following
percentage of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock and voting
power of the common stock under the following plans for the benefit of plan participants: SAIC
Retirement Plan: 38.6% Class A common stock, 4.1% Class B common stock and 37.7% of the voting
power of the Common Stock; Telcordia Plan: 2.0% Class A common stock and 2.0% of the voting power
of the Common Stock and AMSEC Plan: 0.6% Class A common stock and 0.6% of the voting power of
the Common Stock. The shares beneficially owned by Vanguard are also included in the amounts held by
individuals and the group set forth in this table.

4) Represents 1.7% of the voting power of the Common Stock.

Class B Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of the Record Date, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, those
persons who were beneficial owners of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock. None of
the Directors, nominees for Director, Named Executive Officers or executive officers of the Company own any
shares of Class B common stock.

Amount and

Nature of
Beneficial Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Ownership Ownership Class(1)
J.L. Griggs, Jr.
1516 Sagebrush Trail, S.E.
Albuquerque, NM 87123 .. ... . e 20,267(2) 9.9%(3)

(D Based on 206,147 shares of Class B common stock outstanding as of the Record Date.
(2) Includes 803 shares held for the account of the individual by the Trustee of the SAIC Retirement Plan.

(3) Less than 1% of the voting power of the Common Stock.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Beyster Institute at the Rady School of Management engages in teaching, research, public education
and outreach related to advancing and encouraging others in the field of employee ownership and
entrepreneurship. The Beyster Institute was previously a part of the Foundation for Enterprise Development (the
Foundation), a non-profit organization, which is engaged in a broad range of research and education activities.
The Foundation was established by J.R. Beyster, our former Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President. In Fiscal 2006, we donated $150,000 in cash to the Foundation and we have a commitment to donate
$150,000 per year for three more years. J.R. Beyster is the President and a member of the Board of Trustees of
the Foundation and M.A. Walkush, who is a sister of J.P. Walkush, an Executive Vice President and a Director,
was a consulting employee of the Company and is currently a consultant and a Senior Fellow for the Foundation.
Each of T.E. Darcy, an Executive Vice President, and J.P. Walkush have previously served as members of the
Board of Trustees of the Foundation.

D.M. Albero, son of C.M. Albero, former Group President and Chairman of the Board of AMSEC LLC,
is an employee of AMSEC LLC. For services rendered during Fiscal 2006, D.M. Albero received a salary of
$107,804. D.M. Albero is a Senior Consulting Analyst.

B.D. Rockwood, son of Stephen D. Rockwood, our former Executive Vice President, Chief Technology
Officer and Director, is an employee of the Company. For services rendered during Fiscal 2006, B.D. Rockwood
received a salary of $185,000, a cash bonus of $3,200, 10 net shares of Class A common stock (on an after tax
basis) with a market value of $458 based on an original bonus amount of $800, 592 shares of vesting Class A
common stock which had a market value on the date of grant of $26,001 and options to acquire 1,000 shares of
Class A common stock at $43.92 per share, which was the stock price on the date of the grant. Such vesting
shares of Class A common stock and options both vest as to 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% on the first, second, third
and fourth year anniversaries of the date of grant, respectively. B.D. Rockwood is a Director of Business
Operations in the Security and Transportation Technology business unit and has previously served as a Business
Developer in such business unit.

W.A. Downing, a former Director whose term expired in June 2005, also provided services to the
Company and received compensation at a fixed hourly rate in addition to his annual retainer and meeting fees as
a Director. In Fiscal 2006, W.A. Downing received compensation of $317,500 for these services.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission thereunder require the Company’s Directors and executive officers to file reports of their ownership
and changes in ownership of Class A common stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Personnel of
the Company generally prepare and file these reports on the basis of information obtained from each Director and
officer and pursuant to a power of attorney. Based on such information provided to the Company, the Company
believes that all reports required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to be filed by its
Directors and executive officers during the last fiscal year were filed on time.

Stockholder Proposals for the 2007 Annual Meeting

Any stockholder proposals intended to be presented at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be
received by the Company no later than February 7, 2007 in order to be considered for inclusion in the Company’s
Proxy Statement and form of proxy relating to that meeting. In addition, Section 2.07 of the Company’s Bylaws
provides that in order for a stockholder to propose any matter for consideration at an annual meeting of the
Company (other than by inclusion in the Company’s Proxy Statement), such stockholder must have given timely
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prior written notice to the Secretary of the Company of his or her intention to bring such business before the
meeting. To be timely, notice must be received by the Company not less than 50 days nor more than 75 days
prior to the meeting (or if fewer than 65 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the meeting date is given or
made to stockholders, not later than the 15th day following the day on which the notice of the date of the meeting
was mailed or such public disclosure was made). Such notice must contain certain information, including a brief
description of the business the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, the reasons for conducting such
business at the annual meeting, the name and record address of the stockholder proposing such business, the class
and number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such stockholder and any material interest of
such stockholder in the business so proposed.

Annual Report On Form 10-K

The Company will provide without charge to any stockholder, upon written or oral request, a copy of its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2006 (without exhibits) as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Requests should be directed to Science Applications International Corporation,

10260 Campus Point Drive, San Diego, California 92121, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 1-858-826-6000.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Douglas E. Scott

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

June 7, 2006
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ANNEX 1
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
Statement of Purpose

The purpose of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) is to assist the Board of Directors (the “Board™)
in its oversight of: (i) the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, including the financial reporting
process, system of internal control over financial reporting and audit process; (ii) compliance by the Company
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iii) the registered public accountants’ qualifications and independence;
(iv) the performance of the Company’s internal audit function and registered public accountants; (v) financial
reporting risk assessment and mitigation; and (vi) the preparation of the report of the Committee to be inciuded in
the Company’s annual proxy statement in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). In performing its duties, the Committee will maintain effective working
relationships with and open communication between the Board, management, internal auditors and registered
public accountants.

Composition, Membership and Operation

1, Composition of Committee. The Committee will be composed of three or more directors, none of
whom may (i) as determined by the Board, have any relationship to the Company that may interfere with the
exercise of his or her “independence” from management and the Company, as such term is defined in the
Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines; (ii) accept directly or indirectly any consulting, advisory or other
compensatory fee from the Company- or any subsidiary other than in his or her capacity as a director, a member
of the Committee or a member of any other Board committee; or (iii) be an affiliated person of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries other than in his or her capacity as a director or a member of the Committee or a member
of any other Board committee. All members of the Committee will be financially literate, or will become
financially literate within a reasonable period of time after appointment to the Committee, and at least one
member of the Committee will be an “audit committee financial expert,” as such term is interpreted under the
rules of the SEC, and shall have accounting or related financial management expertise, as the Board interprets
such qualification in its business judgment. Members of the Committee, including the Committee Chair, shall be
elected by the Board, taking into account the recommendations of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee, and members may be removed from the Committee by the Board. Committee members shall not
simultaneously serve on the audit committees of more than two other public companies unless the Board
determines that such simultaneous service would not impair the ability of such member to effectively serve on
the Committee and discloses such determination in the Company’s annual proxy statement.

2. Operation of Committee. A majority of the members of the Commiittee shall constitute a quorum
for doing business. All actions of the Committee shall be taken by a majority vote of the members of the
Committee present at a meeting at which a quorum is present or by unanimous written consent. The Committee
Chair shall be responsible for leadership of the Committee, including preparation of meeting agendas. The
Committee may, at its discretion, delegate such of its authority and responsibilities as the Committee deems
proper to members of the Committee or a subcommittee.

3. Meetings. The Committee will have regularly scheduled meetings each year, with additional
meetings to be held as circumstances require. The Committee will keep minutes of its meetings, and the
Committee Chair will regularly report to the Board on its activities, making recommendations as appropriate,
including the Committee’s conclusions with respect to the qualifications, performance and independence of the
registered public accountants, and will review with the Board any issues that arise with respect to the quality or
integrity of the Company’s financial statements, its compliance with legal or regulatory requirements, the
performance and independence of the registered public accountants or the performance of the internal audit
function.
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Duties and Responsibilities

The Committee’s job is one of oversight and it recognizes that the Company’s management is responsible
for the preparation and certification of the Company’s financial statements and that the registered public
accountants are responsible for auditing those financial statements. Additionally, the Committee recognizes that
financial management, including the internal audit staff, and the registered public accountants, have more time,
knowledge, and detailed information on the Company than do Committee members. Consequently, in carrying
out its oversight responsibilities, the Committee is not providing any expert or special assurance as to the
Company'’s financial statements or any professional certification as to the registered public accountants’ work.

The following functions shall be the common recurring activities of the Committee, and are set forth as a
guide with the understanding that the Committee may diverge from this guide as appropriate given the
circumstances, other than as may be required by any rules of the SEC or any national securities exchange on
which shares of the Company are listed.

1 Internal Controls and Disclosure Controls

* Review and provide feedback as deemed appropriate on (i) the assessment performed by
management on internal control over financial reporting for inclusion in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K with respect to quality, adequacy, and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting; and (ii) the report
and attestation of the registered public accountants on management’s assessment of internal
control over financial reporting.

» Review the internal control assessment with the registered public accountants, the internal
auditor and management, including all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the
design or operation of internal control over financial reporting and any fraud involving
management or others with a significant role in the internal controls; review any major issues
as to the adequacy of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and any special
audit steps adopted in light of material control deficiencies; receive recommendations for the
improvement of such control; and review whether any such previously approved
recommendations have been implemented and any other significant changes in internal control
over financial reporting have been made since the last evaluation.

* Review the disclosure controls and procedures of the Company designed to ensure timely
collection and evaluation of information required to be disclosed in the Company’s filings
with the SEC or posted on the Company’s website.

* Review the registered public accountants’ procedures and management of the audit relating to
internal control over financial reporting.

2. Independent Audit

* Retain a registered public accounting firm for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit
report on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and performing other audit,
review or attest services; preapprove the compensation and fees to be paid to the registered
public accountants; preapprove all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the
registered public accountants in advance and evaluate the qualifications, performance and
independence of the registered public accountants. The Committee shall have sole authority
and responsibility to appoint, evaluate and, where appropriate, replace the registered public
accountants and/or the lead audit partner, and the registered public accountants shall be
ultimately accountable to and report to the Committee. The Committee shall oversee the work
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of the registered public accountants (including resolution of any disagreements between
management and the registered public accountants regarding financial reporting). The
Committee Chair shall have authority to preapprove audit and non-audit services provided by
the registered public accountants as necessary between regular meetings of the Committee;
provided that any such services so preapproved shall be disclosed to the full Committee at its
next scheduled meeting.

+ Ensure the objectivity of the registered public accountants by reviewing and discussing all
relationships between the registered public accountants and the Company and its affiliates,
including: (i) requesting, receiving, and reviewing, on an annual basis, a formal written
statement from the registered public accountants under Independence Standards Board
Standard No. 1 that delineates all relationships which may reasonably be thought to bear on
the independence of the registered public accountants with respect to the Company in
accordance with professional standards governing such independence; (ii) discussing with the
registered public accountants any disclosed relationships or services that may impact the
objectivity and independence of the registered public accountants; (iii) taking appropriate
action in response to the registered public accountants’ report; and (iv) establishing clear
policies regarding the employment of current or former employees of the registered public
accountants.

+ Obtain and review, at least annually, a report by the registered public accountants that
describes (i) the registered public accountants’ internal quality-control procedures; (ii) any
material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control procedures; (iii) any material
issues raised by the most recent internal quality control review, or peer review, of the
registered public accountants, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or
professional authorities within the preceding five years, respecting one or more independent
audits carried out by the registered public accountants, and any steps taken to address any
such issues.

¢« Meet separately and on a periodic basis with the registered public accountants and
management to review the proposed audit scope and procedures to be utilized.

+ At the conclusion of each annual audit, review with the registered public accountants any
audit problems or difficulties and management’s response, including any difficulties
encountered in the course of the audit work; any restrictions on the scope of the registered
public accountants’ activities or on access to requested information; any significant
disagreements with management; any accounting adjustments that were noted or proposed by
the registered public accountants but were passed (as immaterial or otherwise); any
communications between the audit team and the national office respecting auditing or
accounting issues presented in the engagement; and any management or internal control letter
issued, or proposed to be issued, by the registered public accountants to the Company in
connection with the audit and any other comments or recommendations made by the
registered public accountants; and such matters related to the conduct of the audit that are to
be communicated to the Committee under generally accepted auditing standards.

* Review (i) all critical accounting policies and practices to be used; (ii) major issues regarding
accounting principles and financial statement presentations, inclucing any significant changes
in the Company’s selection or application of accounting principles; (iii) analyses prepared by
management and/or the registered public accountants setting forth significant financial
reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the financial
statements, including each alternative treatment of financial information within GAAP that
has been discussed with management and an analyses of the effects of alternative GAAP
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methods on the financial statements; (iv) the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as
well as off-balance sheet structures, on the financial statements; and (v) other material written
communications between the registered public accountants and management.

Internal Audit

Review the qualifications, organizational structure and performance of the internal audit
function and give prior approval to any decision to appoint, replace, reassign, or dismiss the
Director of the Company’s Internal Audit Department. The Committee, through its Chair,
shall also be required to concur in the total compensation being provided to the Director of the
Internal Audit Department and sign off on his/her annual performance appraisal.

Review and approve on an annual basis the three year audit plan of the Internal Audit
Department (the “internal audit plan”), which plan should be designed to systematically focus
on the Company’s risks and vulnerabilities.

Review and update on an annual basis the internal audit plan, including the independence and
authority of the internal auditor’s reporting obligations, the adequacy of internal audit
resources, and the coordination and completeness of coverage between the internal auditors
and registered public accountants.

Receive periodic summaries of findings from completed internal audits and, as appropriate,
the status of major audits in process. Receive progress reports on the completion of the current
vear’s internal audit plan, including explanations for any significant deviations from the plan.

Receive timely notification of any issues or concerns identified during the course of internal
audits.

Review and discuss with the registered public accountants, or others as appropriate, the
responsibilities, budget and staffing of the Company’s internal audit function.

Financial Reporting

Review and discuss with management and the registered public accountants the Company’s
annual audited consolidated financial statements that will be contained in its Annual Report to
Stockholders and Form 10-K, including a review of the specific disclosures under
“Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
Based on such review, recommend to the Board, in a written report to be included in the
Company’s proxy statement, whether the consolidated financial statements of the Company
should be included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Review and discuss with management, the registered public accountants and the internal
auditor the quarterly consolidated financial statements of the Company, including a review of
the specific disclosures under “Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” and the results of the registered public accountants’ review of
those statements. This review shall occur prior to the Company’s filing of each Form 10-Q
with the SEC.

Discuss with the registered public accountants the auditor’s judgments about the quality and
not just the acceptability of accounting principles used to prepare the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. Review the impact on the annual financial statements of any significant
accounting and reporting issues, including recent professional and regulatory pronouncements
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and any newly adopted or proposed changes in accounting principles that would significantly
affect the Company or its consolidated financial statements.

* " Review the Company’s responses to any comment letters, inquiries or investigations of the
SEC or any national securities exchange on which shares of the Company are listed.

* Review the type of information to be disclosed in, and type of presentation of, the Company’s
earnings press releases (paying particular attention to any use of “proforma” or “adjusted”
non-GAAP information), discuss the earnings press releases and review any financial
information and earnings guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies.

5. Ethical and Legal Compliance

* Review the effectiveness of the Company’s system for monitoring compliance with laws and
regulations, including receiving reports from management on the results of management’s
review of compliance with the Company’s policies and any investigations by management
related to fraudulent acts or irregularities.

* Review with the Chairs of the Ethics and Corporate Responsibility Committee of the Board

“and the Company’s Employee Ethics Committee, any concerns they may have with respect to

management’s having adequately communicated to the Company’s employees the importance

of the Company’s ethical and business practices standards, including the importance of
internal accounting controls.

¢ . Establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints (including
procedures for receiving and handling complaints on a confidential and anonymous basis)
regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, including employee
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

* Review the code of ethics for principal executive officer and senior financial officers (the
“Code of Ethics”), any changes to or waivers from it, and the compliance of the Company’s
principal executive officer and senior financial officers with the Code of Ethics.

* Review the code of ethical conduct and reporting applicable to the Company’s in-house and
outside attorneys and receive, evaluate and handle any complaints submitted to or reported to
the Committee.

6. Other Responsibilities

+  Meet separately, periodically, with the internal auditor and with the registered public
accountants to discuss any matters that the internal auditors, the registered public accountants
or the Committee believe should be discussed privately without members of management
present.

* Meet separately, periodically, with management of the Company to discuss any matters
management or the Committee believe should be discussed privately without the internal
auditor or the registered public accountants present.

* Review and discuss the adequacy of the Audit Committee Charter on an annual basis or more
frequently upon changes to the membership of the Committee or as otherwise needed.

¢ Discuss and evaluate the Company’s guidelines and policies regarding risk assessment and
risk management, including risks related to internal control over financial reporting, and
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discuss the Company’s major financial risk exposures and the steps management has taken to
monitor and control such exposures.

* Review the Company’s litigation, government investigation and legal compliance matters for
the purpose of determining the adequacy and appropriateness of the Company’s financial
reserves and control processes.

7. Committee Self-Evaluation

* Conduct an annual self-evaluation of the performance of the Committee and report the results
of the evaluation to the Board.

Adpvisors

The Committee shall have the authority to retain and obtain advice and assistance from independent legal,
accounting or other advisors as it deems necessary to carry out its duties, without seeking Board or management
approval. The Committee shall have the authority to approve such advisor’s fees, expenses and the other terms of
its retention. The Commiittee is authorized to cause the officers of the Company to provide such funding as the
Committee shall determine to be appropriate for payment of compensation to the Company’s registered public
accountants and any advisers engaged by the Committee, and payment of ordinary administrative expenses of the
Committee that are necessary or appropriate in carrying out its duties.

Additional Duties and Responsibilities

The Committee shall undertake such additional duties and responsibilities as the Board may from time to
time prescribe.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Science Applications International Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Science Applications International
Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended January 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have,
nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Science Applications International Corporation and subsidiaries as of January 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31,
2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Diego, California
April 24, 2006
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended January 31

2006 2005

2004

(In millions, except per
share amounts)

REVENUES . .o $7,792 $7,187 $5,833
Costs and expenses:
oSt O TEVEIUES . .ttt e e e e 6,801 6,283 5,053
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses . .........ovvvvernen .. 494 418 378
Goodwill IMpairMeEnt ... .. .ot e e e — — 7
Gain on sale of business units, net . ........... ... . ... i — ) —
OPETatiNg INCOMIE .« . ¢\ ittt ettt et et e ettt e e ettt e 497 488 395
Non-operating income (expense):
Net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other investments, including
IMPaIrmMent 10SSEs . ... ..ot e e e (15) (16) 5
INterest INCOME . . ..o o e e 97 45 49
INterest EXPEeNSE . ..ottt e e e 89) (88) (80)
Other InCOME (EXPENSE), 1L . . oo\ttt e ettt et et ee e 7 (12) 5
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries ................... 13) (14) (10)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ....................... 484 403 364
Provision for income taxes . ... ...ttt e 139 131 140
Income from continuing Operations ... .........cu it it ie e 345 272 224
Discontinued operations (Note 18):
Income from discontinued operations of Telcordia before income taxes
(including gain on sale of $871 millionin2006) ........................ 875 149 146
Gain from discontinued operations of INTESA joint venture before income
BAXES . vttt et e e e e e — 6 —
Provision for inCOmMe taxes . .. ... ..ot i e 293 18 19
Income from discontinued operations ............. .. it 582 137 127
NetINCOME ...\ttt e e e $ 927 $ 409 $ 351
Earnings per share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations ........ ... .. ... i $ 198 $ 149 §$ 122
Income from discontinued Operations . .............uverriinnrenennen.n. 3.35 74 .68
$ 533 $223 $190
Diluted:
Income from continuing Operations . .. ... ........vueieeneiunrnnnnneenn.s $ 192 $ 145 $ 1.19
Income from discontinued operations ...............c.iiiiiiainen.., 3.23 73 .67
$515 $218 $ 186
Common equivalent shares:
Basic .. e 174 183 185
Diluted ... oo e 180 188 189

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
January 31

2006 2005
(In millions)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash €qUIVALENES . . . ... vttt e $1,035 $ 983

Investments in marketable SeCUTItIES ... ... . ittt e e 1,659 1,367

Receivables, et . ..o 1,517 1,520

Prepaid expenses and other CUrrent assets . ............ccuvnitnenennnennnnnann. 192 216

Assets of discontinued Operations . . .......... .. ... i — 900

Total CUITENL @SSEIS . . o . ot ettt ettt it e et e e et ettt et ean 4403 4,986
Property, plant and eqUiPIMENt, NMET . . ...ttt ittt e ettt e e 356 339
Intangible assets, NEL . . ..ottt et e e e 63 50
GoodWill . .. 655 468
Deferred INCOME 1aXeS . . . ot vttt e i e e e 66 69
L0111 B 0T 112 98

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... ... . ... o o $ 953 § 864
Accrued payroll and employee benefits ............ ... i 468 433
Income taxes payable . ........ . e 14 200
Notes payable and current portion of long-termdebt .......... ... ... .. ... ... .... 47 70
Deferred inCOME tAXES . . . .. vttt ittt et e et 9 52
Liabilities of discontinued operations ..............ci ittt o~ 680
Total current Habilities .. ... o e 1,491 2,299
Long-term debt, net of CUrrent POrtion . ... ... ...ttt eeiaaannn 1,192 1,215
Other long-term Habilities . .. ... .o i i i e e e 111 99
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 16 and 19) . ...... ... ... ..
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries . .. ....... ... .. . oo 54 46
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock (NOTE 1) ...t i e e e e e 2 2
Additional paid-incapital .. ..... ... .. 2,506 2,278
- Retained earnings . .......... o i e 415 212
Other stockholders’ equity . ... ... . i 84) (105
Accumulated other comprehensive 108s . ........ ..o (32) (36)
Total Stockholders’ EqUILY . . ... oo\ttt et e e e e 2,807 2,351

$5,655 6,010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other Accumulated

____Common stock Agz:(til-oiﬁal Retained h(s):gzl:s-’ comg-telin?;lsive Comprehensive
Shares Amount capital earnings  equity loss income
(In millions)
Balance at February 1,2003 ....... 187 $2 $1,691 $414 $ (73) $(14)
Netincome ................ —_— — — 351 — — $351
Other comprehensive loss . . . . . — — — — — (16) (16)
Issuances of common stock ... 15 — 368 — — — —
Repurchases of common
stock ... ... L (16) — (154) (404) — — —_—
Income tax benefit from
employee stock
transactions .............. — —_— 56 — —_ — —
Stock compensation ......... _ - 1 — — — —
Unearned stock compensation, .
net of amortization ........ — —_ — — (19) — —
Balance at January 31,2004 . ...... 186 2 1,962 361 (92) 3o $335
Netincome ................ — — — 409 — — $409
Other comprehensive loss . . . . . — — — — — (6 ()]
Issuances of common stock . .. 15 —_ 465 — — — —
Repurchases of common
stock ... (19) — 217) (558) — — —
Income tax benefit from
employee stock
transactions . ............. — — 67 — — —_ —
Stock compensation .. ....... — — 1 — — — —
Unearned stock compensation,
net of amortization ........ — — — — (13) — —
Balance at January 31,2005 ....... 182 2 2,278 212 (105) (36) $403
Netincome ................ — — — 927 — — $927
Other comprehensive
NCOME .. ......oovvvnnn.. — — —_ — —_ 4 4
Issuances of common stock . . . 13 — 443 — — — —
Repurchases of common
stock ... (24) — (283) (724) — —_ —
Income tax benefit from
employee stock
transactions .............. — — 67 — — — —
Stock compensation ......... — — 1 — — — —
Unearned stock compensation,
net of amortization ........ — — — — 21 — =
Balance at January 31,2006 . ...... 171 $2 $2,506 $415 $ (84) $32) . $931

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:
(ST Tt O $ 927 $ 409 $ 351
Income from discontinued operations . ... ..... ... ... .. i i N (582) (137) (127)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by continuing operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ......... .. ... 70 56 37
Non-cash compensation .......... ... .. i ittt 110 123 99
Impairment losses on marketable securities and other investments .............................. 6 20 19
Loss (gain) on sale of marketable securities and other investments . ............. .. ............. 9 4) (24)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment .. ...... ... .. .. i i 2 (16) 2
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries ................. ... oo oo 13 14 10
Other NON-CaSh HEIMS . . .. Lttt ettt it et e e e e [CY) 11 4)
Goodwill IMPaIIMENt . ... ... — — 7
Increase (decrease) in cash, excluding effects of acquisitions and divestitures, from changes in:
ReECEIVADIES L. ot e e e e e 51 (221) (165)
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITENE ASSELS .. ... vttt i i 39 1) (54)
Deferred INCOME tAXES . ..ot ittt et s e e e e e e (42) 59 13
OUBEE ASSELS .+ . o v vttt e ettt e e et e e e e e e e e (19) 3 [¢))
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ... ......... ... 54 158 169
Accrued payroll and employee benefits ....... ... ... . 23 30 45
Income taxes payable ... ... ... . (76) 77 34
Other long-term liabilities . .. ... ... . 14 7 (37)
Total cash flows provided by operating activities ...............oviiuii ittt 595 588 374
Cash flows from investing activities:
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment . . .. ... i e (54) (42) (115)
Acquisitions of business units, net of cash acquired of $4 million, $4 million, and $11 million in 2006,

2005 and 2004 respectively . ... (212) (212) (193)
Payments for businesses acquired in previous years . ...............coiiiiiiiiaa. [P (14) (20) —
Purchases of marketable securities available-for-sale . . .. ... ... .. .. i i i (7,852) (6,387) (10,771)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities and other investments ................. 7,561 6,290 10,628
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ......... ... .. . i i i e 1 33 —
Investments in affiliates ... ... .. ... i e e e 2) 9 )
L0 12T O 1 2 ®)

Total cash flows used in investing activities . ... .. ...ttt e (583) (345) (468)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable and issuance of long-termdebt ............. .. ... ... o — 27 351
Payments on settlement of treasury lock contracts .......... ... o i i i —_ _ 5
Payments of notes payable, long-term debt and capital lease obligations ......................... (46) (24) 3)
Dividends paid to minority interest stockholders ... .. . ) ) 3)
Sales of COMMON SEOCK . .« .ottt et e e et e e e e 155 130 85
Repurchases of common stoCK . ... ... i e e (818) (607) 451)
Total cash flows used in financing activities . ... ... .. . . e (713) (478) (26)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations ................c.ocouiiirnnannn.. (701) (235) (120)
Cash flows of discontinued operations (Revised—see Note 1):
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities of discontinued operations ....................... (319) 179 141
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations . ....................... 1,072 (60) (16)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations .................ccviiiriniareann 753 119 125
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year . ....... ... .. ... .. i 983 1,099 1,094
Cash and cash equivalents atend of Year . ......... ..o it e $1,035 $ 983 $ 1,099
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock exchanged upon exercise of StOCK OptONS . . v v oo v et ae s 5 189 $ 168 $ 107
Capital lease obligations for property, plant and equipment . . ............... ... e 3 — 3% — 3 9
Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions . . ... ......... .t 5 288 $§ 284 § 345
Cash paid in acquisitions, net of cash acquired ........ ... ... ... ... .. ool (212) (212) (193)
Future acquisition payment acerued ... ... ... e 2) — —
Issuance of common stock in acquisitions and other consideration of $2 millionin2004 ............. 17) 4) (49)
Liabilities assumed in acqUISHIONS ... ..ottt ittt e e et e $ 57 % 68 $ 103
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Science Applications International
Corporation and all majority-owned and wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company™).
All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. Outside investors’ interests in
the majority-owned subsidiaries are reflected as minority interest. Unless otherwise noted, references to years are
for fiscal years ended January 31, not calendar years. For example, the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006 is
referred to as “2006” in these notes to consolidated financial statements.

Certain wholly-owned subsidiaries have fiscal years ended December 31, and as a result, the financial
position and results of operations of these subsidiaries for such periods are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the years ended January 31. There were no intervening events for these
subsidiaries from December 31 through January 31 for each of the years presented that would materially affect
the consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Investments in affiliates and corporate joint ventures where the Company has an ownership interest
representing between 20% and 50%, or over which the Company exercises significant influence, are accounted
for under the equity method whereby the Company recognizes its proportionate share of net income or loss and
does not consolidate the affiliates’ individual assets and liabilities. Equity investments in affiliates over which the
Company does not exercise significant influence and whose securities do not have a readily determinable fair
market value as defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” are carried at cost or adjusted cost net of other-than-
temporary impairments.

On September 1, 2005, the Company’s newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary, SAIC, Inc., filed a
registration statement on Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) for an initial public
offering of common stock (“public offering”). In addition, SAIC, Inc. filed a registration statement on Form S-4
with the SEC and the Company delivered to its stockholders a proxy statement/prospectus to obtain stockholder
approval of a merger agreement pursuant to which the Company would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SAIC, Inc. A special meeting of the stockholders that was previously scheduled for December 16, 2005 to vote
on the merger was postponed due to developments regarding the firm fixed-price contract with the Greek
government as discussed in Note 19. The Company intends to reschedule the special meeting of the stockholders
and, subject to stockholder approval of the merger agreement, satisfactory market conditions and other factors,
complete the merger and the public offering in the Fall of 2006.

Operating Cycle

The Company’s operating cycle for long-term contracts is typically greater than one year and is measured
by the average time intervening between the inception and the completion of those contracts. Contract related
assets and liabilities are classified as current assets and current liabilities.

Discontinued Operations

On March 15, 2003, the Company completed the sale of its subsidiary, Telcordia Technologies, Inc.
(“Telcordia”). The operating results of Telcordia have been classified as discontinued operations (Note 18) for all

periods presented.
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Reclassifications

The Company has reclassified the amounts described below in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets as of January 31, 2005 and in the consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for 2005 and 2004 to conform to the 2006 presentation.

In the consolidated statements of income for 2005 and 2004, the Company reclassified $54 million and
$47 million, respectively, from cost of revenues to selling, general and administrative expenses in order to
classify these costs to be consistent with 2006 and its allocation of costs under cost accounting standards for U.S.
Government contracts.

In the consolidated balance sheet for 2005, the Company reclassified $43 million of pre-contract costs to
prepaid expenses which were previously reported in unbilled receivables.

In the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income for 2005 and 2004, the
Company reclassified $55 million and $46 million, respectively, from repurchases of common stock to issuances
of common stock to reflect shares issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan which were previously
reported as a reduction to repurchases of common stock because it was part of the net limited market trade
activity.

These reclassifications were also reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows for 2005 and 2004
and did not change previously reported net income or earings per share.

Cash Flows

In 2006, 2005 and 2004 the Company has separately disclosed the operating and investing portions of the
cash flows attributable to its discontinued operations (Note 18), which in prior periods were reported on a
combined basis as a single amount.

In 2005 and 2004, the Company increased purchases of marketable securitics available-for-sale and
proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities and other investments by $6 billion and $11 billion,
respectively, to reflect purchases, sales and maturities of marketable securities that occur within the Company’s
investment portfolios that are managed by third party investment managers (“managed portfolios”). The
Company previously did not report the cash outflows and inflows that occurred within the managed portfolios as
purchases and sales and maturities, respectively, but rather reported the cash outflows and inflows between the
Company and the managed portfolios. This reclassification had no effect on previously reported “total cash flows
from investing activities.”

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”), requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial
statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Management
evaluates these estimates and assumptions on an on-going basis including those relating to allowances for
doubtful accounts, inventories, fair value and impairment of investments, fair value and impairment of intangible
assets and goodwill, income taxes, estimated profitability of long-term contracts, pension benefits, contingencies
and litigation. Estimates have been prepared on the basis of the most current information and actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties and is determined based on quoted market prices, if available, or
management’s best estimate. It is management’s belief that the carrying amounts shown for the Company’s
financial instruments, which include cash equivalents, short-term investments in marketable securities, long-term
investments in marketable securities and long-term investments in private equity securities, are reasonable
estimates of their related fair values. Cash equivalents and short-term investments in marketable securities are
recorded at fair value. The fair value of short-term and long-term investments in marketable securities is based
upon quoted market prices. The fair value of long-term investments in private equity securities is estimated using
various valuation techniques and factors, such as discounted cash flow models, market prices of comparable
companies and recent capital transactions of portfolio companies. The fair value of long-term debt (Note 13) is
estimated based on quoted market prices for similar instruments and current rates offered to the Company for
similar debt with the same remaining maturities.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenues are primarily from contracts with the U.S. Government, commercial customers,
and various international, state and local governments or from subcontracts with other contractors engaged in
work with such customers. The Company performs under a variety of contracts, some of which provide for
reimbursement of cost plus fees, or target cost and fee with risk sharing, and others which are fixed-price or
time-and-materials type contracts. Revenues and fees on these contracts are primarily recognized using the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting, most often based on contract costs incurred to date compared
with total estimated costs at completion (“cost-to-cost method”). The Company also uses efforts-expended
methods of percentage-of-completion (using measures such as labor dollars) for measuring progress towards
completion in situations in which this approach is more representative of the progress on the contract than the
cost-to-cost method. The efforts-expended method is utilized when there are significant amounts of materials or
hardware on a contract for which procurement of materials does not represent significant progress on the
contract. Additionally, the Company utilizes the units-of-delivery method under percentage-of-completion on
contracts where separate units of output are produced. Under the units-of-delivery method, revenue is recognized
when the units are delivered to the customer, providing that all other requirements for revenue recognition have
been met. On contracts that provide for incentive or award fees, the Company includes an estimate of the
ultimate incentive or award fee to be received on the contract in the estimated contract revenues for purposes of
applying the percentage-of-completion method of accounting,

Revenues from services and maintenance contracts are recognized over the term of the respective
contracts as the services are performed and revenue is earned. Revenues from unit-priced contracts are
recognized as transactions are processed based on objective measures of output. Revenues from the sale of
manufactured products are recorded upon passage of title and risk of loss to the customer, which is generally
upon delivery, providing that all other requirements for revenue recognition have been met. The Company
evaluates its contracts for multiple deliverables and, when appropriate, segments the contract into separate units
of accounting for proper revenue recognition.

The Company provides for anticipated losses on contracts by recording an expense during the period in
which the losses are first identified. Amounts billed to customers but not yet recognized as revenue under certain
types of contracts are deferred. Unbilled receivables are stated at estimated realizable value. Contract costs
incurred for U.S. Government contracts, including indirect costs, are subject to audit and adjustment by
negotiations between the Company and government representatives. The Company has agreed upon and settled
indirect contract costs through 2003. Revenues on U.S. Government contracts have been recorded in amounts
that are expected to be realized upon final settlement.
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Pre-contract Costs

Costs incurred on projects accounted for under the percentage-of-completion accounting method can be
recognized as pre-contract costs and deferred as an asset (prepaid expenses and other current assets) when the
Company has been requested by the customer to begin work under a new contract, or extend or modify work
under an existing contract (change order). The Company records pre-contract costs when formal contracts or
contract modifications have not yet been executed, and it is probable that the Company will recover the costs
through the issuance of a contract or contract modification.- When the formal contract or contract modification
has been executed, the costs are recorded to the contract and revenue is recognized based on the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

Contract claims are unanticipated additional costs incurred in excess of the executed contract price that
the Company seeks to recover from the customer. Such costs are expensed as incurred. Additional revenue
related to contract claims is recognized when the amounts are awarded by the customer.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding amounts held in the Company’s managed portfolios. Items gualifying as cash equivalents but held in
the Company’s managed portfolios are included in marketable securities on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets. Cash and cash equivalents at January 31, 2006 and 2005 include $1.0 billion and $968 million,
respectively, invested in commercial paper and institutional money market funds.

Investments in Marketable and Private Equity Securities

Marketable debt and equity securities are classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity at the
time of purchase. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and held-to-maturity debt securities are
carried at amortized cost. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recorded net of related
tax effects in accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses on the
sale of available-for-sale securities are determined using the adjusted cost of the specific securities sold.

At each balance sheet date, management assesses whether an impairment loss on its marketable and
private equity securities has occurred due to declines in fair value and other market conditions that may be other-
than-temporary. If management determines that a decline in the fair value has occurred and such decline is
deemed to be other-than-temporary in nature, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the security to its
estimated fair value (Note 4).

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the average cost and
first-in, first-out methods.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation of buildings is recognized using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of ten
to forty years while the related improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
lease term or ten years. Depreciation of equipment is recognized using the straight-line method or the declining-
balance method over the estimated useful lives of three to ten years.
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Additions to property and equipment together with major renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals and betterments are expensed as incurred. When assets are sold or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized.

The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived assets when there is evidence that events or
changes in circumstances have made recovery of the asset’s carrying value unlikely and the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash flows. When the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset’s carrying
amount to its estimated fair value based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill, which represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net amounts assigned to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, is assessed for impairment at least annually or whenever events or
circumstances indicate a condition of impairment may exist. The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process.
The first step consists of estimating the fair values of each of the reporting units based on a discounted cash flow
model using revenue and profit forecasts and comparing those estimated fair values with the carrying values,
which include the allocated goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed
to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an implied fair value of goodwill. The implied fair
value of goodwill is the residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a reporting unit’s identifiable
assets and liabilities from its estimated fair value calculated in step one. The impairment expense represents the
excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units’ goodwill over the implied fair value of their goodwill. The
Company performs its annual goodwill impairment test each January 31.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using a method that best reflects how their economic
benefits are utilized or, if a pattern of economic benefits cannot be reliably determined, on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives of one to twelve years. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are
assessed for impairment on an annual basis. Intangible assets, amortized or not, are also evaluated for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided utilizing the liability method. The liability method requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities, on an annual basis, for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities (Note 12). Under the liability
method, changes in tax rates and laws are reflected in income in the period such changes are enacted.

The provisions for federal, state, foreign and local income taxes are calculated on income before income
taxes based on current tax law and include the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates from those used
previously in determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provisions differ from the amounts currently
payable because certain items of income and expense are recognized in different time periods for financial
reporting purposes than for income tax purposes.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company has a number of stock-based employee compensation plans, including stock options, stock
purchase and restricted stock plans, which are described in Notes 10 and 15. The Company accounts for stock-

based employee compensation using the intrinsic value method for each period presented under the recognition
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and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations. Under the intrinsic value method, no compensation expense is reflected
in net income for options granted to employees, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, and no compensation expense
is recognized for the employee stock purchase plan because it is a non-compensatory plan. The Company
accounts for stock options granted to non-employees using the fair value method under SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to the employee stock options and employee stock
purchase plan:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004

(In millions, except per
share amounts)
Net income, as TEPOTIEd .. ..ottt ee ettt e e $927 $409 $351
Pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

e U 16) 3l (36)
Pro forma net inCOME . .. ..\ \v ettt it e eie e $911  $378 $315
Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported ... ... $5.33  $2.23  $1.90
Basic—proforma ........ ... $5.24 $2.07 $1.70
Diluted—as reported . ........ i $5.15 $2.18 $1.86
Diluted—proforma ........... .. it $35.06 $2.01 $1.67

The pro forma compensation costs were determined using weighted-average per share fair values of
options granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 of $8.70, $5.20 and $4.12, respectively. The fair value for options
granted prior to September 1, 2005 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions for 2006, 2005 and 2004: no dividend yield, no volatility, risk-free interest
rates ranging from 2.5% to 4.4% and expected lives of five years. The fair value of options granted afier
September 1, 2005 was calculated using the same assumptions for 2006 except a peer-weighted volatility rate of
33% and estimated useful life of 3.9 years was applied. In 2006, the pro forma stock-based employee
compensation expense was reduced by $10 million, net of related tax effect, representing the effects of unvested
stock options that were forfeited by employees of Telcordia as a result of the sale of Telcordia.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require
the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Prior to September 1,
2005, the Company met the definition of a non-public company for the purposes of applying the provisions of
SFAS No. 123 and, therefore, assumed no volatility in its fair value calculations. Effective with the filing of a
registration statement by SAIC, Inc. with the SEC on September 1, 2005, the Company met the definition of a
public company under SFAS No. 123 and, accordingly, has included a volatility estimate based on the estimated
stock volatility of the Company’s peers in valuing awards granted after September 1, 2005.

SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which is a revision of SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25 was adopted by the Company effective February 1, 2006. Pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R),
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restatement of earlier periods is not permitted and there will be no carryover expense on the unvested portion of
awards granted prior to September 1, 2005. There will be carryover expense to be recognized in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements primarily over the next four years of $11 million associated with awards
granted between September 1, 2005 and January 31, 2006. Because the Company applied the minimum value
method (which assumes no volatility in estimating fair value) to awards granted prior to September 1, 2005, the
amount of expense to be recognized in the consolidated financial statements following adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) will be significantly greater than the historical amounts presented in the pro forma table above. In
addition, the Company’s employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”) will be compensatory under SFAS No. 123(R),
requiring the 15% discount on employee stock purchases made under the plan to be recognized as compensation
expense (Note 10) beginning in 2007. The amount of compensation expense in 2007 is dependent upon the
number of awards to be granted and ESPP participation levels. Since February 1, 2006, the Company awarded
stock options with an estimated fair value of $49 million, (based on the same assumptions used above) net of
estimated forfeitures, that will be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements ratably over the
next four years. Substantially all of these stock options were granted in conjunction with the annual fiscal year
bonus compensation awards. Of the total options granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004, 75%, 75% and 67%,
respectively, of the options were granted in conjunction with the annual fiscal year bonus compensation awards.
If the Company had adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in 2006, it would have also recognized expense of $9 million for
the discount on ESPP shares.

Common Stock and Earnings Per Share

The Company is authorized to issue 1 billion shares of Class A common stock, par value $.01 and
5 million shares of Class B common stock, par value $.05. As of January 31, 2006 and 2005, 167,379,000 shares
and 177,369,000 shares of Class A common stock, respectively, and 206,000 shares and 217,000 shares of Class
B common stock, respectively, were issued and outstanding. Pursuant to the Company’s Certificate of
Incorporation, no additional shares of Class B common stock may be issued. Each share of Class B common
stock is convertible into 20 shares of Class A common stock. Class A common stock and Class B common stock
are collectively referred to as common stock in the consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated
financial statements and are shown assuming that the Class B common stock was converted into Class A
common stock. The Class A common stock and Class B common stock have identical rights with respect to
voting, dividends, liquidation and other rights except that the Class B common stock has 20 votes per share and
shall receive 20 times the per share dividend declared and paid on the Class A common stock, and 20 times the
assets and funds distributed upon liquidation as the Class A common stock. Pursuant to the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation, the Class A common stock is subject to certain restrictions, including the
Company’s right to repurchase shares held by a stockholder upon termination of the stockholder’s affiliation with
the Company, the Company’s right of first refusal with respect to sales of Class A common stock by a
stockholder other than in the Company’s limited market and certain other restrictions on transfer of Class A
common stock. The shares of Class B common stock are generally subject to similar contractual restrictions.
Repurchases of the Company’s common stock reduce the amount of retained earnings in the stockholders’ equity
section of the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. Shares of common stock are retired upon repurchase.

Although there has never been a general public market for the Company’s common stock, the Company
has maintained a limited market through its wholly-owned broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc. Determinations of
the price of the common stock are made by the board of directors pursuant to a valuation process that includes
valuation input from an independent appraiser and a stock price formula. The board of directors believes that the
valuation process results in a value which represents a fair market value for the Class A common stock within a
broad range of financial criteria. The board of directors reserves the right to alter the formula and valuation
process.
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If the stockholders’ approve the merger and the Company completes the public offering, each share of the
Company’s Class A common stock would be converted into the right to receive two shares of SAIC, Inc. Class A
preferred stock, and subject to the exercise of appraisal rights, each share of the Company’s Class B common
stock would be converted into the right to receive 40 shares of SAIC, Inc. Class A preferred stock. If the merger
is completed, the new common stock of SAIC, Inc. would have the same economic rights as the new Class A
preferred stock but would be entitled to one vote per share while the new Class A preferred stock would be
entitled to 10. votes per share. After the merger, SAIC, Inc. expects to offer its shares of common stock to the
public. As a publicly traded company, SAIC, Inc. would have no right of first refusal on transfers of the new
Class A preferred stock or the new common stock and no right to repurchase those shares upon termination of
affiliation of an employee, director or consultant.

In conjunction with the proposed public offering, the board of directors expects to declare a special
dividend that will be paid to the holders of the Company’s common stock as of a record date that will be set by
the board of directors. Payment would be conditioned upon completion of the public offering and it is anticipated
that the dividend would be paid within 25 days after the completion of the public offering.

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by
the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding. Shares of common stock granted to
officers and employees of the Company are included in the computation of weighted average shares outstanding
only after the shares become fully vested. Diluted EPS is computed similar to basic EPS, except the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding is increased to include the effect of dilutive common
stock equivalents, which is comprised of stock options and other stock awards granted under stock-based
compensation plans that were outstanding during the periods.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares outstanding used to compute basic and diluted
EPS is as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2000 2005 2004

(In millions)
Basic weighted averageshares . ........ .. .. ... ... oo 174 183 185
Add: Dilutive common stock equivalents

Stockoptions .......... . 4 5 3
Restricted stockawards .......... ... ... i i Z — 1
Diluted weighted average shares .......... ... ....... ... ...... 180 188 189

H

There were no adjustments to income from continuing operations and income from discontinued
operations in calculating basic and diluted EPS for the years ended January 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term investments in marketable securities, and foreign
currency forward exchange contracts.

The Company invests its available cash principally in U.S. Government and agency securities, corporate
obligations, asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, municipal debt and commercial paper and has
established guidelines relative to diversification and maturities in an effort to maintain safety and liquidity. These
guidelines are periodically reviewed and modified to take advantage of trends in yields and interest rates.
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Although credit risk is limited, the Company’s receivables are concentrated with its principal customers
which are the various agencies of the U.S. Government and commercial customers engaged in work for the U.S.
Government.

Foreign Currency

Financial statements of consolidated international subsidiaries, for which the functional currency is the
local currency, are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at each balance sheet date for assets and
liabilities and a weighted average exchange rate for revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Translation
adjustments are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Transaction
gains and losses are recognized as incurred.

Note 2—Business Segment Information:

The Company provides scientific, engineering, systems integration and technical services and solutions to
all branches of the U.S. military, agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense, the intelligence community, the
U.S. Department of Homeland Security and other U.S. Government civil agencies, as well as to selected
commercial markets. The Company also designs and develops high-technology products. These products include
customized and standard hardware and software, such as automatic equipment identification technology, sensors
and nondestructive imaging and security instruments. Product revenues represented 2% of consolidated revenues
in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

The Company defines its reportable segments using the management approach, which is based on the way
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) manages the operations within the Company for the allocation of
resources, decision making and performance assessment.

Using the management approach, the Company has three reportable segments: Government, Commercial,
and Corporate and Other. The Company’s operating business units are aggregated into the Government or
Commercial segments, depending on the nature of the customers, the contractual requirements and the regulatory
environment governing the business unit’s services. The Corporate and Other segment includes the operations of
the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc., and its internal real estate management subsidiary, Campus
Point Realty Corporation, and various corporate activities, including elimination of intersegment revenues. In
addition, in certain circumstances, for management purposes as determined by the CODM, certain revenue and
expense items related to operating business units are excluded from the evaluation of a business unit’s operating
performance and are reflected in the Corporate and Other segment.

Business units in the Government segment provide technical services and products through contractual
arrangements as either a prime contractor or subcontractor to other contractors, primarily for departments and
agencies of the U.S. Government. Operations in the Government segment are subject to specific regulatory
accounting and contracting guidelines such as Cost Accounting Standards (“CAS”) and Federal Acquisition
Regulations. Business units in the Commercial segment provide technical services and products primarily to
customers in commercial markets and their operations are generally not subject to specific regulatory accounting
or contracting guidelines.

The internal measure of operating income before income taxes (“‘segment operating income”) excludes
losses on impaired intangible assets, non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common
stock and similar items, and includes equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates and the minority
interest in income or loss of consolidated subsidiaries. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as those described in Note 1. Certain corporate expenses are reflected in segment operating income based
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on agreed-upon allocations to the segments or as required by CAS. Corporate expense variances to these
allocations are retained in the Corporate and Other segment. Elimination of intersegment revenues is also
reflected in the Corporate and Other segment. Sales between segments were $3 million, $45 million and $25
million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and were recorded at cost. Asset information by segment is not a
key measure of performance used by the CODM. The Company also monitors capital expenditures by the
business units. Interest income, interest expense and provision for income taxes, as reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are not part of segment operating income and are primarily recorded at the corporate level.

The Company formed SAIC Venture Capital Corporation to manage its investments in publicly traded
and private technology companies. The Company may also spin off technologies that are considered
non-strategic but may bring future value from an investment perspective. These activities are of an investment
nature and are not reported to the CODM as part of the core operating segments of the Company and, therefore,
are shown as “Investment activities” in the reconciliation of total reportable segment operating income to
operating income in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. '

Effective February 1, 2005, the Company no longer allocated an internal interest expense or income
(“Cost of Capital”). Segment information for 2005 and 2004 has been revised to reflect the elimination of Cost of
Capital.

The following table summarizes segment information:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

Revenues:

GOVEINIMENT . . .o\ttt e ettt e e e e $7,289  $6,738  $5,426

Commercial ..... I T 533 521 419

Corporateand Other . .......... ... ... ... ... ivun.. 30) (72) (12)
Total reportable segment revenues . . ........cvvveerneeenn... $7,792  $7,187  $5,833
Segment operating income (loss): .

GOVEIMIMENE .\ vttt i ittt et i $ 4990 § 516 § 442

cCommercial ... e 7 40 28

Corporateand Other . ......... ... .. o, 45 (86) (69)
Total reportable segment operating income .. ................. $ 491 §$ 470 $ 401
Capital expenditures:

GOVEIMIMENT . .ottt et et ettt e eeean, $ 35 § 36 $ 18

Commercial .. ...t i e e e 5 3 2

Corporateand Other . ............ ... ... i, 14 3 95
Total reportable segment and consolidated capital expenditures... $ 54 $§ 42 % 115
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The following table is a summary of depreciation and amortization included in the calculation of
reportable segment operating income:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

Depreciation and amortization:

GOVEITIIMENL . . o . ot ettt e e e e $ 55 $ 40 $ 25
Commercial ... .. v i e 5 6 4
Corporateand Other ........ ... .. ... ... innn.. 10 10 8

Total reportable segment and consolidated depreciation and
AMOTHZALON . . . ot $ 70 $ 56 $ 37

The following table reconciles total reportable segment operating income to the Company’s consolidated
operating income:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004

(In millions)

Total reportable segment operating income: .. ............... $ 491 $ 470 $ 401
Investment activities . .............. .. ... ciiuvnon.. 2 3 G5
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated affiliates .. ..... (5) 5 (5)
Goodwill impairment ........... ... ... i, — — (7
Gain on sale of business units,net .................... — 2 —
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries . . . 13 14 10

Total consolidated operating income ...................... $ 497 $ 488 $ 395

The following tables summarize revenues and long-lived assets, which includes property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, deferred taxes and other assets, by geographic location of the entity that is
performing the services:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

Revenues:
United States .. ..o vt $ 7564 $ 6,980 $ 5,683
United Kingdom .. ........... oo i, 169 161 137
Canada and all other international ................... 59 46 13

Total consolidated revenues .. ......... ..o, $ 7,792 $ 7,187 $ 5,833
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January 31

2006 2005
(In millions)

Long-lived assets:

United SEAtES « ot ottt et e e $ 1,197 $§ 970
United Kingdom ... ... . 27 26
Canada and all other international .. .......... ... ... ... ... ..... 28 28
Total consolidated long-lived assets ... ....... ... ..y $ 1,252 $ 1,024

In 2006, 2005 and 2004, 89%, 86% and 85%, respectively, of the Company’s consolidated revenues were
attributable to prime contracts with the U.S. Government or to subcontracts with other contractors engaged in
work for the U.S. Government and are reflected in the Government segment revenues. As a percentage of
consolidated revenues, customers comprising 10% or more of consolidated revenues werz as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
US Ay .o 16% 13% 13%
U S Navy o e 14% 13% 12%
US AirForce . ... i 10% 11% 11%
Note 3—Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions:
January 31
2006 2005

(In millions)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:

Prepaid €XPenSES . . .o vt e $ 46 $ 51
INVENTOMIES . .ot e 60 57
Pre-contract costs (NOte 1) . ..ottt e 34 43
Income taxes receivable .. ........ i 3 22
Other .. e 49 43
5192 5216
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:

Computers and Other €QUIPIMIENT . . ...\ttt e ettt i e e e it $213  $191
Buildings and improvements . ... ... e e 220 220
Leasehold Improvements . .. ... ... .o e 81 61
Office furniture and fiXtUres . ........ . . i i e 43 39
Land ..o e 48 45
605 556

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .. ............c.ouvinenn... 249 217
5356  $339
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20062005
(In millions)
Other assets:

Equity method investments (NOte 6) .. ... ..ot $23 $2
Cost method INVESIMENLS . ..o v vttt e e i e 38 47
O her .. 51 31

$112 § 98

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Accounts payable . ...... ... $388  $298
Other accrued liabilities . ....... ... . . i i 395 417
Collections in excess of revenues on uncompleted contracts ................. 170 149

$953  $864

Accrued payroll and employee benefits:

Salaries, bonuses and amounts withheld from employees’ compensation ... .... $273 $249
ACCTUEA VACATION . .. vt v vttt ettt et et e e e 181 163
Accrued contributions to employee benefitplans ........... .. ... . ... ... 14 21

$468  $433

Other long-term liabilities:

Accrued pension liabilities ....... ... ... i $24 $19
Deferred compensation .. ...... ...ttt e 44 44
Other . . 43 36

$111 % 99

|

Note 4—Short-term and Long-term Investments in Marketable Securities:

The aggregate cost basis and market value of short-term and long-term available-for-sale investments by
major security type were as follows:

January 31
2006 2005
Cost Market Cost Market
basis value basis value

(In millions)
Short-term investments:

U.S. Government and agency securities .. ... .. $ 139 % 139 § 289 § 287
Corporate obligations ............... ... ... 890 890 449 448
Municipaldebt . ............ ... . ... ... 488 488 358 358
Asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities . . — — 258 257
Other ... o i 142 142 17 17
Total short-term investments . ................... 1,659 1,659 1,371 1,367
Long-term corporate obligations and equity
SECUTILI®S . ... .. 5 5 4 4

$1,664 $1,664 81,375 $1,371
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At January 31, 2006, aggregate gross unrealized gains and losses were not material.

At January 31, 2006, $1,659 million of investments in debt securities have effective maturities less than
one year. Subsequent to January 31, 2006, the Company liquidated all of its short-term investments in marketable
securities.

The net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other investments, including impairment losses consisted
of the following:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
{In millions)

TMpairment 10SSES . . oottt e e $ (6 200 %319
Gross realized gains on sale of marketable securities ............. 1 2 22
Gross realized losses on sale of marketable securities ............. 9 (@) 2)
Net (loss) gain on sale of other investments .. ................... (1) 6 4

815 836 § 5

The impairment losses in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were due to declines in fair value of the Company’s
private equity securities that were deemed to be other-than-temporary. The carrying value of the Company’s
private equity securities as of January 31, 2006 was $38 million.

The gross realized losses on the sale of marketable securities in 2006 were primarily due to the
liquidation of fixed rate securities prior to their stated maturity date to achieve greater liquidity for the Company.
The market value of the securities had been negatively impacted by rising interest rates.

In 2004, the primary component of the gross realized gains on marketable securities was a gain before
income taxes of $17 million from the sale of the Company’s investment in publicly-traded equity securities of
Tellium, Inc. The remainder of the aggregate gain was related to sales of certain other investments.

Note 5—Receivables, Net:
Receivables consisted of the following:

January 31
2006 2005
(In millions)

Billed less allowance for doubtful accounts of $6 million and $2 million at

January 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively .......... ... ... e $1,083  $1,145
Unbilled ... ..o e 411 355
Contract TEIENTIONS . . v v ottt et it e ettt et e et 23 20

$1,517  $1,520
Unbilled receivables consists of costs and fees billable on contract completion or other specified events,
the majority of which is expected to be billed and collected within one year. Contract retentions are billed when
the Company has negotiated final indirect rates with the U.S. Government and, once billed, are subject to audit
and approval by outside third parties. Consequently, the timing of collection of retention balances is outside the
Company’s control. Based on the Company’s historical experience, the majority of the retention balance is
expected to be collected beyond one year.
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Note 6—Acquisitions and Investments in Affiliates:

The Company completed acquisitions of certain business assets and companies in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
which individually and in the aggregate were not considered material business combinations in the year acquired.
In some cases, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding common stock of certain companies while
in other cases, the Company acquired certain specific assets and liabilities. All of these acquisitions have been
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and the operations of the companies acquired have been
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition. The
aggregate purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated
fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets
acquired has been recorded as goodwill.

In 2006, the Company completed four acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of $234 million, which
consisted of $216 million in cash, 390,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that had a fair value of $17
million on the date of issuance and future acquisition payments of $1 million payable once certain conditions
have been met. The preliminary purchase price allocations resulted in identifiable intangible assets of $35 million
(amortizable over a weighted average life of five years) and goodwill of $186 million, $32 million of which is tax
deductible. The Company has not yet obtained all the information required to complete the purchase price
allocations related to three of these acquisitions. The final purchase price allocations will be completed once the
information identified by the Company has been received, which should not be longer than one year from the
dates of acquisition.

In 2005, the Company completed four acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of $236 million, which
consisted of $227 million in cash, 107,000 shares of the Company’s common stock that had a fair value of $4
million on the date of issuance and future acquisition payments of $5 million, all of which has been paid. The
final purchase price allocation resulted in identifiable intangible assets of $44 million (amortizable over a
weighted average life of nine years) and goodwill of $157 million, $33 million of which is tax deductible.

In 2004, the Company completed ten acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of $289 million, which
consisted of $204 million in cash, 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock that had a fair value of $47
million on the dates of issuance, other consideration of $2 million and future acquisition payments of $36
million. The final purchase price allocation resulted in identifiable intangible assets of $41 million (amortizable
over a weighted average life of three years) and goodwill of $215 million, $57 million of which is tax deductible.
Potential contingent payments related to these acquisitions were $11 million, all of which have been paid or
settled as of January 31, 2006.

At January 31, 2006, the Company had 11 equity investments, accounted for under the equity method
with the Company’s direct ownership ranging from 14% to 50%. The Company recognized revenues of $15
million in 2006 and $12 million in 2005 and 2004 from these related parties. The carrying value of the
Company’s equity method investments was $23 million and $20 million at January 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, which includes the excess of the Company’s equity investments over its equity in the underlying net
assets of $4 million in 2006 and 2005. During 2005, the Company recorded an impairment loss of $3 million on
its investment.in a 50% owned joint venture, Data Systems and Solutions, LLC (“DS&S”). The impairment loss
was primarily due to a significant business downturn at DS&S caused by a loss of business and an ongoing
government investigation and is reflected in “Other (expense) income” in the consolidated statements of income.
The Company sold its interest in DS&S in March 2006 as described in Note 19,
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Note 7—Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment were as follows:

Government | Commercial Total

v (In millions)

Goodwill at February 1,2004 .................... $277 $24 $301
ACqUiSitions ... ...t 155 — 155
Foreign currency translation ................. — 1 1
Adjustments ..ol i 1 = 11

Goodwill at January 31,2005 .............. ... .. 443 25 468
ACQUISIHONS . ...t 186 — 186
Foreign currency translation ................. — (H (H
Adjustments ... .. ... . Lo _ 2 — 2

Goodwill at January 31,2006 .................... $631 $24 $655

Il

Goodwill adjustments in 2006 and 2005 were a result of finalization of purchase price allocations related
to prior year acquisitions.

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

January 31
2006 [ 2005
Gross Net Gross Net
carrying Accumulated carrying carrying| Accumulated carrying
value amortization value value amortization value
(In millions)
Amortizable assets:
Customer contracts ....... $ 48 $24 $24 $31 $11 $20
Non-compete agreements . . 25 20 5 32 13 19
Software and technology . . . 33 5 28 5 — 5
Other .................. 6 2 4 7 1 6
Total amortizable intangible
ASSBIS .\ it 112 51 61 75 25 50
Non-amortizable intangible
assets:
Tradenames ............. 2 — 2 — — —
Total intangibie assets ......... $114 $51 $63 $75 $25 $50

I

Customer contracts and non-compete agreements with a gross carrying vz?lue of $3 million became fully
amortized at January 31, 2005 and, therefore, are no longer reflected in the gross ﬂ:arrying value after that date. In
addition, intangible assets arising from acquisitions made prior to February 1, 2005 increased by $7 million due
to the finalization of purchase price allocations. Of this $7 million increase, $5| million represents amortizable
intangible assets and $2 million represents indefinite-life intangible assets. Amornzatxon expense related to

amortizable intangible assets was $29 million, $20 million and $6 million for 2006 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Based on the intangible assets as of January 31, 2006, the estimated annual amortization expense related
to amortizable intangible assets is as follows:

Year Ending January 31 (In millions)
2007 e e $24
2008 e e e 13
2000 L e e e e 10
2000 L 6
20T L o 3
Thereater .« o ot e e __5
s61

Actual amortization expense in future periods could differ from these estimates as a result of acquisitions,
divestitures, impairments and other factors. In 2006 and 2005, impairment losses on intangible assets were not
material. In 2004, the Company did not recognize any impairment losses on intangible assets.

Note 8—Derivative Instruments:

The Company is exposed to certain market risks which are inherent in certain transactions entered into
during the normal course of business. They include sales contracts denominated in foreign currencies,
investments in equity securities and exposure to changing interest rates. The Company has a risk management
policy in place which is used to assess and manage cash flow and fair value exposures. The policy permits the
use of derivative instruments with certain restrictions and appropriate authorization. The Company presently uses
derivative instruments to manage exposures to foreign currency and interest rate risks and uses natural hedges to
minimize exposure for net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Company does not hold derivative
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements in February 2004 (“2004 swap agreements”) to
convert the fixed interest payments on its $100 million 6.75% notes (Note 13) to a variable rate, based on a
rolling six-month LIBOR plus a margin. The interest rate swap agreements were entered into to better balance
the fixed and variable rate long-term debt obligations. These swap agreements are designated as fair value hedges
of changes in the notes’ fair value and were fully effective in offsetting the change in fair value of the underlying
notes. The fair value of the 2004 swap agreements at January 31, 2006 was a liability of $3 million, of which $1
million and $2 million are reflected in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively.

In 2004, the Company modified its prior plan for financing the $91 million purchase of land and buildings
under two operating leases and issued $300 million of fixed rate debt (Note 13). In anticipation of this debt
issuance, the Company entered into interest rate lock agreements to lock in the effective borrowing rate on
portions of the anticipated debt financing. Due to declines in interest rates from the dates of entering into the
treasury lock contracts to the date of the debt issuance, the Company was required to pay $5 million to settle the
treasury lock contracts upon the debt issuance. This loss of $5 million before income taxes is being amortized to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. The treasury lock contracts were designated as cash flow
hedges that were fully effective, therefore, the net of tax loss of $3 million was recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

The Company entered into four forward starting interest rate swap agreements in January 2002 (“2002
swap agreements”) pursuant to its previous plan to use five-year variable interest rate mortgage to finance the
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purchase of the land and buildings noted above. The mortgage financing would have required payments to a third
party lender based on a variable interest rate. Under the terms of the 2002 swap|agreements, the Company would
either pay to or receive from the swap agreements’ counterparty an amount Wh‘iCh would effectively have made
the net cash outflow a fixed amount. The 2002 swap agreements were designated as cash flow hedges and were
fully effective through May 29, 2003 with cumulative net of tax losses of $9 mi‘llion recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity. As of May 29, 2003, the 2002 swap agreements
were no longer designated in a cash flow hedging relationship and, therefore, all future changes in fair value will
be recorded directly into income through August 2008, the expiration date of the swap agreements. The
cumulative loss before income taxes of $14 million on the 2002 swap agreemen‘ts through May 29, 2003 is being
amortized as additional interest expense over the contemplated five-year mortgage term that would have ended in

August 2008.

In conjunction with the modified financing plan which resulted in the issuance of fixed rate debt in June
2003, on May 29, 2003, the Company entered into additional interest rate\ swap agreements (2003 swap
agreements”) to offset the effects of the 2002 swap agreements. The net change in the fair values of the 2002 and

2003 swap agreements since May 29, 2003 was not material and was recorded as additional interest expense. At

January 31, 2006, the combined fair value of the 2003 and 2002 swap agreeménts was $7 million, of which $3

million and $4 million are reflected in other accrued liabilities and other long-terhl liabilities, respectively.

Foreign Currency Risk

Although the majority of the Company’s transactions are in U.S. |dollars, some transactions are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company’s objective in managing its exposure to foreign currency rate

fluctuations is to mitigate adverse fluctuations in earnings and cash flows a?sociated with foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations. The Company currently manages cash flow exposure of receivables, payables and

anticipated transactions through the use of natural hedges and foreign curren‘cy forward exchange contracts.

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts are contracts requiring the Company to exchange a stated quantity
of foreign currency for a fixed amount of a second currency, typically U.S.‘\ dollars. At January 31, 2006,
currencies hedged were the U.S. dollar and British pound. The Company has designated certain of its foreign
currency forward exchange contracts as cash flow hedges of transactions primarily related to sales contracts and
receivables forecasted to occur by July 2006. The effective portion of the change in the fair value of these

derivatives is recorded in comprehensive income and recognized in the income statement when the related

hedged item affects earnings. Contracts designated as cash flow hedges were fu‘lly effective in 2006, 2005 and
2004 and net of tax gains and losses recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in

stockholders’ equity were not material.

Note 9—Revolving Credit Facilities:

The Company has two revolving credit facilities (“credit facilities™) totalil‘lg $750 million with a group of
financial institutions that provide for (i) a five-year revolving credit facility of up to $500 million, which allows
borrowings until July 2007 and (ii) a five-year revolving credit facility of up|to $250 million, which allows
borrowings until July 2009. Borrowings under the credit facilities are unsecu‘red and bear interest at a rate

determined, at the Company’s option, based on either LIBOR plus a margin or a defined base rate. The Company
pays a facility fee on the total commitment amount and a fee if utilization exceeds 50% of the total commitment

amount. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company did not borrow under either of its credit facilities.

The Company has a firm fixed-price contract with the Greek govemme‘nt with bonding requirements,
approximately $109 million of which have been met through the issuance of standby letters of credit under the

$500 million five-year revolving credit facility. The standby letters of credit reduce the amount available for
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borrowings under the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility. The Company pays fees for the standby
letters of credit issued under the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility, but the outstanding standby
letters of credit are not considered borrowings and the Company does not incur related interest costs. The terms
of the standby letters of credit require them to remain outstanding until the customer has formally accepted the
system pursuant to the contract. The Company is in dispute with the customer on this contract as discussed in
Note 19. The Company does not expect to issue any additional standby letters of credit for this contract under the
$500 million five-year revolving credit facility.

As of January 31, 2006, the entire amount under the $250 million five-year revolving credit facility was
available and $391 million of the $500 million five-year revolving credit facility was available. These credit
facilities contain customary affirmative and negative covenants. The financial covenants contained in the credit
facilities require the Comipany to maintain a trailing four quarter interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.5 to 1.0
and a ratio of consolidated funded debt to a trailing four quarter earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization of not more than 3.0 to 1.0. These covenants also restrict certain of the Company’s activities,
including, among other things, the Company’s ability to create liens, dispose of assets, merge or consolidate with
other entities, and create guaranty obligations. If the Company completes the public offering and related events
described in Note 1, the Company would need to obtain consents under these revolving credit facilities prior to
the merger and payment of a special dividend. The credit facilities also contain customary events of default,
including, among others, defaults based on certain bankruptcy and insolvency events; nonpayment; cross-defaults
to other debt; breach of specified covenants; change of control, and material inaccuracy of representations and
warranties. As of January 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all the financial covenants under the
credit facilities. '

Note 10—Employee Benefit Plans:

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company merged the Employee Stock Retirement Plan (“ESRP”) into the
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (“401(k)”) to create a combined plan renamed the SAIC Retirement Plan (“SRP”).
The SRP is both a 401(k) plan and an employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”). Any shares of Company
common stock that were held in the 401(k) and ESRP are now held within the ESOP portion of the SRP. The
SRP allows eligible participants to defer a portion of their income through payroll deductions. Employee
deferrals ‘are fully vested and are not taxable to the participant until distributed from the SRP following
termination, retirement, permanent disability or death and may be matched by the Company.

Employees are eligible to immediately participate in the SRP and receive the Company matching
contribution upon their employment with the Company. The Company’s matching contribution is a 50% match
for each dollar an employee contributes to the 401(k), up to 6% of the employee’s eligible compensation. In
addition, the Company may also provide profit sharing contributions in cash and Company common stock. These
contributions are based upon amounts determined annually by the board of directors and are allocated to
participants’ accounts based on their annual eligible compensation. The Company recognizes the fair value of the
Company’s common stock in the year of contribution as compensation expense. Employees must meet a
one-year eligibility period to qualify for any profit sharing contributions made by the Company. Participants’
interests in the Company’s matching and profit sharing contributions vest 20% per year in the first through fifth
year of service. Participants also become fully vested upon reaching age 59 V2, permanent disability or death. The
Company’s contributions, including the matching contributions, expensed under the ESRP, 401(k) and SRP were
$121 million, $95 million and $103 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Any participant who leaves the Company, whether by retirement or otherwise, is no longer required to

divest their Company common stock holdings that have been retained more than five years in the SRP and, based
on the eligibility requirements, may be able to elect to receive either cash or shares of Company common stock
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as a distribution from their SRP stock account. Shares of Company common stock distributed from the SRP bear
a limited put right that, if exercised, would require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of the shares at
their then current fair value during two specified 60-day periods following distrit%ution. If the shares are not put
to the Company during the specified periods, the shares no longer bear a put right, and the Company will not be
required to repurchase the shares. If the initial public offering is completed (Note |1), the limited put right feature
on existing shares will expire and new shares distributed from the SRP will no longer be eligible for a put right.
At January 31, 2006, the SRP held 67 million shares of common stock with a fair[ value of $2.9 billion and there
were 5 million shares distributed from the SRP with a limited put right that remained outstanding with a fair
value of $202 million. On March 2, 2006, the second period available to exercise the put right expired and

3 million shares with a fair value of $123 million remained outstanding.

The Company has a principal bonus compensation plan, which prolvides for bonuses to reward
outstanding performance. Bonuses are awarded in the form of cash, fully vested or vesting shares of the
Company’s common stock. The board of directors or its committee administerinz‘g the bonus compensation plan
may at any time amend, suspend, or terminate the plan. Awards of vesting shares of the Company’s common
stock vest at the rate of 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% after one, two, three and four years, respectively. Except as
otherwise provided in the award agreement, outstanding bonus awards become fdlly vested upon the occurrence
of a change in control of the Company. The fair market value of these vesting|shares awarded is recorded as
unearned compensation, which is included in stockholders’ equity and amortized over the vesting period. The
amounts expensed under this plan were $118 million, $121 million and $106 m!illion in 2006, 2005 and 2004,

respectively. }

The Company has a Stock Compensation Plan (“SCP”) and Management Stock Compensation Plan
(“MSCP”), together referred to as the Stock Compensation Plans. The board of directors may at any time amend
or terminate the Stock Compensation Plans. The Stock Compensation Plans prov‘ide for awards in share units to
eligible employees. Benefits from these plans are payable in shares of the Company’s common stock that are
held in trust to fund benefit payments to participants. Participants’ interests in these share units vest on a seven
year schedule at the rate of one-third at the end of each of the fifth, sixth and seventh years following the date of
the award. In 2006, the board of directors amended the vesting period for|new awards under the Stock
Compensation Plans. New awards issued on or after January 1, 2006 vest 100% c‘xfter four years and participants
are no longer allowed to elect their distribution option. SCP participants receive a lump sum distribution of their
awards in shares of Company common stock once they become vested while the MSCP participants receive a
distribution of their awards in shares of Company common stock following termination or retirement. Upon a
change in control of the Company, participant accounts will become fully vested and will be immediately
distributed. The fair value of shares awarded under these plans is recorded as unearned compensation which is
included in stockholders’ equity and amortized over the vesting period. The amounts expensed under these plans

were $6 million, $7 million and $6 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) WhiCl"l allows eligible employees to

purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at a discount of 15% of thg fair market value. The ESPP

terminates on July 31, 2007, unless terminated earlier by the board of directors. The Company has not recognized
any expense under this plan because it is a non-compensatory plan. Effective February 1, 2006, in accordance
with SFAS No. 123(R), the ESPP became compensatory, requiring that 15‘% discount be recognized as
compensation expense. The pro forma effect on net income and earnings per share of the discount is presented in
Note 1. At January 31, 2006, 8 million shares of the Company’s common stock were reserved for issuance under

the ESPP.

The Company maintains two deferred compensation plans for the benefit of key executives and directors
and allows eligible participants to elect to defer all or a portion of their annual bonus compensation. The
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Company makes no contributions under the Keystaff Deferral Plan (“KDP”) but does credit participant accounts
for deferred compensation amounts and interest earned. Interest is accrued based on the Moody’s Seasoned
Corporate Bond Rate (5.59% in 2006). Deferred balances will generally be paid upon termination. Under the Key
Executive Stock Deferral Plan (“KESDP”), eligible participants may elect to defer all or a portion of their annual
bonus compensation in share units. The Company makes no contributions to the accounts of KESDP participants.
Benefits from the KESDP are payable in shares of the Company’s common stock that are held in a trust for the
benefit of KESDP participants. Deferred balances will generally be paid upon retirement or termination.

Note 11-——Pension Plan:

The following tables set forth the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets for the Company’s foreign defined benefit pension plan for certain employees in the United Kingdom. The
plan has a January 31 measurement date.

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005
(In millions)

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year .................... $ 95 $76
SEIVICE COSE . . vttt ittt e e e 3 3
Interest COSt ... oottt e 5 4
Plan participants’ contributions ............ ... ... ... 1 1
Actarial 1oss .. ... . 16 8
Benefitspaid .. ... e ¢)) (D)
Foreign currency translation ... ...... ... .. ... 6) 4
Benefit obligation atendof year ......................... $113 $95
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ............... $ 63 $53
Actual gainonplanassets ......... .., 13 5
Company contributions ............ .. . i 3 3
Plan participants’ contributions ............ ... . ... ... .. 1 1
Benefitspaid .. ... (D) (D
Foreign currency translation .......... N 4) 2
Fair value of plan assets atendof year .................... $ 75 $63
Funded statusatendofyear ........... .. ... i i, $(38) $(32)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ........... .. oo i, 42 38
Net prepaid benefit cost . .......ccooieeeiiiiinneen., $ 4 $ 6
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Accrued benefit Cost . ...t $(24) $(19)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (pre-tax) ......... 28 25
Net prepaid benefit cost ...... .o $ 4 $ 6
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The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $100 million and $82 million
at January 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The fair value of the pension assets \was less than the accumulated

benefit obligation at January 31, 2006 and 2005. As a result, a minimum pension [

iability adjustment, net of tax,

of $3 million, $3 million, and $4 million was included in other comprehensive income in 2006, 2005 and 2004,

respectively.

Amounts for the defined benefit pension plan with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan

assets were as follows:

Projected benefit obligation ........... ... ... ... o il
Accumulated benefit obligation ............ ... ... o i
Fair value of planassets ........... ... ... . i,

January 31

2006 2005
(In millions)
....... $113 $95
....... $100  $82
....... $ 75 $63

The components of net periodic benefit cost to the Company of this plan were as follows:

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
SEIVICE COSE . . vttt ittt e e e
Interest coSt . .. ..ot e
Expected returnonplanassets ............ ... ... ...,
Amortization of actuarial loss ...........................

Net periodic benefitcost ... ....... ... i i

Actuarial Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used in determining the benefit ob
benefit cost of pension were as follows:

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at the plan’s
measurement date:
Discountrate . . ...ovvvi it
Rate of compensation increase . .............c..cvenenonn..

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discountrate . ...t
Expected returnonplanassets .............. ... oo,
Rate of compensation inCrease . ...........ccoviviennen..n

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

$3 $3 $2

5 4 3
e @}
B .
$5 $4 34

ligations and the net periodic

January 31
2006 2005
4.7% 53%
3.6% 3.6%
Year Ended January 31
2006 2005
5.3% 5.5%
7.6% 8.0%
3.6% 3.5%
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The long-term rate of return assumption represents the expected average earnings on funds invested or to
be invested by the plan. This return is determined in consultation with investment advisors and is based on a
variety' of factors including long-term historical market returns for the various asset classes in the plans and

review of peer data. A weighting of these asset class returns, based on the anticipated long-term allocation of the
asset classes in the plans, is performed to determine an overall average expected long-term rate of return.

Plan Assets

As of the measurement date, pension plan assets were allocated as follows:

January 31
2006 2005
International equity SECUTILIES . . ..ottt ittt e 1%  75%
Debtsecurities . ... e 21 19
Realestateand cash ... ... ... . . e 8 6

100%  100%

The Company’s overall investment strategy for all pension plan assets is to utilize a total return
investment approach whereby a mix of equity securities, fixed income, real estate and cash investments are used
to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established through
consideration of plan demographics, plan liabilities, plan funded status and overall corporate financial condition.
The investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of international equity securities, fixed income securities,
and real estate investments. Target asset allocation as prescribed by the investment strategy is substantially
similar to actual allocation at measurement date.

Cash Flows

During 2007, the Company expects to contribute approximately $6 million to the defined benefit pension
plan. Estimated annual benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
$1 million for each of the years in 2007 to 2011. Total estimated benefit payments for 2012 through 2016 are
expected to be $11 million.

Other

The Company also makes contributions to a defined benefit pension plan for employees working on one
U.S. Government contract. As part of the contractual agreement, the customer reimburses the Company for
contributions made to the plan as allowable under cost accounting standards. If the Company were to cease to be
the contractor as a result of a recompetition process, this defined benefit pension plan and related plan assets and
liabilities would transfer to the new contractor. Any excess ERISA required contributions that were made by the
Company and not currently reimbursed under the contract would be settled at contract termination by the new
contractor. The Company currently has a receivable for $2 million representing excess contributions made under
ERISA but not currently reimbursed under the contract because it exceeds the allowable amount under CAS.

In addition, certain employees at AMSEC LLC, a consolidated joint venture, continue to participate in a
defined benefit pension and a retiree medical and life insurance plan sponsored by the other joint venture
participant. AMSEC LLC recorded expense of $1 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004 for payments made to the other
joint venture partner for the cost of the benefits these plans provide.
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Note 12—Income Taxes:

Income from continuing operations before income taxes included the following:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004

(In millions)
United SEAES . . .ttt e .. %469  $386 3354
Foreign ... . . .. 15 17 10

8484 3403 $364

The provision for income taxes included the following:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

Current:
Federal ... ... i e .. %169 $ 83 $ 95
N 1 .. ) (18) 19
Foreign ... ... e .. 10 8 4
Deferred:
Federal ...... ... .. . . .. 2D 54 19
R 721 1< PP .. 9) 4 3
FOreIgN . .ot e L. ) —

$139  $131 $140

Deferred income taxes are provided for differences in the basis of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of the following:

January 31

2006 2005

(In millions)

Accrued Vacation PAY « . .ottt et e $52 § 44
Investments ....... ... .. b 25 19
Deferred compensation ... .... ... cuueriiiiin e 29 29
Vesting stock bonuses ...... ... ... . e 18 18
S AXES .« ot ittt e e 4 6
Accrued Habilities . ... .. . e e — 5
Unrealized net losses on marketable securities ........................... — 2
Total deferred tax aSSes .. ..ottt e e 128 123
Employee benefit contributions . ...... ... ... . i i e N )
Deferred revenue .. ...t e e (38 (84)
Depreciation and amortization . . ............e it e (D ¢))
Other o e e 22) (10)
Total deferred tax liabilities ......... ... ... o i onnntn (68)  (104)

Net deferred tax assets, before valuation allowance ................0....... 60 19
Valuation allowance , . .. ... oot 3) (2)

Net deferred tax @SSets .. oottt vttt e e e $57 §% 17
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A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate (35%) to income from continuing operations before income taxes follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(In millions)

Amount computed at Statutory 1ate ... ... .. $170 $141 $ 127
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit ................ 19 9 14
Change in accruals for tax contingencies ................... (50) 19 (D
Non-deductibleitems .............civiiiviriiiinennnn. 4 1 1
Non-taxable intereSt inCOMe .. ......covvint e e CY) 8 8
$139 $ 131 $ 140
Effective incometaxrate ........... ... 28.7% 32.5% 38.4%

The lower effective tax rate for 2006 was primarily due to the reversal of $50 million in tax accruals for
tax contingencies as a result of settlements of federal and state audits and audit issues in amounts different than
the recorded accruals for tax contingencies, as well as the expiration of statutes on open tax years.

Income taxes paid in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $590 million, $34 million and $79 million, respectively,
and in 2006, included income tax payments of approximately $280 million related to the sale of Telcordia
(Note 18).

At January 31, 2006, the Company had approximately $50 million of federal net operating loss carry
forwards. The Company anticipates that it will fully utilize these carry forwards before they begin to expire in the
year 2025.

The Company is subject to routine compliance reviews by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), which is
currently auditing 2002 to 2004, and other taxing jurisdictions on various tax matters, including challenges to
various positions the Company has taken. The Company has recorded liabilities for tax contingencies for open
years based upon its best estimate of the taxes ultimately to be paid. As of January 31, 2006, the income taxes
payable balance included $113 million for tax contingencies. The income taxes payable at January 31, 2006 also
includes deposits made with various tax authorities for anticipated tax payments due on prior tax periods. While
the Company believes it has adequate accruals for tax contingencies, there is no assurance that the tax authorities
will not assert that the Company owes taxes in excess of its accruals, or that there will not be accruals in excess
of the final settlement amounts agreed to by the tax authorities.
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Note 13—Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt:

Notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following:

January 31
2006 2005
(In millions)
S5.5% notes QUE 2033 L. $ 296 $ 296
6.25% NOtES AUE 2012 ..o\ v e e 548 548
7.125% 00tes dUE 2032 ++ .+t 248 248
6.75% NOtes U 2008 . . ... oot L. 94 95
3-yearnote due 2006 ... .. ... e 17 30
Othernotes payable .. ..., .. i i 36 68
1,239 1,285
Less Current POTtOM « . . v v vt e ettt e 47 70

51192 $1.215

In 2004, the Company completed an offering of $300 million of senior unsecured notes (“*5.5% notes™).
The 5.5% notes are due on July 1, 2033 with interest payable on a semi-annual b'%lsis beginning January 1, 2004.
The note discounts, issuance costs and the loss on the treasury lock contracts (N[‘ote 8) are amortized to interest
expense, using the effective interest method, which results in an effective interest rate of 5.8%. The fair value of

the 5.5% notes was less than the carrying value by $19 million at January 31, 2006.

In 2003, the Company issued $550 million of 6.25% senior unsecured notes (“6.25% notes”) and $250
million of 7.125% senior unsecured notes (“7.125% notes™). The 6.25% notes apd the 7.125% notes are due on
July 1, 2012 and July 1, 2032, respectively, with interest payable semi-annually Ibeginning January 1, 2003. The
note discounts, issuance costs and the loss on the treasury lock contracts (Note 8) are amortized to interest
expense, which results in an effective interest rate of 6.5% for the 6.25% notes a‘nd 7.43% for the 7.125% notes.
The fair value of the 6.25% notes and 7.125% notes exceeded the carrying value by $20 million and $38 miilion,

respectively, at January 31, 2006.

In 1998, the Company issued $100 million of 6.75% senior unsecured notes with a nominal discount
(“6.75% notes’) which are due February 1, 2008 with interest payable semi-annrually beginning August 1, 1998.
The 6.75% notes have an effective interest rate of 8.3%, due principally to the amortization of a loss on a forward
treasury lock agreement, the discount on issuance of the notes and underwriting Fees associated with the offering.
The fair value of the 6.75% notes exceeded the carrying value by $9 million at January 31, 2006. In 2005, the

Company entered into interest rate swaps related to this debt as described in Note 8.

The Company is subject to certain restrictions on the notes described aPove, such as limitations on liens
and sale and leaseback transactions. As of January 31, 2006, the Company was in compliance with these

restrictions.

In conjunction with the acquisition of a business, in 2004, the Company’s 55% owned joint venture,
AMSEC LLC, entered into a 3-year term note for $45 million (*3-year note”)|maturing December 1, 2006. The
3-year note is secured by certain assets of the joint venture. Principal is p§id quarterly and interest is paid
monthly. The interest rate is adjusted monthly based on 30-day LIBOR plus BS basis points and was 5.24% at
January 31, 2006.
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The Company has various other notes payable with interest rates from 2.9% to 6.0% that are due on
various dates through 2016.

Maturities of notes payable and long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ending January 31 (In millions)
2007 o e e $ 47
2008 L e e 1
2000 L e 101
2000 L 1
200 e e e 1
2012 and after . . ..o 1,103
Total principal payments . ......... .t e 1,254
Less unamortized diSCOUNt . .. .. ... i e i e e 15
$1,239

Note 14—Comprehensive Income and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss).. Other
comprehensive income (loss) represents certain components of revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are
included in comprehensive income but are excluded from net income. These amounts are recorded directly as an
adjustment to stockholders’ equity, net of tax, and were as follows:

Year Ended January 31 !
2006 2005 2004 |
(In millions)

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . ................. $(2) $ 2 $ 2
Deferred taxes ... ...t 1 — H
Net foreign currency translation adjustments .. .......... e 2 1
Unrealized (loss) gain on marketable securities .............. 3 (10) 7
Reclassification of net realized loss (gain) . ................. 8 2 (19)
Deferred taxes . ..ottt e __(_1_) 2 5
Net unrealized gain (loss) on marketabie securities . ... ... _4 6) D
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments .................. — — (12)
Reclassification of net realized loss on derivative instruments . . 3 4 2
Deferred taxes .. ..ot __(_] ) (1) 4
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives ............... _g 3 6)
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax ........... (1) %) @)
$4 (6) $(16)
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss were as follows

January 31

2006 2005

(In millions)

Foreign currency translation adjustments ..............c..ovvurinaddun.nn.. $ @ $—
Unrealized net loss on derivative instruments .................... ....... (1 (13)
Unrealized net loss on marketable securities ................ ... odivun... — 4)
Minimum pension liability adjustments ........... ... ... ...... ... ..., 20y (19)

562 366

As of January 31, 2006, $2 million of the unrealized net loss on derivative instruments is expected to be
recognized as expense within the next 12 months.

Note 15—Common Stock and Options:

The Company has options outstanding under the 1999 Stock Incentive F‘lan. The 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan provides the Company and its affiliates’ employees, directors and consultants the opportunity to receive
stock options, stock appreciation rights, vested stock awards, restricted stock | awards, restricted stock units,
performance awards, and other similar types of stock awards. The plan also provides that, except as provided in
an award agreement, outstanding awards will become fully vested upon the occurrence of a change in control of

the Company. Options are granted with exercise prices equal to the fair market v‘alue at the date of grant and for

terms not greater than ten years. Options outstanding at January 31, 2006 were g;Jranted with terms of five years.
Options granted under these plans generally become exercisable 20%, 20%, 20%, and 40% after one, two, three

and four years, respectively.

A summary of changes in outstanding options under the plans during the three years ended January 31,
2006, were as follows:

Shares of
Shares of Wei‘ghted‘ common stock
common stock average exercisable
under options  exercise price  under options
{In millions) (In millions)
February 1,2003 .................... 44 $%S.54 15
Options granted . ................ 10 $%9.14
Options canceled . ............... 3) $28.60
Options exercised ............... ) $15.26
January 31,2004 .................... 42 $28.50 15
Options granted . . ............... 7 $36.68
Options canceled ................ (2) , $§0.38
Options exercised . .............. (10) $23.20
January 31,2005 ....... ... ... ... 37 $§1 44 14
Options granted . ... ............. 6 $41.10
Options canceled ................ (6) $32.00
Options exercised ............... 9) $29.48
January 31,2006 .................... 28 $34.27 9
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As of January 31, 2006, 53 million shares of common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of
options which are outstanding or which may be granted.

A summary of options outstanding as of January 31, 2006 was as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Weighted average Weighted average

Range of average remaining average remaining

exercise Options exercise contractual Options exercise contractual
prices outstanding  price life exercisable  price life

(In millions) (In years) (In millions) (In years)
$28.31t0 $29.02 ... 7 $28.65 2.1 2 $28.64 2.1
$30.20 to $31.79 ... 4 $31.00 1.0 3 $30.92 .6
$32.27 to $32.95 ... 5 $32.90 1.1 3 $32.86 1.1
$33.06 to $36.52 ... 5 $36.33 3.1 1 $36.02 2.9
$37.31 to $40.55 ... 6 $40.10 4.1 — — —
$41.80to $43.39 ... 1 $43.10 4.7 — —_ —

28 9

The Company has restricted stock awards in the form of vesting shares outstanding under the 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan, the bonus compensation plan and the Stock Compensation Plans (Note 10). The Company
granted 1 million shares of vesting stock in 2006 and 2 million shares in 2005 and 2004. The weighted average
grant date fair values were $41.04, $36.91 and $29.57 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 16—Leases:

The Company occupies most of its facilities under operating leases. Most of the leases require the
Company to pay maintenance and operating expenses such as taxes, insurance and utilities and also contain
renewal options extending the leases from one to twenty years. Certain of the leases contain purchase options and
provisions for periodic rate escalations to reflect cost-of-living increases. Certain equipment, primarily computer-
related, is leased under short-term or cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for facilities and equipment was
$126 million, $109 million and $107 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which is net of sublease
income of $7 million, $6 million and $5 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In 2004, the Company was awarded a contract with the Greek Government (Note 19) that requires the
Company to lease certain equipment under an operating lease from a subcontractor for ten years. The lease term
commences as soon as the development and integration of the system under contract is completed and accepted
by the customer. The terms of the customer contract and lease agreement provide that if the customer defaults on
its payments to the Company to cover the future lease payments, then the Company is not required to make the
lease payments to the subcontractor. Consequently, the maximum contingent lease liability of $91 million at
January 31, 2006 is not reflected in the future minimum lease commitments table below and such amount has not
been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
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Minimum lease commitments, primarily for facilities under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at
January 31, 2006 are as follows:

Operating lease  Sublease

Year Ending January 31 coinmitment income
(In millions)
2007 $102 8
2008 L e e e 66 6
2000 .. 7 4
2000 . 31 2
200l e e e 16 —
2012 andafter ... .. e 37 —
$300 $20

As of January 31, 2006, the Company had capital lease obligations of $4 million that are payable over the
next four years.

Note 17—Supplementary Income Statement and Cash Flow Information:

Depreciation and amortization expense for property, plant and equlpment and assets acquired under
capital leases was $41 million, $36 million and $30 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.

Independent research and development costs of $27 million, $25 million|and $19 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, were included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Interest paid amounted to $81 million, $87 million and $73 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Note 18—Discontinued Operations:
Telcordia

On March 15, 2005, the Company completed the sale of Telcordia to TTIHolding Corporation (“Buyer”),
an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and Providence Equity Partners Inc. The initial sale price of $1.35 billion
was subject to a working capital adjustment, reduction for the net proceeds fronfl a sale leaseback transaction of
certain Telcordia-owned real estate between Telcordia and an unrelated third party in conjunction with the
closing of the sale of Telcordia, and other adjustments as agreed upon between the Buyer and the Company.
During 2006, the Company finalized the closing balance sheet and working capital adjustments with the Buyer,

resolved certain sales tax matters and recorded a gain on sale before income taxeé of $871 million.
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During 2006, the adjusted cash proceeds from the sale, including proceeds from the sale leaseback

transaction that was entered into in connection with the sale of Telcordia and after tax gain on sale were as
follows:

(In millions)

Initial SAle PIICE ..\ttt e e $1,350

Less: Working capital adjustments . ............c...o ittt (244)

Direct and incremental selling costs ........... ... ... . o L (34)
Proceeds received from sale of Telcordia and real estate .................... 1,072
Less: Accrued liabilities for other purchase price adjustments per the definitive

stock purchase agreements and related amendments ...................... (2)
Adjusted sales price for Telcordia business and real estate . .................. 1,070
Less:

Net book basis of assets and liabilities, including cash of $7 million ....... (199)
Gain on sale before INCOME AXES . . . .ottt ittt 871
Provision for iInCOME taXes ... ... ..ttt e 325
Gain on sale, net Of INCOMIE tAXES .+« v v ot v et e et et e et e e e e $ 546

The Company is entitled to receive additional amounts as contingent sales price, including all of the net
proceeds from any judgment or settlement of the litigation Telcordia initiated against Telkom South Africa and
50% of the net proceeds Telcordia receives in connection with the prosecution of certain patent rights of
Telcordia as described in Note 19. In addition to customary indemnifications to the Buyer, the Company -has
indemnified the Buyer for all income tax obligations on and through the date of close and has indemnified the
Buyer against any loss Telcordia may incur as a result of an adverse judgment in the Telkom South Africa
litigation. While the Company believes it has adequate accruals for these contingencies, the ultimate resolution of
these matters could differ from the amounts accrued. The impact of these future contingent payments or
contingent purchase price proceeds as well as changes in estimates for these items, if any, will continue to be
reflected as discontinued operations in the period in which they arise.

As a result of the sale of Telcordia, the Company’s common stock is no longer an investment choice in
the Telcordia 401(k) Plan. As of January 31, 2006, the Telcordia 401(k) Plan held 3.5 million shares of the
Company’s common stock, which had a fair value of $156 million. The Company no longer has a right of
repurchase under the terms of its Restated Certificate of Incorporation with respect to the shares of the
Company’s common stock held by the Telcordia 401(k) Plan or any other contractual right to repurchase these
shares. However, the Company agreed with Telcordia to provide an opportunity for the Telcordia 401(k) Plan to
sell shares of the Company’s Class A common stock in any trade in which its retirement plans have such an
opportunity prior to completion of the public offering. Further, the Company agreed that if the public offering is
completed, the Telcordia 401(k) Plan will have the same opportunity to sell shares of Class A preferred stock of
SAIC, Inc. as other stockholders generally, but will not have the opportunity to sell such shares in any additional
opportunities provided to the Company’s retirement plans that are not otherwise provided to other stockholders
generally.
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The operating results of Telcordia have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods

presented. Telcordia’s results of operations had previously been reporte‘:d as the Non-Regulated
Telecommunications segment in 2004. A summary of Telcordia’s operating results is as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
j (In millions)

Revenue ............oiiiirninininen. I $ 89 $874 $887
Cost and expenses:
COSTOF TEVENUES -+« v v e e e e et e et e e e e e e et e 57 489 484

Selling, general and administrative expenses, including
depreciation and amortization of $30 million and $44 million

in 2005 and 2004, respectively ........ ... .. i, .28 235 258
Other (expense) income, net . .. .......oovtvniievenenenn.. .. — (D 1
Income before income taxes .. ...... .t 4 149 146
(Benefit) provision for income taxes . ......... .. . i iin... (32) 16 19 -
Income from discontinued operations .................... ..., $ 36 $133 $127

In 2006, Telcordia’s operating results reflect the period prior to the sale of February 1, 2005 through
March 14, 2005. In addition, during 2006, after the sale of Telcordia, an income ta‘x benefit of $32 million related
to Telcordia’s discontinued operations was recorded to reflect the resolution of certain tax contingencies of

Telcordia that related to its operations prior to the sale.
INTESA Joint Venture

In 2003, the Company’s foreign joint venture, INTESA, ceased operations and was classified as
discontinued operations. As described in Note 19, in 2005, the Company receiveq a $6 million settlement related
to an insurance claim. This claim is considered a recovery of prior losses that were recorded as part of the
discontinued operations and, therefore, has been recorded as a gain from discontinued operations of $4 million,
net of income tax expense of $2 million. INTESA and the Company are involved in various legal proceedings

relating to INTESA as described in Note 19.
Note 19—Commitments and Contingencies:
Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds

The Company has outstanding letters of credit aggregating $266 million |at January 31, 2006, principally
related to guarantees on contracts with domestic commercial and foreign government customers. Of the total
outstanding letters of credit, $234 million was related to the firm fixed-price contract with the Greek government
described below, $109 million of which was issued under the Company’s five year revolving credit facility
(Note 9). The Company also has outstanding surety bonds aggregating $78 million, principally related to

performance and payment type bonds.
Telkom South Africa
The Company’s former Telcordia subsidiary instituted arbitration proceedings before the International

Chamber of Commerce (“ICC”) against Telkom South Africa in March 2001 as a result of a contract dispute.
Telcordia is seeking to recover damages of approximately $130 million, plus interest at a rate of 15.5%. Telkom
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South Africa counterclaimed, seeking substantial damages from Telcordia, including repayment of
approximately $97 million previously paid to Telcordia under the contract and the excess costs of reprocuring a
replacement system, estimated by Telkom South Africa to be $234 million. On September 27, 2002, Telcordia
prevailed in the initial phase of the arbitration. The arbitrator found that Telkom South Africa repudiated the
contract and dismissed Telkom South Africa’s counterclaims against Telcordia. The damages to be recovered by
Telcordia were to be determined in a second phase of the arbitration. Telkom South Africa successfully
challenged the arbitrator’s partial award in the Company’s favor in the South African trial court and the
Company has appealed this decision to the South African Supreme Court. In a separate proceeding, the Company
unsuccessfully attempted to have its partial arbitration award confirmed by the U.S. District Court (New Jersey).
The Company has appealed the ruling of U.S. District Court (New Jersey) to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Third Circuit. Oral arguments were held on January 13, 2006 and the parties are awaiting the decision.

On March 15, 2005, the Company sold Telcordia to an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and Providence
Equity Partners Inc. (Note 18). Pursuant to the definitive stock purchase agreement relating to the sale, the
Company is entitled to receive all of the net proceeds from any judgment or settlement with Telkom South
Africa, and, if this dispute is settied or decided adversely against Telcordia, the Company is obligated to
indemnify the buyer of Telcordia against any loss that may result from such an outcome.

Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved in the dispute and the uncertainty of
litigation in general, the outcome of the arbitration and the related court actions are not presently determinable,
however, an adverse resolution could materially harm the Company’s business, consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows. The Company does not have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this
contract and the related legal proceedings as of January 31, 2006 and 2005. The Company does not believe a
material loss is probable based on the procedural standing of the case and its understanding of applicable laws
and facts.

Firm Fixed-Price Contract with the Greek Government

Original Contract. In May 2003, the Company entered into a euro-denominated firm-fixed-price contract
with the Hellenic Republic of Greece (the “Customer”), as represented by the Ministry of Defense, to provide a
C41 (Command, Control, Communications, Coordination and Integration) System (the “System”), to support the
2004 Athens Summer Olympic Games (the “Olympics™), and to serve as the security system for the Customer’s
public order departments following completion of the Olympics. The System is comprised of 29 subsystems,
organized into three major functional areas: the Command Decision Support System (“CDSS”), the
Communication and Information System and the Command Center Systems. A significant amount of effort on
this contract has been and will be performed by subcontractors to the Company. Under the contract, the System
was to be completed, tested, and accepted by September 1, 2004, at a price of approximately $199 million. To
date, the Company has received advance payments totaling approximately $147 million. The contract also
requires the Company to provide five years of System support and maintenance for approximately $11 million
and ten years of TETRA radio network services for approximately $102 million. Under the terms of the contract,
the Company’s obligation to provide the System support and maintenance and TETRA radio network services
only begins upon System acceptance, which has not yet occurred. The contract contains an unpriced option for an
additional five years of TETRA network services.

The Memorandum. On July 7, 2004, shortly before the start of the Olympics, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “Memorandum”) with the Hellenic Republic, as represented by the Committee for Planning and
Monitoring the Olympic Security Command Centers, pursuant to which the parties recognized and agreed that:
(1) delivery and acceptance of the System had not been completed by the scheduled date; (2) the System would
be delivered for use at the Olympics in its then-current state, which included certain omissions and deviations
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attributable to both parties; (3) a new process for testing and acceptance of the Syste}:m would be instituted, with
final acceptance to occur no later than October 1, 2004; (4) the Customer would|procecd with the necessary
actions for the completion of a contract modification as soon as possible; and (5) the Company would receive a

milestone payment of approximately $23 million immediately upon the execution of the contract modification.

Delivery of System, Testing and Negotiations. The Customer took delivcr)‘f of the System for use and
operation during the Olympics, and continues to use significant portions of the System. The System has not been

accepted by the Customer under the terms of the Greek contract, and the contract m‘odiﬁcation anticipated under
the Memorandum has not been obtained. In November 2004, the Company delivered a revised version of the
CDSS portion of the System to the Customer. Beginning in December 2004 and co“ntinuing through April 2005,
the Customer performed subsystems acceptance testing on each of the subsystems comprising the System based
on test procedures that had not been mutually agreed upon by the parties. The Customer identified numerous
omissions and deviations in its test reports. The Company believes that certain of these omissions and deviations
are valid, while others are not. From December 2004 through April 2005, the Com(pany engaged in negotiations
with the Customer concerning a modification to the contract to resolve the disputes. On April 28, 2005, the
Customer formally notified the Company that the System delivered had significant deviations and omissions

from the contractual requirements and may not be accepted.

Under the terms of the contract and the Memorandum between the parties, the Company submitted
various proposals to the Customer to remedy these omissions and deviations. ’lThe most significant of these
proposals includes a redevelopment of CDSS using an alternative technical approach, and a redesigned port
security system. The first proposal for an alternative CDSS technical approach was submitted in June 2005. On
November 25, 2003, the Customer notified the Company that its technical advisors !declined to recommend either
the acceptance or rejection of the Company’s remediation plan for an alternative CDSS. On December 5, 2005,
the Company sent a letter advising the Customer that unless an agreement is|reached with respect to the
alternative CDSS approach, the Company intends to initiate the dispute process C()}ntained in the Greek contract,
which includes binding arbitration as its final step. On December 13, 2005, the Customer delivered a letter to the
Company indicating that the Company’s proposal based on the alternative CDSS aéproach is deemed “acceptable
in principle” on the terms proposed. The parties reengaged in negotiations in early January 2006 on a contract
modification to incorporate these proposals. A contract modification has not yet! been executed and would be
required in order for the Company to implement the proposals and achieve Customer acceptance of the System.
The Company anticipates that such modification would include the parties’ agreement on appropriate price
adjustments for omissions and deviations not satisfied by the proposed remediation of the System and a revised

testing and acceptance process as contemplated under the Memorandum.

Subcontracts. The Company has subcontracted a significant portion of the|requirements under the Greek
contract, including the lease of certain equipment and TETRA network services forr at least 10 years. In order for
the Company to implement the technical proposals submitted to the Customer and contemplated by the
modification being negotiated with the Customer, the Company would need to negotiate and execute
modifications to the subcontracts with our subcontractors, including price. Certain of the omissions and
deviations of the System are attributable to subcontracted work. Payments to the subcontractors are generally
required only if the Company receives payment from the Customer related to th'\: subcontractors” work. If it is
determined the Company breached its obligations to any of its subcontractors, the Company may incur additional
losses.

Under the terms of the Greek contract, the Company is not obligated to provide TETRA network services
to the Customer until the Customer has accepted the System. The Company and its subcontractors have provided
System support and maintenance and TETRA network services to the Customer since the Olympics in August
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2004, without receiving any compensation. In September 2005, the principal subcontractor notified the Company
that it would no longer commit to continue providing TETRA network services, although it has continued to
provide such services to date.

Legality of the Contract. In March 2005, the Customer notified the Company that an issue had been raised
concerning the legality of the contract by a Greek government auditor. In August 2005, the Company learned that
the Court of Auditors of the Hellenic Republic (the “Greek Audit Court™), a government agency with authority to
review and audit procurements, issued a decision finding that certain mistakes in the procurement process
committed by the Greek government rendered the contract illegal. The Customer requested revocation of the
Greek Audit Court decision. On November 17, 2005, the Greek Audit Court issued a decision finding that the
errors committed by the Customer in the procurement process constituted “pardonable mistakes” with respect to
prior payments under the contract. Although the rationale of the Greek Audit Court decision suggests that the
Customer may be able to make future payments under the contract, the impact of the decision on the legality of
the contract and the Customer’s ability to make future payments is not clear.

Financial Status and Contingencies of the Contract. The Company has recorded $121 million of contract
losses as of January 31, 2006. Of this amount, $83 million was recorded in fiscal 2006, $34 mitlion in fiscal 2005
and $4 million in fiscal 2004. These losses reflect the Company’s estimated total cost to complete the System and
obtain Customer acceptance and estimated reductions in price as a result of omissions and deviations from the
contract requirements. Because of the significant uncertainties related to ultimate acceptance and payment from
the Customer, the Company’s current accounting treatment limits the total revenue to be realized under the
contract to the cash received to date. Although the Company expects to pursue remaining amounts owed under
the terms of the contract, this reduction in total estimated revenues to be realized under the contract increased the
total loss by $32 million during 2006, which is included in the loss amounts discussed above. Through
January 31, 2006, the Company has recognized revenues of $119 million, which represent a portion of the $147
million cash collected to date based upon the percentage-of-completion method of revenue recognition.

As of January 31, 2006, the estimated future costs to complete the System and obtain Customer
acceptance is $52 million. This estimated cost is included in the $121 million contract loss recorded as of
January 31, 2006. Management has used this estimate and its judgment in evaluating the various uncertainties
and assumptions necessary to recognize the total estimated losses on this contract. Such assumptions include
obtaining mutual agreement with the Customer regarding system requirements, execution of a modification to the
contract, completion of the System and Customer acceptance. The total costs are significantly affected by the
timing of events such as executing a contract modification and ultimate Customer acceptance. Management has
estimated that final acceptance of the System under a modified contract will occur in January 2008. The
Company’s recorded losses exclude potential subcontractor payments associated with the omissions and
deviations related to specific subsystems supplied by subcontractors in the amount of $12 million that
management believes will not be paid under the subcontract terms.

The Company has $13 million of accounts receivable relating to Value Added Taxes (VAT) that it has
paid and believes it is entitled to recover either as a refund from the taxing authorities or as a payment under the
Greek contract upon final billing. The contract requires the Customer to pay amounts owed for VAT for the
System delivered. Failure by the customer to pay these amounts could result in an additional obligation payable
by the Company to the Greek taxing authorities and would increase the Company’s total losses on the contract.

In accordance with the terms of the contract, the Company is required to provide certain payment,
performance and offset bonds in favor of the customer. The bonding requirements have been met through the
issuance of standby letters of credit. Under the terms of these bonding arrangements, the Customer has currently
the right to call some or all of the $234 million of standby letters of credit outstanding. The Company does not
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currently believe it is probable that the Customer will call these standby letters of
credit are called, the Company may have the right to call some or all of the $99

provided by its subcontractors guaranteeing the performance of their work under th

credit. If the standby letters of
million in performance bonds
1¢ contract.

Arbitration Proceedings. Although the Company has been pursuing a contract modification with the

Customer since shortly after the Memorandum was signed in July 2004, due

to the difficulties in reaching

mutually satisfactory terms, the Company instituted arbitration proceedings on April 21, 2006 before the

International Chamber of Commerce (“ICC”) against the Customer to pursue the €
provided for in the contract and the Memorandum and under Greek law. The art
Company: (1) seeks an order under the contract that the Customer’s extended
circumstances constitutes constructive acceptance and precludes the Custome

Company’s rights and remedies
itration complaint filed by the
use of the System under the
r from rejecting the System,

(2) seeks damages for breach of contract, bad faith, use of the System and other damages, (3) seeks a

determination as to the legal status of the contract as a result of the illegality issue
contract is determined to be illegal, seeks compensation for the commercial value
use by the Customer and other damages. Under the terms of the Contract, di
resolution by binding arbitration before a panel of three Greek arbitrators in Gree

discussed above, and (4) if the
of the System delivered and its
sputes are subject to ultimate
ce. Due to the complex nature

of the legal and factual issues involved and the uncertainty of litigation in general,

is uncertain. There is no assurance that the Company will prevail in the arbitration

In the event the Company does not prevail in the arbitration or is unable

the outcome of the arbitration

to resolve the various disputes

under the contract as anticipated, it could incur additional losses. If the Customer asserts claims against the

Company in the arbitration and it is determined that the Company has breached the contract and, as a result, owes

the Customer damages, such damages could include, but are not limited
(2) repayment of amounts paid under the contract, (3) penalties for delayed de
million, and (4) forfeiture of a good performance bond in the amount of $32 millio

Successful imposition of damages or claims by the Customer or subcontra
calling of the Company’s bonds, additional contract costs required to fulfill its ob
reductions arising from the negotiation of the contract modification could have a
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

DS&S Joint Venture

In March 2006, the Company sold its interest in DS&S, a joint venture in wk
interest at January 31, 2006. DS&S maintains a $25 million credit facility, unde
amount and $12 million in standby letters of credit were outstanding at January 3
other joint venture member each guaranteed 50% of DS&S’s commitments ung
maximum amount of $12.5 million each, plus certain additional charges), but the C
perform on this guarantee. As of January 31, 2006, the Company had a loan rec
DS&S, which was repaid in conjunction with the sale. The Company and the other

to, (1) re-procurement costs,
ivery in an amount up to $15
n.

ctors against the Company, the
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material adverse affect on the

hich the Company owned a 50%
r which $7 million in principal

1, 2006. The Company and the

der this credit facility (up to a

mpany has not been required to
eivable of $1 million due from
joint venture member also each

guaranteed the payment of 50% of certain legal and accounting fees incurred by‘ DS&S in conjunction with an
ongoing government investigation. As of January 31, 2006, the fair value of the guarantee for legal and accounting
fees was not material to the Company and the Company has not been required to|perform on this guarantee. The
Company sold its interest in DS&S and received repayment of the loan receivable. The Company was released from
its guarantee obligations relating to DS&S’s credit facility and legal and accounting fees as part of the sale. In
addition, as part of the sale, the Company agreed to indemnify the joint Ventu‘re member who purchased the
Company’s interest in DS&S for certain legal costs and expenses relating to the on;going government investigation
involving DS&S and any litigation resulting from that investigation up to the sum of the purchase price plus the

amount received by the Company in repayment of the $1 million loan receivable.
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INTESA Joint Venture

INTESA, a Venezuelan joint venture the Company formed in 1997 with Venezuela’s national oil
company, PDVSA, to provide information technology services in Latin America, is involved in various legal
proceedings. The Company had previously consolidated its 60% interest in the joint venture, but the operations
of INTESA were classified as discontinued operations as of January 31, 2003 and INTESA is currently insolvent.
PDVSA has refused to take action to dissolve the joint venture or have it declared bankrupt.

QOutsourcing Services Agreement and Guarantee. INTESA had derived substantially all its revenues from
an outsourcing services agreement with PDVSA that it entered into at the time the joint venture was formed. The
services agreement expired on June 30, 2002 and the parties were not able to reach agreement on a renewal. The
Company guaranteed INTESA’s obligations under the services agreement to PDVSA. Under the terms of the
services agreement, INTESA’s liability for damages to PDVSA in any calendar year is capped at $50 million. As
a result, the Company’s maximum potential liability to PDVSA under the guarantee in any calendar year, based
on the Company’s guarantee of their ownership interest in INTESA, is $20 million. To date, PDVSA has not
asserted any claims.

Expropriation of the Company’s Interest in INTESA. In 2003 and 2004, PDVSA and the Venezuelan
government took certain actions, including denying INTESA access to certain of its facilities and assets, that
prevented INTESA from continuing operations. In 2005, the Overseas Private Investment Company (OPIC), a
U.S. governmental entity that provides insurance coverage against expropriation of U.S. business interests by
foreign governments, determined that the Venezuelan government had expropriated the Company’s interest in
INTESA without compensation and paid the Company approximately $6 million in settlement of its claim.

Employment Claims of Former INTESA Employees. INTESA is a defendant in a number of lawsuits
brought by former employees seeking unpaid severance and pension benefits. PDVSA and SAIC Bermuda, the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary and the entity that held the Company’s interest in INTESA, were added as
defendants in a number of these suits. Based on the procedural standing of the cases and the Company’s
understanding of applicable laws and facts, the Company believes that its exposure to any possible losses related
to these employment claims is either remote, or if reasonably possible, not material.

Other Legal Proceedings Involving INTESA. The Attorney General of Venezuela initiated a criminal
investigation of INTESA in 2003 alleging unspecified sabotage by INTESA employees. The Company believes
this investigation is inactive. In connection with the Company’s expropriation claim, OPIC determined that
INTESA did not sabotage PDVSA’s infrastructure as alleged by PDVSA and the Venezuelan government. In
addition, the SENIAT, the Venezuelan tax authority, filed a claim against INTESA in 2004 for approximately
$30 million for alleged non-payment of VAT taxes in 1998.

Potential Financial Impact. Many issues relating to INTESA, including the termination of the services
agreement and the employment litigation brought by former INTESA employees, remain unresolved. Due to the
complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved in these matters and the uncertain economic and political
environment in Venezuela, the outcome is not presently determinable and no amounts have been accrued;
however, adverse resolutions could materially harm the Company’s business and could have a material adverse
affect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Other Joint Ventures

The Company is an investor in Danet Partnership GbR (“Danet GbR”), a German partnership, accounted
for under the equity method. Danet GbR is the controlling shareholder in Danet GmbH, a German operating
company (“Danet GmbH”). Danet GbR has an internal equity trading market similar to the Company’s limited
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market. The Company is required to provide liquidity rights to the other Danet GbR investors in certain
circumstances. Absent a change in control whereby the Company gains control‘ over Danet GbR, these rights
allow Danet GbR investors who are- withdrawing from the partnership to put their Danet GbR shares to the
Company in exchange for the current fair value of those shares. If the Company ‘gains control over Danet GbR,
all Danet GbR investors have the right to put their Danet GbR shares to the Company in exchange for the current
fair value of those shares. If Danet GbR investors put their shares to the Company‘, the Company may pay the put
price in shares of its common stock or cash. The Company does not currently “record a liability for these put
rights because their exercise is contingent upon the occurrence of future events which the Company cannot
determine will occur with any certainty. In 2006, the Company paid $2 milli(‘gn to withdrawing Danet GbR
investors who exercised their right to put their Danet GbR shares to the Company. The maximum potential
obligation assuming all the current Danet GbR investors were to put their Danet GbR shares to the Company

would be $7 million as of January 31, 2006. If the Company were to incur the m‘[aximum obligation and buy all
the partnership shares currently held by other Danet GbR investors, the Company would then own 100% of

Danet GbR and would hold a controlling interest in Danet GmbH.

The Company has a guarantee that relates only to claims brought by the sole customer of another of its
joint ventures, Bechtel SAIC Company, LLC, for specific contractual nonperformance of the joint venture. The
Company also has a cross-indemnity agreement with the joint venture partner, plrlrsuam: to which it will only be
ultimately responsible for the portion of any losses incurred under the guarantee e‘qual to its ownership interest of
30%. Due to the nature of the guarantee, the Company is not able to project the| maxirnum potential amount of
future payments it could be required to make under the guarantee as of January 31, 2006 but, based on current
conditions, the Company believes the likelihood of having to make any payment is remote. Accordingly, no

liability relating to this guarantee is currently recorded.

On September 15, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with EG&G Technical Services, Inc.
(“EG&G”) and Parsons Infrastructure & Technology Group, Inc. (“Parsons”) to form Research and Development
Solutions, LLC (“RDS”), a Delaware limited liability company that will pursue contracts offered by the
Department of Energy’s National Energy Technical Laboratory. The Company, EG&G and Parsons, each have a
one-third equal joint venture interest. In conjunction with a contract award to RDS, each joint venture partner
was required to sign a performance guarantee agreement with the U.S. Government. Under this agreement, the
Company unconditionally guarantees all of RDS’s obligations to the U.S. Government under the contract award,
which has an estimated total value of $217 million. The Company also has a cross-indemnity agreement with
each of the other two joint venture partners to protect it from liabilities for any U!S. Government claims resulting
from the actions of the other two joint venture partners and to limit the Company’s liability to its share of the
contract work. As of January 31, 2006, the fair value of the guarantee is not material to the Company.

Gracian v. SAIC Class Action Lawsuit

This class action lawsuit was voluntarily dismissed by the plaintiffs without prejudice on September 21,
2005.

Other

The Company is subject to investigations and reviews relating to compliance with various laws and
regulations with respect to its role as a contractor to agencies and departments|of the U.S. Government and in

connection with performing services in countries outside of the United States. Sl‘lCh matters can lead to criminal,
civil or administrative proceedings and the Company could be faced with ﬁne‘:s, repayments or compensatory
damages. Adverse findings could also have a material adverse effect on the Company because of its reliance on

government contracts. Although the Company can give no assurance, based upon management’s evaluation of
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current matters that are subject to U.S Government investigations of which the Company is aware and based on
management’s current understanding of the facts, the Company does not believe that the outcome of any such
matter would have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or its ability to conduct business.

The Company is also involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of its
business, none of which, in the opinion of the Company’s management, based upon current information, is
expected to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows
or its ability to conduct business.

In the normal conduct of its business, the Company seeks to monetize its patent portfolio through
licensing agreements. The Company also has and will continue to defend its patent positions when it believes its
patents have been infringed and is involved in such litigation from time to time. As described in Note 18, on
March 15, 2005, the Company sold its Telcordia subsidiary. Pursuant to the terms of the definitive stock
purchase agreement, the Company will receive 50% of the net proceeds Telcordia receives in the future in
connection with the prosecution of certain patent rights.

The Company is subject to routine compliance reviews by the IRS and other taxing jurisdictions on
various tax matters, which may include challenges to various tax positions the Company has taken. The
Company has recorded liabilities for tax contingencies for open years based upon its best estimate of the taxes
ultimately expected to be paid. As of January 31, 2006, $113 million of tax accruals have been recorded for tax
contingencies. The Company is currently undergoing several routine IRS and other tax jurisdiction examinations.
While the Company believes it has adequate accruals for tax contingencies, there is no assurance that the tax
authorities will not assert that the Company owes taxes in excess of its accruals, or that there will not be accruals
in excess of the final amounts agreed to by the tax authorities.

90




SCIENCE APPLICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Note 20-—Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):

Selected unaudited financial data for each quarter of the last two years is as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter(1) Quarter(l) Quarter(1) Quarter

(In millions, except per share amounts)

2006
Revenues ...................... $1,846 $1,952 $2,028 $1,966
Operating income ............... 112 144 108 133
Income from continuing

Operations . .................. 55 85 72 133
Income from discontinued

operations ................... 530 12 19 21
Netincome .................... 585 97 91 154
Basic earnings per share(2) ........ $ 3.27 $ .55 $ .53 $ .90
Diluted earnings per share(2) ...... $ 3.18 § 54 $ .51 $ .87
2005
Revenues . ... .. $1,706 $1,768 $1,837 $1,876
Operating income . .............. 120 114 130 124
Income from continuing ‘

operations . .................. 67 52 68 85
Income from discontinued

Operations . .................. 22 29 27 59
Netincome ............c.ovu.n. 89 81 95 144
Basic earnings per share(2) ........ $ .48 § 44 $ .52 $ .80
Diluted earnings per share(2) ...... $ .47 $ 43 $ 51 $ .78

(1) Amounts for the first, second and third quarters of 2005 have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation of Telcordia as discontinued operations at January 31, 2005!

(2) Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented and therefore may
not sum to the total for the vear.




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the selected consolidated financial data presented below in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our audited |
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this report. The selected
consolidated financial data presented below under “Consolidated Statement of Income Data” for the years ended
January 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the selected consolidated financial data presented below under
“Consolidated Balance Sheet Data” as of January 31, 2006 and 2005 have been derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidated financial data
presented below under “Consolidated Statement of Income Data” for the years ended January 31, 2003 and 2002
and under “Consolidated Balance Sheet Data” as of January 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 have been derived from our

audited consolidated financial statements not included in this report. :
Year Ended January 31 |

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in millions, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

REVETIUES © . oot oottt et e et et e e e e e e e e e e $7,792 $7,187 $5,833 34,835 $4,374
COSt OF FEVENMUES . o vt ettt ettt e e ettt et et e e e et e 6,801 6,283 5,053 4,169 3,786
Selling, general and administrative XPeNSES . ... vttt vtt it iniaie i s 494 418 378 347 352
GoodWill IMPAITMENt .. ...t e e — — 7 13 —
Gain on sale of bUSINESS RIS, MET . .. v\ttt e e et ettt r e e et e naas — 2) — (5) (10)
OPErating INCOMIE . . ..ttt ettt e et e ettt et e 497 488 395 311 246 ‘
Net (loss) gain on marketable securities and other investments, including impairment losses (1) . . . . (15 (16 5 (134 (456) ;
INterest INCOIME . . oottt et e e et e e e s 97 45 49 37 50 \
INEETESE EXPEMSE . . o vttt vttt et ettt e e e e e e 89 (88) (80) 45) (14)
Other INCOME (EXPENSE), L « + v ot v vt vt ittt vt ettt r e e e e ettt e ar e e n e ns 7 (12) 5 6 10 :
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries ............... ... ... . o oL (13 a4 10) ) (5) i
Income (loss) from continuing operations before incometaxes ............ ... v 484 403 364 168  (169) !
Provision (benefit) for iINCOME AXES . . . ... ottt i i 139 131 140 61 (80) .
Income (Joss) from continuing OPETations . . ...vv' vt ettt crine s i a s 345 272 224 107 (89) :
Income from discontinued operations, netoftax .......... ... .. .0 e e el 582 137 127 152 107
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netof tax (2) ......... ... ... ..ot — — — — 1
NELECOMIE .« . vttt ettt et et e e e et e e e e e e $ 927 $ 409 § 351 § 259 $ 19
Earnings per share: (2)
Basic: :
Income (loss) from cOntinUING OPETAIONS . ..\ vvvvnre vttt eneee e $198 $149 $1.22 § .55 % (41 .
Income from discontinued OPErations . ..........oviiiv i i e 3.35 14 .68 77 .50 1
$533 $223 $19 $132 % .09
Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing OPerations . ............vurruiiinineeninrnenee.. $192 $145 $1.19 § 53 § (41 '
Income from discontinued operations ... ....... .. .. . i i 323 73 67 5 .50 N

$515 $218 $18 8128 § .09 !

Common equivalent shares:

BaSIC ottt e e e 174 183 185 196 215 1
Diluted . ..o R 180 188 189 203 215 ‘:
As of January 31

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in millions)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

TOtAl BSSEES . oottt ittt e et e e e e RN $5.655 $6,010 $5,540 $4.876 34,678
Working capital (B) .+ oottt e 2,912 2,687 2230 1967 875
Longtermdebt .. ... i e e 1,192 1,215 1,232 897 100
Other long-term liabilities . ... ... ... i 1m 99 86 75 48
Stockholders’ equity .. ... .. . e 2,807 2,351 2203 2,020 2,524

(1) Includes impairment losses of $108 million and $467 million on marketable equity securities and other private investments in 2003 and
2002, respectively.

(2) The 2002 amount includes the cumulative effect of an accounting change for the adoption of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended.

(3) Working capital for fiscal 2004 and 2002 excludes the effect of reclassifications for discontinued operations that were made in fiscal
2005 and 2003 in order to conform the fiscal 2004 and 2002 consolidated balance sheets to reflect discontinued operations that occurred
in fiscal 2005 and 2003.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read
in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes. In addition to historical
consolidated financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our
plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from th‘ose discussed in the forward-
looking statements. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Forward-Looking Statement [Risks” in Part I of our 2006
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Factors that could cause or contribute to these dijﬂzrences include those discussed

below and elsewhere in our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly in “Risk Factors.”

Unless otherwise noted, references to years are for fiscal years ended January 31, not calendar years.
For example, we refer to the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006 as fiscal 2006.

Overview

We are a leading provider of scientific, engineering, systems integrati‘on and technical services and
solutions to all branches of the U.S. military, agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense, the intelligence
community, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and other U.S. Government civil agencies, as well as to
customers in selected commercial markets. We have three reportable segments: |Government, Commercial, and
Corporate and Other. Except in “—Discontinued Operations,” all amounts in this “‘Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” are presented for our continuing operations only.

Government Segment. Through the Government segment, we provide| systems engineering, systems
integration and advanced technical services and solutions primarily to U.S. fede‘ral, state and local government
agencies and foreign governments. Revenues from our Government segment accounted for 94% of our total
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006 and 2005 and 93% of our total consolidated(revenues in fiscal 2004. Within
the Government segment, substantially all of our revenues are derived from contracts with the U.S. Government.
Revenues from contracts with the U.S. Government accounted for 89%, 86% anh 85% of our total consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These revenues include contracts where we serve as the
prime or lead contractor, as well as contracts where we serve as a subcontractor fo other parties who are engaged

directly with various U.S. Government agencies as the prime contractor,

In the period since the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, U.S. Goverqment spending has increased in
response to the global war on terror and efforts to transform the U.S. military. This increased spending has had a

. . . | . .
favorable impact on our business. Our results have also been favorably impacted by increased outsourcing of

information technology (IT) and other technical services by the U.S. Government. However, these U.S.

Government spending levels may not continue and future levels of spendin‘g and authorizations for these
programs may decrease, remain constant or shift to programs in areas wher;e we do not currently provide
services. Such changes in spending authorizations and budgetary priorities could occur due to the significant
relief and recovery costs associated with natural disasters, the rapid growtﬂ of the federal budget deficit,

increasing political pressure to reduce overall levels of government spending or other factors. In addition, the
U.S. Government conducted its Quadrennial Defense Review in government fiSf‘sal 2005 and 2006, the results of
which may significantly affect future defense budgets and priorities, including programs from which we have and

expect to derive a significant portion of our revenues.

Competition for contracts with the U.S. Government is intense. In recent| years, the U.S. Government has
increasingly used contracting processes that give it the ability to select muiltiple winners or pre-qualify certain
contractors to provide various products or services at established general terms and conditions. Such processes
include purchasing services and solutions using indefinite delivery / indefinite qqantity (IDIQ), government-wide
acquisition contract (GWAC), and U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) award contract vehicles. This

|

trend has served to increase competition for U.S. Government contracts and in\crease pressure on the prices we
charge for our services. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Business™ and “Item 1. Business—

Contracts” in Part I of our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Commercial Segment. Through our Commercial segment, we primarily target commercial customers
worldwide in selected commercial markets, currently IT support for oil and gas exploration and production,
applications and IT infrastructure management for utilities and data lifecycle management for pharmaceuticals.
We provide our Commercial segment customers with systems integration and advanced technical services and
solutions we have developed for the commercial marketplace, often based on expertise developed in serving our
Government segment customers. Revenues from our Commercial segment accounted for 7% of our total
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. Revenues from our Commercial segment are primarily
driven by our customers’ desire to reduce their costs related to IT management and other complex technical
functions by outsourcing to third-party contractors.

Corporate and Other Segment. Our Corporate and Other segment includes the operations of our broker-
dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc., our internal real estate management subsidiary, Campus Point Realty Corporation,
and various corporate activities, including elimination of intersegment revenues. We expect that the operations of
Bull, Inc. will cease if we complete the public offering. Our Corporate and Other segment does not contract with
third parties for the purpose of generating revenues. However, for internal management reporting purposes, we
record certain revenue and expense items incurred by the Government and Commercial segments in the
Corporate and Other segment in certain circumstances as determined by our chief operating decision-maker
(currently our Chief Executive Officer).

Key Financial Metrics
Sources of Revenues

Contracts. We generate revenues under the following types of contracts: (1) cost-reimbursement,
(2) time-and-materials (T&M), (3) fixed price level-of-effort, (4) firm fixed-price (FFP) and (5) target cost and
fee with risk sharing. Cost-retmbursement contracts provide for reimbursement of our direct costs and allocable
indirect costs, plus a fee or profit component, T&M contracts typically provide for the payment of negotiated
fixed hourly rates, which include allocable indirect costs and fees for labor hours plus reimbursement of our other
direct costs. Fixed price level-of-effort contracts are substantially similar to T&M contracts except that the
deliverable is the labor hours provided to the customer. FFP contracts provide for payments to us of a fixed price
for specified products, systems and/or services. If actual costs vary from the FFP rarget costs, we can generate
more or less than the targeted amount of profit or even incur a loss. Target cost and fee with risk sharing
contracts provide for reimbursement of costs, plus a specified or target fee or profit, if our actual costs equal a
negotiated target cost. Under these contracts, if our actual costs are less than the target costs, we receive a portion
of the cost underrun as an additional fee or profit. If our actual costs exceed the target costs, our target fee and
cost reimbursement are reduced by a portion of the cost overrun. We do not use target cost and fee with risk
sharing contracts in our Government segment.

The following table summarizes revenues by contract type as a percentage of total contract revenues for
the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
Cost-reimbursement ............ ... ... i i 46% 44% 45%
T&M and fixed price level-of-effort .......................... 35 38 38
FFP and target cost and fee with risk sharing . ................... 19 18 17
Total ... 100%  100%  100%

We generate revenues under our contracts from (1) the efforts of our technical staff, which we refer to as
labor-related revenues and (2) receipt of payments based on the costs of materials and subcontractors used in a
project, which we refer to as M&S revenues. M&S revenues are generated primarily from large, multi-year
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systems integration contracts and contracts in our logistics and product support business area. If M&S revenues

grow at a faster rate than our labor-related revenues, our overall profit margin as

a percentage of revenues could

be impacted negatively because our M&S revenues generally have lower margins than our labor-related

revenues.

The following table summarizes labor-related revenues and M&S reve
consolidated revenues for the last three fiscal years:

enues as a percentage of total

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
Labor-related ........... ..t 63% 64% 68%
M &S o e 3 36 32
CTOMAL e

100%  100%  100%

The growth of our business is directly related to the receipt of contr;act awards, the ability to hire
personnel to perform on service contracts and contract performance. In fiscal 2006, we derived more than $10

million in annual revenues from each of 106 contracts, compared to 91 and 66 co‘

respectively. These larger contracts represented 38%, 35% and 31% of our total
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We recognized more than $50 million in ann
in fiscal 2006, compared to nine and eight contracts in fiscal 2005 and 2004, resg

ntracts in fiscal 2005 and 2004,

consolidated revenues in fiscal
ual revenues from ten contracts
vectively. The remainder of our

revenues is derived from a large number of smaller contracts with annual revenues of less than $10 million.

We recognize revenues under our contracts primarily using the percentage-of-completion method. Under
the percentage-of-completion method, revenues are recognized based on progress towards completion, with
performance measured by the cost-to-cost method, efforts-expended method or units-of-delivery method, all of
which require estimating total costs at completion. The contracting process used for procurement, including
IDIQ, GWAC and GSA Schedule, does not determine revenue recognition. See “—Critical Accounting Policies.”

Backlog. Total consolidated negotiated backlog consists of funded backlog and negotiated-unfunded
backlog. Government segment funded backlog primarily represents the portion of backlog for which funding is
appropriated and is payable to us upon completion of a specified portion of work, less revenues previously
recognized on these contracts. Commercial segment funded backlog represents the full value on firm contracts,
which may cover multiple future years, under which we are obligated to perform less revenues previously
recognized on these contracts. Our funded backlog in the Government segment does not include the full potential
value of our contracts because the U.S. Government and our other customers often appropriate or authorize funds
for a particular program or contract on a yearly or quarterly basis, even though the contract may call for

- | . .
performance over a number of years. When a definitive contract or contract amendment is executed and funding

has been appropriated or otherwise authorized, funded backlog is increased by the} difference between the funded
dollar value of the contract or contract amendment and the revenues recognized to date. Negotiated unfunded
backlog represents (1) firm orders for which funding has not been appropriateh or otherwise authorized and
(2) unexercised priced contract options. Negotiated unfunded backlog does not |include any estimate of future

potential task orders that might be awarded under IDIQ, GWAC or GSA Schedule|contract vehicles.
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The approximate value of our total consolidated negotiated backlog for the last three fiscal years was as
follows:

January 31
2006 2005 2004
(in millions)

Government Segment:

Funded backlog .......... .. ... iiiiiiiia.., $ 3,398 $ 3,333  $ 3,127

Negotiated unfunded backlog .. ..................... 11,169 9,656 7,359

Total negotiated backlog ...............c.oviiil, $14,567  $12,989  $10,486
Commercial Segment:

Funded backlog .........c.cciiiiiiiiinineenean... $ 490 $ 313 § 228

Negotiated unfunded backlog ... ........... ... ... .. 5 114 187

Total negotiated backlog ........................ .. $ 495 § 427 § 415
Total Consolidated:

Funded backlog ... .vvvvinrine it $ 3888 $ 3646 $ 3,355

Negotiated unfunded backlog ....................... 11,174 9,770 7,546

Total consolidated negotiated backlog . ............... $15,062 $13,416 $10,901

We expect to recognize a substantial portion of our funded backlog as revenues within the next 12
months. However, the U.S. Government may cancel any contract or purchase order at any time. In addition,
certain contracts and purchase orders in the Commercial segment may include provisions that allow the customer
to cancel at any time. Most of our contracts have cancellation terms that would permit us to recover all or a
portion of our incurred costs and potential fees in such cases. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our
Business—We may not realize as revenues the full amounts reflected in our backlog, which could adversely
affect our future revenues and growth prospects” in Part I of our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes direct labor and related fringe benefits and direct expenses
incurred to complete contracts and task orders. Cost of revenues also includes subcontract work, consultant fees,
materials, depreciation, certain management information systems expenses and overhead. Overhead consists of
indirect costs relating to operations, rent/facilities, administration, travel and other expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses are
primarily for corporate administrative functions, such as management, legal, finance and accounting, contracts
and administration, human resources and certain management information systems expenses. SG&A also
includes bid-and-proposal and independent research and development expenses.

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations

3

Greek Contract. Our contract with the Greek government as described in “—Commitments and
Contingencies” continues to adversely impact our results of operations. Based on the results of recent activities
conducted to review the omissions and deviations identified by the Hellenic Republic of Greece (the Customer)
and additional communication with the Customer, we recorded total contract losses of $83 million in fiscal 2006.
This compares to contract losses of $34 million for fiscal 2005. We have recognized $121 million of contract
losses since the inception of this contract. This contract may continue to have an adverse impact on our results of
operations.

Acquisitions. We acquire businesses in our key markets when opportunities arise. We completed four
acquisitions in fiscal 2006 for a total purchase price of $234 million. In fiscal 2005, we acquired four businesses
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for an aggregate purchase price of $236 million and in fiscal 2004, we acquired| 10 businesses for an aggregate
purchase price of $289 million. We expect the use of cash to acquire businesses will increase in the future. If we
complete the public offering, we may also use shares of SAIC, Inc. common stock for acquisitions.

Dispositions. As part of our ongoing strategic planning, we have exited, and may in the future exit, certain
businesses from time to time. In March 2005, we sold Telcordia Technologies, Inc. (Telcordia) and recognized a
gain before income taxes of $871 million in fiscal 2006. This transaction is reflected as discontinued operations
for all periods presented. Prior to the sale, Telcordia’s revenues were 1%, 11% and 13% of our total consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Propesed Public Offering

On September 1, 2005, our newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary, §AIC, Inc., filed a registration
statement on Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for an initial public offering of
common stock (public offering). The principal purpose of the public offering is to better enable us to use our cash
and cash flows generated from operations to fund internal growth and to use both cash and common stock to
finance growth through acquisitions. Creating a public market for our common| stock will eliminate our use of
cash to provide liquidity to our stockholders by repurchasing their shares in the limited market or in other
transactions.

Before we can complete the public offering, we must obtain the approvall of our stockholders. SAIC, Inc.
also filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-4 and we delivered to our stockholders a proxy
statement/prospectus to obtain stockholder approval of a merger agreement pursuant to which we would become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of SAIC, Inc. After the merger, SAIC, Inc. intends to offer its shares of common
stock to the public. A special meeting of the stockholders that was previously scheduled for December 16, 2005
to vote on the merger was postponed due to developments regarding the firm fixed-price contract with the Greek
Government as described in “—Commitments and Contingencies—Firm Fixed-Price Contract with the Greek
Government.” We intend to reschedule the special meeting of the stockholders and, subject to stockholder
approval of the merger agreement, satisfactory market conditions and other factors, complete the merger and the
public offering in the Fall of 2006.

In conjunction with the public offering, the board of directors intends tc‘) declare a special dividend that

will be paid to the holders of our common stock as of a record date that will be set by the board of directors.

Payment will be conditioned upon completion of the public offering and it is anticipated that the dividend will be
paid within 25 days after the completion of the public offering. The special dividend is expected to range from
approximately $8 to $10 per share of our Class A common stock and from approximately $160 to $200 per share
of our Class B common stock.

The Limited Market

There has been no public trading market for our common stock. However, we have maintained a limited

secondary market for our common stock, which we call the limited market, throu
Bull, Inc. The limited market has enabled our stockholders to submit offers to bu
predetermined trade dates. Although we were not contractually required to d

gh our broker-dealer subsidiary,
y and sell our common stock on
0 so, on all trade dates for the

periods presented, we have repurchased the excess of the number of shares offered for sale over the number of
shares sought to be purchased in order to improve the liquidity of the shares held by our stockholders. In fiscal
2006, 2005 and 2004, we repurchased $818 million, $607 million and $451| million of our common stock,
respectively.

If we complete the public offering as described in “—Proposed Public ‘Offering,” shares of SAIC, Inc.
common stock would be publicly traded and SAIC, Inc. Class A preferred stock could be converted into SAIC,

Inc. common stock and be available for sale in the public market as the applic(:able transfer restriction periods
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lapse. If we complete the public offering and a public market is created for SAIC, Inc. common stock, we expect
to cease repurchases of our stock from our stockholders through the limited market and wind up the operations of
Bull, Inc. A limited market trade has been scheduled for June 30, 2006, which is expected to be the last limited
market trade assuming that the public offering is completed in the Fall of 2006. If, however, the public offering is
postponed, we intend to conduct a limited market trade at the same time as the retirement plans trades until the
public offering process recommences. In addition to trades currently scheduled for May 12, 2006 (retirement
plans only) and June 30, 2006 (retirement plans and limited market trades), a retirement plans trade has been
scheduled for October 27, 2006 and at least three additional dates will be announced at which a limited market
trade also may be held if the public offering is postponed.

In these trades, participants may offer to buy or sell shares in accordance with the terms of the plans. In
addition, we intend to conduct four scheduled trades for our retirement plans following completion of the public
offering in which participants may offer to buy or sell shares in accordance with the terms of the plans. In all
these trades, we will have the right, but not the obligation, to buy the net balance of shares offered by participants
in our retirement plans. If the public offering is completed, the retirement plans will have the opportunity to
convert shares of SAIC, Inc. Class A preferred stock into SAIC, Inc. common stock and sell those shares into the
public market to the extent permissible under the transfer restrictions on the SAIC, Inc. Class A preferred stock.
These trades are intended to provide participants with liquidity to the extent permitted under the plans. See
“—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Historical Trends—Cash Used in Financing Activities of Continuing
Operations.”

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes our consolidated results of operations for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31

Percent Percent
2006 change 2005 change 2004

(dollars in millions)

REVENUES . oo vt ee e $7,792 8%  $7,187 23%  $5,833
Costofrevenues ..............c...u.. 6,801 8 6,283 24 5,053
Selling, general and administrative

EXPEMSES .+ v v it 494 18 418 11 378
Operating income . ................... 497 2 488 24 395

As a percentage of revenues . . ... ... 6.4% 6.8% 6.8%

Non-operating expense, net ............ (13) (85) (85) 174 3D
Provision for income taxes, continuing

OPETAtiONS . . v e oot 139 6 131 (6) 140
Income from continuing operations . .. ... 345 27 272 21 224
Income from discontinued operations, net

Of tAX v 582 325 137 8 127
Netincome .............vvuniinnen.. 927 127 409 17 351

Revenues. Total consolidated revenues increased 8% and 23% in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, due
to a combination of growth in revenues from our U.S. Government customers as well as growth through the
acquisition of new businesses. Approximately five percentage points of the consolidated fiscal 2006 growth was
a result of acquisitions, compared to six percentage points of the fiscal 2005 growth. Consolidated internal, or
non-acquisition related, growth was three percentage points in fiscal 2006 as compared with 17 percentage points
in fiscal 2005. We calculate internal growth by comparing our current period reported revenue to prior period
revenue adjusted to include the revenue of acquired companies for the comparable prior periods for which they
are included in the current period.

" The strong internal growth in fiscal 2005 was due primarily to increased work on several large systems
integration and engineering programs with our U.S. Government customers which included significant M&S

98




efforts. These large systems and engineering programs had relatively high revenues in fiscal 2005 as compared to
fiscal 2006. Additional growth was achieved through higher revenues from the sale to our commercial customers
of security systems used to protect ports, cargo terminals and containers.

The following table summarizes changes in segment revenues on an absolute basis and as a percentage of
total consolidated revenues for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31

Segment revenues as a
percentage of total
Percent Percent consolidated revenues

2006 change 2005 change 2004 2006 2005 2004
(dollars in millions)

Government
segment
revenues .... $7,289 8% $6,738 24% $5,426 94% 94% 93%

Commercial
segment
revenues . ... 533 2 521 24 419 7 7 7

Corporate and
Other
revenues . ... 30 — (72) — (12)

| ey )] —

The growth in our Government segment revenues for fiscal 2006 was the result of growth in our
traditional business areas with departments and agencies of the U.S. Government as well as growth through the
acquisition of new businesses. Approximately five percentage points of the fiscal 2006 growth in the
Government segment revenues was a result of acquisitions made in fiscal 2006, while the remaining three
percentage points represented internal growth. This compares to six percentaée points of acquisition-related
growth versus 18 percentage points of internal growth for fiscal 2005. The internal growth in our Government
segment revenues in fiscal 2006 and 2005 reflects an increase in contract awards from the U.S. Government and
increased budgets of our customers, particularly in our business areas providing services to the Department of
Defense. Revenue growth declined in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 due to several large systems
integration, engineering and M&S programs, which had relatively high revenues in fiscal 2005 as compared to
fiscal 2006, and funding delays in the Homeland Security and Defense business area and in our naval

maintenance engineering and technical support services area.

The percentage of total consolidated revenues from U.S. Government customers representing greater than
10% of our total consolidated revenues were as follows:

Year Ended January 31

2006 2005 2004
U AmMY .o e e 16% 13% 13%
U S NaVY o e 14 13 12
US. AIrForce . ... 10 11 11

Fiscal 2006 Commercial segment revenues remained relatively consisten{t with fiscal 2005 revenues. The

increase in our Commercial segment revenues in fiscal 2005 was attributable principally to higher revenues from
the sale of security systems used to protect ports, cargo terminals and contai}‘qers, including revenues from a
Canadian security system business acquired late in fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2005, four percentage points of the
increase in revenues was attributable to exchange rate changes between the U‘S. dollar and the British pound,
which caused a relatively constant level of local U.K. revenues to be translated into a higher level of U.S. dollars.
Revenues from our U.K. subsidiary represented 32%, 31% and 33% of the Commercial segment revenues in

fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Corporate and Other segment includes the elimination of intersegment revenues of $3 million, $45
million and $25 million in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The remaining balance for each of the years
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represents the net effect of various revenue items related to operating business units that are excluded from the
evaluation of a business unit’s operating performance in the Government or Commercial segment and instead are
reflected in the Corporate and Other segment.

The following table presents our consolidated revenues on the basis of how such revenues were earned
for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31

Percent Percent
2006 change 2005 change 2004
(dollars in millions)
Labor-related ....................... $4,880 6% $4,603 16% $3,977
M&S . 2,912 13 2,584 39 1,856

The increases in labor-related revenues are attributable to greater employee utilization and overall
increases in our technical staff. At the end of fiscal 2006, we had approximately 43,600 full-time and part-time
employees compared to 42,400 and 39,300 at the end of fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in M&S
revenues in fiscal 2006 is primarily related to the overall growth and acquisitions in the logistics and product
support business areas and, in fiscal 2005, certain systems engineering and integration contracts in the
Government segment that had significant quantities of materials that were delivered and integrated.

Cost of Revenues. The following table summarizes cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues for the
last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004

Total consolidated cost of revenues as a percentage of total

consolidated revenues . . ............ i 873% 874% 86.6%
Segment cost of revenues as a percentage of segment revenues:
GOVernment SEZMENL .. . ..o vvv vt it e it 88.3 87.9 87.1

Commercial Segment . ...... ...ttt 74.2 75.5 75.3

Total consolidated cost of revenues as a percentage of total consolidated revenues decreased slightly in
fiscal 2006 as compared with fiscal 2005 and reflected the following factors: (1) improved contract margins,
greater direct labor utilization and lower employee fringe benefit expenses related to changes in our retirement
and bonus compensation plans, which decreased cost of revenues as a percentage of total consolidated revenues,
and (2) the adverse impact of Greek contract losses of $83 million, which increased cost of revenues as a
percentage of total consolidated revenues. During fiscal 2006, in part to encourage employee retention, we
decided to provide a higher portion of our bonus compensation plan awards in the form of vesting stock as
compared to vested stock. Vesting stock bonus expense is recognized over the period in which the employee
provides service, generally four years. This decision had the effect of reducing the estimated bonus compensation
expense by approximately $10 million in fiscal 2006 compared to the expense that would have been recognized
for a fully vested stock and cash bonus. Total consolidated cost of revenues as a percentage of total consolidated
revenues includes a portion of the Corporate and Other segment operating loss as described in “—Segment
Operating Income.”

Government segment cost of revenues increased by $515 million or 9% on an absolute basis and as a
percentage of segment revenues in fiscal 2006 primarily due to the $83 million Greek contract losses, partially
offset by improved contract margins in the remainder of the segment and greater direct labor utilization.
Government segment cost of revenues increased $1.2 billion or 25% on an absolute basis and as a percentage of
segment revenues in fiscal 2005 primarily due to Greek contract losses of $34 million and lower margins realized
on the higher level of M&S revenues in fiscal 2005 as compared with fiscal 2004.
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Commercial segment cost of revenues increased by $2 million or 1% on an absolute basis and decreased
as a percentage of segment revenues in fiscal 2006, primarily reflecting improved (contract margins. Commercial
segment cost of revenues as a percentage of segment revenues did not change significantly between fiscal 2005
and 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The following table summarizes SG&A as a percentage of
revenues for the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004

Total consolidated SG&A as a percentage of total consolidated

TEVEIUES .« vt v ettt it ettt e et e e ettt e 6.3% 5.8% 6.5%
Segment SG&A as a percentage of segment revenues:
GOVernment SEGMENL .. ..ottt 4.8 4.2 4.7
Commercial segment .. ..........c.cieererninennon... 17.3 16.1 18.1

Total consolidated SG&A increased $76 million or 18% in fiscal 2006 and $40 million or 11% in fiscal

2005 on an absolute basis. SG&A increased in fiscal 2006 primarily due to increa‘sing IT and other infrastructure

expenditures in support of current and anticipated future growth, including $9 m“illion in public offering related
costs which were expensed due to the postponement of our public offering. Additionally, we incurred a higher
amount of amortization expense on intangible assets due to our increased volurme of acquisitions. During fiscal
2006, we reversed a previously accrued expense of $10 million related to a class action lawsuit that was

dismissed by plaintiffs without prejudice in September 2005. This reversal is reﬂécted in the Corporate and Other

segment. SG&A decreased as a percentage of total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2005 due to the factors noted
below for our Government and Commercial segments and an $18 million gain on the sale of land and buildings

reflected in our Corporate and Other segment.

Government segment SG&A increased $64 million or 22% in fiscal 2006 and $34 million or 14% in
fiscal 2005 on an absolute basis. Government segment SG&A increased as a percentage of revenues in fiscal
2006 primarily due to increasing IT and other infrastructure expenditures in support of current and anticipated
future growth. We expect to maintain this higher level of expense throughout fiscal 2007. Additionally, we
incurred a higher amount of amortization expense on intangible assets due to our increased volume of
acquisitions, primarily focused in our Government segment. Government s}egment SG&A decreased as a
percentage of segment revenues in fiscal 2005 primarily because revenues grew more quickly than our SG&A
expenses during fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2004, we recorded workforce reduction and realignment charges of $8
million stemming from efforts to reorganize and streamline some of our operatiéns to better align ourselves with

major customers and key markets.

Government segment G&A costs increased $56 million or 29% in fiscal 2006 as compared with fiscal
2005. As a percentage of segment revenues, G&A costs were 3.4% in fiscal 2006 compared to 2.8% in fiscal
2005. Bid-and-proposal costs increased $6 million or 8% on an absolute basis in fiscal 2006 compared to the
prior year. The level of bid-and-proposal activities fluctuates depending on the( timing of bidding opportunities.
Government segment independent research and development costs have remained relatively consistent as a

percentage of segment revenues.

Commercial segment SG&A increased $8 million or 10% in fiscal 2006 and $8 million or 11% in fiscal
2005 primarily due to an increase in headcount and other infrastructure ex;‘)enditures. Commercial segment
SG&A decreased as a percentage of segment revenues in fiscal 2005 primarily because revenue grew more
quickly than our SG&A expenses in that year.

Segment Operating Income. We use segment operating income (SOI) as|our internal measure of operating
performance. It is calculated as operating income before income taxes less losses on impaired intangible and
goodwill assets, less non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary stock and similar items,
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plus equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates, and minority interest in income or loss of
consolidated subsidiaries. We use SOI as our internal performance measure because we believe it provides a
comprehensive view of our ongoing business operations and is therefore useful in understanding our operating
results. Unlike operating income, SOI includes only our ownership interest in income or loss from our majority-
" owned consolidated subsidiaries and our partially-owned unconsolidated affiliates. In addition, SOI excludes the
effects of transactions that are not part of on-going operations such as gains or losses from the sale of business
units or other operating assets as well as investment activities of our subsidiary, SAIC Venture Capital
Corporation. Effective in fiscal 2006, we no longer allocated an internal interest charge or credit to our operating
segments as a measure of their effective management of operating capital.

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the reconciliation of total reportable
SOI of $491 million, $470 million and $401 million, respectively, to consolidated operating income of $497
million, $488 million and $395 million, respectively, is shown in Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements.

The following table, with prior year information reclassified for the internal interest change noted above,
summarizes changes in SOI on an absolute basis and as a percentage of related revenues:

Year Ended January 31
' SOl as a
percentage of
related revenues
Percent Percent

2006 change ~ 2005 change 2004 2006 2005 2004
(dollars in millions)

Total reportable

SOI ............ $491 4%  $470 17% $401 63% 65% 69%
Government SOI . . .. 499 3) 516 17 442 6.8 7.7 8.1

Commercial SOI . . .. 37 (8) 40 43 28 6.9 7.7 6.7
Corporate and Other -

segment operating
foss ... (45) — (86) — 0y — — —

The fiscal 2006 increase in total reportable SOI primarily reflects decreased operating loss within the
Corporate and Other segment and improved contract margins and greater direct labor utilization in the
Government segment, partially offset by the Greek contract losses of $83 million and increases in SG&A
expenses. The fiscal 2005 increase in total reportable SOI primarily reflects our overall revenue growth and
lower SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues.

The fiscal 2006 decrease in Government SOI primarily reflects losses of $83 million on our Greek
contract and an increase in SG&A caused by higher spending on our IT and other infrastructure areas and higher
bid-and-proposal costs. Partially offsetting the impact of the Greek contract losses were improved contract
margins with respect to other contracts in the Government segment and greater direct labor utilization. The fiscal
2005 increase in Government SOI, on an absolute basis, reflects the increase in segment revenues and lower
SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues. However, the fiscal 2005 decrease in Government SOI as a
percentage of segment revenues reflects lower margins earned on the higher level of M&S revenues and losses
on the Greek contract of $34 million.

Growth in commercial segment revenues during fiscal 2006 was not sufficient to cover increases in
Commercial segment cost of revenues and SG&A expenses. The fiscal 2005 increase in our Commercial SOIL, on
an absolute basis and as percentage of revenues, was primarily attributable to growth in revenues and improved
contract margins which more than offset increases in SG&A expenses in fiscal 2005.
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The decrease in our fiscal 2006 Corporate and Other segment operating lc‘ ss was primarily due to lower

intersegment revenue eliminations of $42 million, lower accrued fringe benefit expenses related to our retirement
and bonus compensation plans for employees in all segments and the reversal to }income of an accrued expense
recorded in fiscal 2005 of $10 million related to a class action lawsuit that was dismissed by plaintiffs without
prejudice in fiscal 2006. These fiscal 2006 declines were partially offset ﬂy increases in IT and other
infrastructure expenditures in support of current and anticipated growth. The: increase in our fiscal 2005
Corporate and Other segment operating loss was primarily related to higher unallocated accrued incentive
compensation costs as a result of improved SOI in our Government segment and|an increase in certain revenue
and expense items recorded within Corporate and Other and excluded from other segments’ operating
performance as well as $10 million related to the class action lawsuit described|above. Partially offsetting the
fiscal 2005 increase in Corporate and Other segment operating loss is an $18 million gain on the sale of land and

buildings at two different locations.

Other Income Statement Items

Net (Loss) Gain on Marketable Securities and Other Investments, Including Impairment Losses. Net loss
on marketable securities and other investments, including impairment losses, reflects gains or losses and other-
than-temporary impairment losses on our investments that are accounted for )as marketable equity or debt
securities or as cost method investments and are part of non-operating income or expense. Due to the non-routine
nature of the transactions that are recorded in this financial statement line item, siéniﬁcant fluctuations from year

to year are not unusual.

Components of this financial statement line item are as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(in millions)
Impairment losses on marketable securities and other investments . . . . . $ (@6 $200 %19
Net (loss) gain on sale of marketable securities and other investments . .| . . C)) 4 . 24
$(1s) s$@p6) $ 5

Substantially all of the impairment losses in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were related to our private equity

securities. The carrying value of our private equity securities as of January 31, 2006 was $38 million. The gross

realized losses on the sale of investments in fiscal 2006 were primarily due t
securities prior to their stated maturities to achieve greater liquidity. The marke
recently been negatively impacted by rising interest rates.

The net gain on sale of investments in fiscal 2004 was primarily from
publicly-traded equity securities of Tellium, Inc., which resulted in a gain before in

Goodwill Impairment. We did not record any impairment of goodwill duri
fiscal 2004, as a result of the loss of certain significant contracts and proposals
determined that goodwill assigned to that reporting unit had become impaire

y the liquidation of fixed rate
t value of these securities has

the sale of our investment in
1icome taxes of $17 million.

ng fiscal 2006 or 2005. During
related to a reporting unit, we
d and we recorded goodwill

impairment charges of $7 million. Impairment losses on intangible assets were not material in fiscal 2006 and
2005. There were no intangible asset impairments in fiscal 2004.

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interest income increased by $52 million or 116% and decreased
$4 million or 8% in fiscal 2006 and 2003, respectively. During fiscal 2006, average interest rates increased
significantly and our average cash balances increased over fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005, average interest rates
increased slightly while our average cash balances remained consistent with 2004 levels. In fiscal 2004, interest
income increased primarily as a result of interest received from a favorable audit settlement with the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) for a refund of research tax credits.
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Interest expense reflects interest on (1) our outstanding debt securities, (2) a building mortgage,
(3) deferred compensation arrangements and (4) notes payable. Interest expense remained consistent in fiscal
2006 compared to fiscal 2005. Interest expense increased $8 million in fiscal 2005 primarily as a result of interest
on $300 million aggregate amount of our 5.5% notes that were issued in the second quarter of fiscal 2004 and
outstanding for a full year in fiscal 2005.

As more fully described in “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” and Note 8 of
the notes to consolidated financial statements, we are currently exposed to interest rate risks, foreign currency
risks and equity price risks that are inherent in the financial instruments arising from transactions entered into in
the normal course of business. We will from time to time use derivative instruments to manage this risk. The
derivative instruments we currently hold have not had a material impact on our consolidated financial position or
results of operations. Net losses from derivative instruments in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 were not material.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) includes our equity interest in the earnings (loss) and
other-than-temporary impairment losses on equity method investees.

Components of this financial statement line item are as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(in millions)

Equity interest in earnings (10S8) ........ ... $5 $ (6) $5
Impairment losses on equity method investees . ................. — ) —
Other ..o e e e e 2 3 =

$7 812 85

In fiscal 2005, an impairment loss of $9 million on our investment in Data Systems & Solutions, LLC
(DS&S), was recorded primarily due to a significant business downturn at DS&S caused by a loss of business
and an ongoing government investigation. On March 24, 2006, we sold our 50% interest in DS&S to our joint
venture partner for approximately $9 million. Our financial commitments related to DS&S are described in
“—Commitments and Contingencies.”

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes as a percentage of income from continuing
operations before income taxes was 28.7% in fiscal 2006, 32.5% in fiscal 2005 and 38.4% in fiscal 2004. The
lower effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 was primarily due to the reversal of approximately $50 million in accruals
for tax contingencies as a result of settlements of federal and state audits and audit issues for amounts different
than the recorded accruals for tax contingencies, as well as the expiration of statutes on open tax years. The
effective tax rate in fiscal 2005 was lower than in fiscal 2004 primarily as a result of the favorable closure of
state tax audit matters. :

We are subject to routine compliance reviews by the IRS and other taxing jurisdictions on various tax
matters, which may include challenges to various tax positions we have taken. We have recorded liabilities for
tax contingencies for open years based upon our best estimate of the taxes ultimately to be paid. As of
January 31, 2006, our income taxes payable balance included $113 million of tax accruals that have been
recorded for tax contingencies. The income taxes payable balance is reduced by deposits made with various tax
authorities for anticipated tax payments due on prior tax periods. We are currently undergoing several routine
IRS and other tax jurisdiction examinations. While we believe we have adequate accruals for tax contingencies,
there is no assurance that the tax authorities will not assert that we owe taxes in excess of our accruals, or that our
accruals will not be in excess of the final amounts agreed to by tax authorities.

Our planned public offering of SAIC, Inc. common stock anticipates the payment of a dividend to current
stockholders, including the SAIC Retirement Plan, upon completion of the public offering. We believe the
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dividend payable on our common stock held by the SAIC Retirement Plan may be deductible for tax purposes in
the year of payment and intend to request rulings from the IRS to assure deductibility. Accordingly, if we pay a
dividend in connection with the public offering contemplated in fiscal 2007 and favorable rulings are received,

we expect a significant reduction in our tax liability.

Income from Continuing Operations. Income from continuing operations increased $73 million or 27% in
fiscal 2006 primarily due to increased interest income of $52 million, other incom‘e from our equity investments,
and a lower fiscal 2006 effective tax rate described above. Offsetting the decrease in non-operating expense are
the contract losses we recorded related to our Greek contract. These contract losses“ more than offset the increases
in the Government SOI from our improved contract margins on other contracts and higher direct labor utilization.
Income from continuing operations increased $48 million in fiscal 2005 or 21% o‘l/Jer fiscal 2004. The increase in
fiscal 2005 was primarily due to the growth in total consolidated revenues with lower SG&A expenses as a
percentage of total consolidated revenues and the lower income tax rate as descri(bed above. Offsetting some of
the favorable increase in income was an increase in cost of revenues and in net interest expense, which is interest
income less interest expense, an impairment loss on our DS&S equity investmcnt‘, and lower gains from the sale

of investments in marketable securities or our private equity securities as described above.

Discontinued Operations. We sold one of our subsidiaries, Telcordia, dulj‘ing fiscal 2006. The following
summarizes Telcordia’s operating results for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, which for fiscal 2006 reflects the period

prior to the sale of February 1, 2005 through March 14, 2005:

Year Ended
January 31

2006 2005 2004
(in millions)

RevenUEs ... $ 89 $874 $887
Costs and expenses:
Cost Of TEVEIUES . . oottt e e e e 57 489 434

Selling, general and administrative expenses, including
depreciation and amortization of $30 million and $44 million

in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively ..................... 28 235 258

Other (expense) iNCOmMe, Net. .. .. ...ttt ian e — (D) 1
Income before incometaxes ... .......... v 4 149 146
(Benefit) provision for income taxes .. .........c...vuuvueninan. (32) 16 19
Income from discontinued operations .......................... $36  $133  $127

After the sale of Telcordia, an income tax benefit of $32 million related to discontinued operations was
recorded to reflect the resolution of certain tax contingencies of Telcordia’s operations prior to the sale. We have
indemnified the buyer for all income tax obligations on and through the closing date of the transaction. While we
believe we have appropriate accruals for these tax contingencies, the ultimate resolution of these matters could

differ from the amounts accrued.

We also have customary indemnification obligations owing to the bu‘yer, as well as an obligation to
indemnify the buyer against any loss Telcordia may incur as a result of an adver[se judgment in the Telkom South
Affica litigation. All these future contingent payments or contingent purchase price proceeds and changes in our
estimates of these items and other related Telcordia items will continue to be reflected as discontinued operations

and result in adjustments to the gain on sale in the period in which they arise.

Net Income. Net income increased $518 million or 127% in fiscal 2006 primarily due to the after-tax gain
of $546 million on the sale of Telcordia. Net income in fiscal 2005 increased $58 million or 17% over fiscal
2004, primarily due to the increase in income from continuing operations described above and an increase of $6
million in income from discontinued operations of INTESA.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We financed our operations from our inception in 1969 primarily through cash flow from operations,
proceeds from the sale of investments, issuance of debt securities and our credit facilities. If we complete the
public offering and pay the special dividend described in “—Proposed Public Offering,” our principal sources of
liquidity will be cash flow from operations and borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, and our principal
uses of cash will be for operating expenses, capital expenditures, working capital requirements, possible
acquisitions and equity investments, debt service requirements and repurchases of SAIC, Inc. Class A preferred
stock from our retirement plans during the restriction periods in order to provide participants in those plans with
liquidity to the extent permitted under the plans. Whether or not we complete the public offering, we anticipate
that our operating cash flow, existing cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments in marketable securities and
borrowing capacity under our revolving credit facilities will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash
requirements for at least the next 12 months.

Historical Trends

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments in marketable securities totaled $2.7 billion and
$2.4 billion at January 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Continuing Operations. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, we
generated cash flows from operating activities of $595 million, $588 million and $374 million, respectively.
Factors impacting cash flows in fiscal 2006 were higher income from continuing operations and a lower
investment in receivables as a result of improvements in our working capital management processes partially
offset by an increase in tax payments, including deposits made with various tax authorities for anticipated tax
payments due on prior tax periods.

Cash from Discontinued Operations. In fiscal 2006, we used $319 million of cash in operating activities
of our Telcordia discontinued operations, primarily for income tax payments related to the sale of Telcordia, and
we generated cash of $1.1 billion from investing activities, representing the net cash proceeds from the sale of
Telcordia.

Cash Used in Investing Activities of Continuing Operations. We used cash of $583 million, $345 million
and $468 million for investing activities in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in use of cash
for 2006 was primarily due to purchases of debt and equity securities that are managed by outside investment
managers and the acquisition of four businesses. The primary source of cash to fund these purchases was the
proceeds from the sale of Telcordia, which was reflected as cash from investing activities of discontinued
operations. In fiscal 2005, we used less cash for investing activities because we did not purchase any land or
buildings as we did in fiscal 2004, and our purchases of debt and equity securities, net of proceeds from sales of
investments, decreased compared to fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2004, we used cash to purchase land and buildings in
McLean, Virginia that had previously been leased. In each of fiscal 2006 and 2005, we used $212 million to
acquire four businesses for our Government segment. In fiscal 2004, we used cash of $193 million to acquire
eight businesses for our Government segment and two businesses for our Commercial segment. All of these
acquisitions were part of our overall growth strategy.
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Cash Used in Financing Activities of Continuing Operations. We vsed cash of $713 million, $478 million
and $26 million in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, primarily for repurc‘hases of our common stock.
Fiscal 2004 uses of cash for financing activities were offset by net proceeds from a debt offering in June 2003.
The use of cash resources to repurchase shares of our common stock limits our ability to use that cash for other

purposes. Our common stock repurchase activities were as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
(in millions)

Repurchases of common stock:

Limited market stock trades ............... i, $399 $413 $265
Retirementplans ........ ... ... o i il 228 75 74
Upon employee terminations ... .......c.ouunienennennann... 112 68 56
Other stock transactions . . ...t i, 79 51 56
Total L e $818 $607 $451

We have the right, but not the obligation, to repurchase stock in the limited|market, to the extent that total
planned sales exceed total planned purchases. The increase in repurchases in fiscal 2006 and 2005 was primarily
attributable to an increase in the number of shares offered for sale relative to the ( umber of shares sought to be
purchased, in addition to increases in share price. Included in the fiscal 2005 shares offered for sale were
approximately 1.5 million shares sold by our founder and former chairman Wl}lo retired in fiscal 2005. The
increase in repurchases from the retirement plans in fiscal 2006 is primarily due to repurchases of $106 million
from the Telcordia 401(k) Plan and repurchase of $122 million from the SAIC Retirement Plan. As a result of the
sale of Telcordia, our common stock is no longer an investment choice for future contributions in the Telcordia
401(k) Plan. As of January 31, 2006, the Telcordia 401(k) Plan held approxim£te]y 3.5 million shares of our
Class A common stock, which had a fair value of $156 million. We no longer have a right of repurchase under
the terms of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation with respect to the shares ofJ our common stock held by the
Telcordia 401(k) Plan or any other contractual right to repurchase these shares. However, we agreed with
Telcordia to provide an opportunity for the Telcordia 401(k) Plan to sell shares of our Class A common stock in
any trade in which our retirement plans have such an opportunity prior to con}pletion of the public offering.
Further, we agreed that if the public offering is completed, the Telcordia 401(k) Plan will have the same
opportunity to sell shares of Class A preferred stock of SAIC, Inc. as other stockholders generally, but will not
have the opportunity to sell such shares in any additional opportunities provided |to our retirement plans that are

not otherwise provided to other stockholders generally.

Repurchases of our shares reduce the amount of retained earnings in the|stockholders’ equity section of
our consolidated balance sheets. If we continue to repurchase our shares in excess of our cumulative earnings,
our retained earnings will be reduced and could result in an accumulated deficit within our stockholders’ equity.

Outstanding Indebtedness

Notes payable and long-term debt totaled $1.2 billion and $1.3 billion at January 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, with long-term debt maturities between calendar 2008 and 2033. In addition to our long-term debt,
we have two revolving five-year credit facilities totaling $750 million with a gr?rup of financial institutions. One
of the credit facilities is for an aggregate principal amount up to $500 million and expires in July 2007. The other
credit facility is for an aggregate principal amount up to $250 million and expires in July 2009. If the merger
described in “—Proposed Public Offering” is approved by our stockholders, shortly before the completion of the
merger, SAIC, Inc. intends to guarantee approximately $1.2 billion of our no(tes payable and long-term debt

obligations in addition to our revolving credit facilities.
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Notes Payable and Long-term Debt. Our outstanding notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the
following:

January 31
2006 2005
(in millions)
55%notes due 2033 ... e $ 296 $ 296
6.25% notes due 2012 . .. 548 548
7125% notes due 2032 .. 248 248
6.75% notes due 2008 . .. ... e 94 95
3-yearnote due 2006 .. ... ... . 17 30
Othernotespayable ............. ... o i i 36 68
1,239 1,285
Less Current POTtION . . . . oottt t et et e e e s 47 70
Total e $1,192  $1,215

All of the long-term notes described above contain customary restrictive covenants, including, among
other things, restrictions on our ability to create liens and enter into sale and leaseback transactions. We were in
compliance with such covenants as of January 31, 2006. Our other notes payable have interest rates from 2.9% to
6.0% and are due on various dates through 2016. For additional information on our notes payable and long-term
debt, see Note 13 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

Revolving Credit Facilities. Borrowings under our two revolving five-year credit facilities are unsecured
and bear interest at rates determined, at our option, based on either LIBOR plus a margin or a defined base rate.
As of January 31, 2006, no loans were outstanding under either of our credit facilities and the entire $250 million
under our $250 million credit facility was available for borrowing. However, only $391 million of the $500
million credit facility was available for borrowing as of January 31, 2006 as standby letters of credit of
approximately $109 million were issued under this credit facility due to bonding requirements that we have under
the Greek contract. The terms of the standby letters of credit require them to remain outstanding until the
customer has formally accepted the system pursuant to the contract. See “—Commitments and Contingencies—
Firm Fixed-Price Contract with the Greek Government.”

Our two revolving credit facilities contain customary restrictive covenants. The financial covenants
contained in the credit facilities require us to maintain a trailing four-quarter interest coverage ratio of not less
than 3.5 to 1.0 and a ratio of consolidated funded debt to a trailing four-quarter earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization of not more than 3.0 to 1.0. These covenants also restrict certain of our activities,
including, among other things, our ability to create liens, dispose of assets, merge or consolidate with other
entities and create guaranty obligations. The credit facilities also contain customary provisions on events of
default. As of January 31, 2006, we were in compliance with all covenants under the credit facilities. We will
need to obtain consents under our revolving credit facilities prior to the proposed merger and payment of the
special dividend described in “—Proposed Public Offering.”

Cash Flow Expectations for Fiscal 2007

Assuming we complete the public offering, we expect our greatest cash inflow for fiscal 2007 to be the
proceeds from the public offering and our greatest use of cash to be for the payment of the special dividend as
described in “—Proposed Public Offering.” We expect to make approximately $80 million to $120 million of
capital expenditures in fiscal 2007.

In contemplation of the public offering as described in “—Proposed Public Offering,” the last limited
market trade is expected to occur in June 2006. As described in “—Liquidity and Capital Resources,” for our
retirement plans, May 2006 and June 2006 trades have been scheduled to permit participants to offer to buy or
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sell shares in accordance with the terms of those plans. While we cannot predict how|/many shares, if any, we will
repurchase through the trades in fiscal 2007, it is possible that we will spend as much or more than we spent for
repurchases in fiscal 2006. If the offering is completed, we will conduct four schedltled trades for our retirement
plans following completion of the offering through which participants in retirement plans may offer to buy or sell
shares in accordance with the terms of those plans. In the May 2006 and June 2006 trades before the public
offering and in the four scheduled trades following completion of the public offering, we will have the right, but
not the obligation, to buy the net balance of shares offered by participants in the retirement plans. If the public
offering is completed, the retirement plans will also have the opportunity to convert shares of SAIC, Inc. Class A
preferred stock into SAIC, Inc. common stock and sell those shares into the public market to the extent
permissible under the transfer restrictions on the SAIC, Inc. Class A preferred stock.

If we complete the public offering and pay the special dividend as described in “—Proposed Public
Offering,” we expect to have sufficient funds from our existing cash, cash|equivalents and short-term
investments to pay the special dividend. Assuming we complete the public offering|and pay the special dividend,
we expect our cash and cash equivalents, borrowing capacity and expected cash flows from operations to provide
sufficient funds for at least the next 12 months for our operations, capital expenditures, stock repurchases from
our retirement plans, possible business acquisitions and equity investments, and to meet our contractual

obligations, including interest payments on our outstanding debt.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are party to various off-balance sheet arrangements including Various[ guarantees, indemnifications
and lease obligations. We have outstanding performance guarantees and cross-indemnity agreements in
conjunction with our joint venture investments. See Notes 16 and 19 of the nc})tes to consolidated financial
statements for detailed information about our lease commitments and “—Commit‘ments and Contingencies” for

detailed information about our guarantees associated with our joint ventures.

In connection with the sale of Telcordia, as described in Note 18 of the I}O'[CS to consolidated financial
statements, we retained certain obligations as described in “—Commitments and Contingencies.” We also have
customary indemnification obligations and have waived our right to repurchase our common stock from the
Telcordia 401(k) Plan as previously discussed.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our obligations to make future payments pursuant to certain contracts or
arrangements as of January 31, 2006, as well as an estimate of the timing in which these obligations are expected
to be satisfied:

Payments Due by Fiscal Year

2012
2008-  2010- and
Total 2007 2009 2011 After

(in millions)

Contractual obligations:

Long-termdebt (1) .................... $2,417  $120 | $249 $139  $1,909
Operating lease obligations (2) ........... 300 103 113 47 37
Capital lease obligations (3) ............. 4 3 1 — —
Estimated purchase obligations (4) ....... 48 26 22 — —
Other long-term labilities (5) .. .......... 83 18 33 24 8
Total contractual obligations ................ $2.852  $270 | $418 $210  $1,954

(1) Includes total interest payments on our outstanding debt of $76 million in fiscal 2007, $148 million in
fiscal 2008-2009, $137 million in fiscal 2010-2011 and $806 million in|fiscal 2012 and after.
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(2) Excludes $91 million related to an operating lease on a contract with the Greek government as we are
not obligated to make the lease payments to the lessee if our customer defaults on payments to us, as
described in “—Commitments and Contingencies—Firm Fixed-Price Contract with the Greek
Government” and Notes 16 and 19 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

(3) Includes interest and executory costs of approximately $1 million.

(4) Includes estimated obligations to transfer funds under legally enforceable agreements for fixed or
minimum amounts or quantities of goods or services at fixed or minimum prices. Excludes purchase
orders for products or services to be delivered pursuant to U.S. Government contracts in which we have
full recourse under normal contract termination clauses.

(5) Includes estimated payments to settle the fiscal 2002 and 2003 swap agreements (as described in Note
8 of the notes to consolidated financial statements), contractually required payments to the foreign
defined benefit pension plan and deferred compensation arrangements. Because payments under the
deferred compensation arrangements are based upon the participant’s termination, we are unable to
determine when such amounts will become due. Therefore, for purpose of this table we assumed equal
payments over the next six years.

Commitments and Contingencies
Telkom South Africa

As described in Note 19 of the notes to consolidated financial statements, our former Telcordia subsidiary
instituted arbitration proceedings before the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC), against Telkom South
Africa in March 2001 as a result of a contract dispute. Telkom South Africa successfully challenged the
arbitrator’s partial award in our favor in the South African trial court, and we have appealed this decision to the
South African Supreme Court. In a separate proceeding, we unsuccessfully attempted to have our partial
arbitration award confirmed by the U.S. District Court. Telcordia has appealed this ruling to the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Third Circuit. Oral arguments were held on January 13, 2006 and the parties are awaiting a
decision.

On March 15, 2005, we sold Telcordia to an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and Providence Equity
Partners Inc. Pursuant to the definitive stock purchase agreement relating to the sale, we are entitled to receive all
of the net proceeds from any judgment or settlement with Telkom South Africa, and, if this dispute is settled or
decided adversely against Telcordia, we are obligated to indemnify the buyer of Telcordia against any loss that
may result from such an outcome.

Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved in the dispute and the uncertainty of
litigation in general, the outcome of the arbitration and the related court actions are not presently determinable;
however, an adverse resolution could materially harm our business, consolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. We do not have any assets or liabilities recorded related to this contract and the
related legal proceedings as of January 31, 2006 and 2005. We do not believe a material loss is probable based on
the procedural standing of the case and our understanding of applicable laws and facts.

Firm Fixed-Price Contract with the Greek Government

Original Contract. In May 2003, we entered into a euro-denominated firm-fixed-price contract with the
Hellenic Republic of Greece (the Customer), as represented by the Ministry of Defense, to provide a C4l
{Command, Control, Communications, Coordination and Integration) System (the System), to support the 2004
Athens Summer Olympic Games (the Olympics), and to serve as the security system for the Customer’s public
order departments following completion of the Olympics. The System is comprised of 29 subsystems, organized
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into three major functional areas: the Command Decision Support System (CDSS), the Communication and
Information System and the Command Center Systems. A significant amount of effort on this contract has been
and will be performed by subcontractors to us. Under the contract, the System was to be completed, tested, and
accepted by September 1, 2004, at a price of approximately $199 million. To date| we have received advance
payments totaling approximately $147 million. The contract also requires us to pﬁ}ovide five years of System
support and maintenance for approximately $11 million and ten years of TETRA radio network services for
approximately $102 million. Under the terms of the contract, our obligation to prO\J/ide the System support and
maintenance and TETRA radio network services only begins upon System accéptance, which has not yet

. 0 . [R3 o ‘ .
occurred. The contract contains an unpriced option for an additional five years of T E'T RA network services.

The Memorandum. On July 7, 2004, shortly before the start of the Olympics, we entered into an
agreement (the Memorandum) with the Hellenic Republic, as represented by the Committee for Planning and
Monitoring the Olympic Security Command Centers, pursuant to which the parties“ recognized and agreed that:
(1) delivery and acceptance of the System had not been completed by the scheduled date; (2) the System would
be delivered for use at the Olympics in its then-current state, which included certldin omissions and deviations
attributable to both parties; (3) a new process for testing and acceptance of the Sys‘em would be instituted, with
final acceptance to occur no later than October 1, 2004; (4) the Customer would proceed with the necessary
actions for the completion of a contract modification as soon as possible; and (5) \éve would receive a milestone

payment of approximately $23 million immediately upon the execution of the contra‘aet modification.

Delivery of System, Testing and Negotiations. The Customer took delivery of the System for use and
operation during the Olympics, and continues to use significant portions of the System. The System has not been
accepted by the Customer under the terms of the Greek contract, and the contract modification anticipated under
the Memorandum has not been obtained. In November 2004, we delivered a reviseéi version of the CDSS portion
of the System to the Customer. Beginning in December 2004 and continuing thrm‘lgh April 2005, the Customer
performed subsystems acceprance testing on each of the subsystems comprising the System based on test
procedures that had not been mutually agreed upon by the parties. The Customer identified numerous omissions
and deviations in its test reports. We believe that certain of these omissions and deyiations are valid, while others
are not. From December 2004 through April 2005, we engaged in negotiations with the Customer concerning a
modification to the contract to resolve the disputes. On April 28, 2005, the Customer formally notified us that the
System delivered had significant deviations and omissions from the contractual requirements and may not be

accepted.

Under the terms of the contract and the Memorandum between the parties, we submitied various
proposals to the Customer to remedy these omissions and deviations. The most significant of these proposals
includes a redevelopment of CDSS using an alternative technical approach, and a redesigned port security
system. The first proposal for an alternative CDSS technical approach was| submitted in June 2005. On
November 25, 2005, the Customer notified us that its technical advisors declined to recommend either the
acceptance or rejection of our remediation plan for an alternative CDSS. On Dec‘ember 5, 2005, we sent a letter
advising the Customer that unless an agreement is reached with respect to the alternative CDSS approach, we
intend to initiate the dispute process contained in the Greek contract, which includes binding arbitration as our
final step. On December 13, 20035, the Customer delivered a letter to us indicating that our proposal based on the
alternative CDSS approach is deemed “acceptable in principle” on the terms proposed. The parties reengaged in
negotiations in early January 2006 on a contract modification to incorpora‘t'e these proposals. A contract
modification has not yet been executed and would be required in order for us to implement the proposals and
achieve Customer acceptance of the System. We anticipate that such modification would include the parties’
agreement on appropriate price adjustments for omissions and deviations mot satisfied by the proposed

remediation of the System and a revised testing and acceptance process as contemplated under the Memorandum.

Subcontracts. We have subcontracted a significant portion of the requirements under the Greek contract,
including the lease of certain equipment and TETRA network services for at least 10 years. In order for us to

implement the technical proposals submitted to the Customer and contempljated by the modification being
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negotiated with the Customer, we would need to negotiate and execute modifications to the subcontracts with our
subcontractors, including price. Certain of the omissions and deviations of the System are attributable to
subcontracted work. Payments to the subcontractors are generally required only if we receive payment from the
Customer related to the subcontractors” work. If it is determined we breached our obligations to any of our
subcontractors, we may incur additional losses.

Under the terms of the Greek contract, we are not obligated to provide TETRA network services to the
Customer until the Customer has accepted the System. We and our subcontractors have provided System support
and maintenance and TETRA network services to the Customer since the Olympics in August 2004, without
receiving any compensation. In September 2005, the principal subcontractor notified us that it would no longer
commit to continue providing TETRA network services, although it has continued to provide such services to
date.

Legality of the Contract. In March 2005, the Customer notified us that an issue had been raised
concerning the legality of the contract by a Greek government auditor. In August 2005, we learned that the Court
of Auditors of the Hellenic Republic (the Greek Audit Court), a government agency with authority to review and
audit procurements, issued a decision finding that certain mistakes in the procurement process committed by the
Greek government rendered the contract illegal. The Customer requested revocation of the Greek Audit Court
decision. On November 17, 2005, the Greek Audit Court issued a decision finding that the errors committed by
the Customer in the procurement process constituted “pardonable mistakes” with respect to prior payments under
the contract. Although the rationale of the Greek Audit Court decision suggests that the Customer may be able to
make future payments under the contract, the impact of the decision on the legality of the contract and the
Customer’s ability to make future payments is not clear.

Financial Status and Contingencies of the Contract. We have recorded $121 million of contract losses as
of January 31, 2006. Of this amount, $83 million was recorded in fiscal 2006, $34 million in fiscal 2005 and
$4 million in fiscal 2004. These losses reflect our estimated total cost to complete the System and obtain
Customer acceptance and estimated reductions in price as a result of omissions and deviations from the contract
requirements. Because of the significant uncertainties related to ultimate acceptance and payment from the
Customer, our current accounting treatment limits the total revenue to be realized under the contract to the cash
received to date. Although we expect to pursue remaining amounts owed under the terms of the contract, this
reduction in total estimated revenues to be realized under the contract increased the total loss by $32 million
during 2006, which is included in the loss amounts discussed above. Through Januvary 31, 2006, we have
recognized revenues of $119 million, which represent a portion of the $147 million cash collected to date based
upon the percentage-of-completion method of revenue recognition.

As of January 31, 2006, the estimated future costs to complete the System and obtain Customer
acceptance is $52 million. This estimated cost is included in the $121 million contract losses recorded as of
January 31, 2006. Management has used this estimate and its judgment in evaluating the various uncertainties
and assumptions necessary to recognize the total estimated loss on this contract. Such assumptions include
obtaining mutual agreement with the Customer regarding system requirements, execution of a modification to the
contract, completion of the System and Customer acceptance. The total costs are significantly affected by the
timing of events such as executing a contract modification and ultimate Customer acceptance. Management has
estimated that final acceptance of the System under a modified contract will occur in January 2008. Qur recorded
losses exclude potential subcontractor payments associated with the omissions and deviations related to specific
subsystems supplied by subcontractors in the amount of $12 million that management believes will not be paid
under the subcontract terms.

We have $13 million of accounts receivable relating to Value Added Taxes (VAT) that we have paid and
believe we are entitled to recover either as a refund from the taxing authorities or as a payment under the Greek
contract upon final billing. The contract requires the Customer to pay amounts owed for VAT for the System
delivered. Failure by the Customer to pay these amounts could result in an additional obligation payable by us to
the Greek taxing authorities and would increase our total losses on the contract.
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In accordance with the terms of the contract, we are required to provide
and offset bonds in favor of the Customer. The bonding requirements have beer
standby letters of credit. Under the terms of these bonding arrangements, the Cust
call some or all of the $234 million of standby letters of credit outstanding. We
probable that the Customer will call these standby letters of credit. If the standby
may have the right to call some or all of the $99 million in performance bonds provided by our subcontractors
guaranteeing the performance of their work under the contract.

Independent Review. Prompted by the poor financial performance of the

Greek contract

certain payment, performance
1 met through the issuance of
omer currently has the right to
do not currently believe it is
letters of credit are called, we

| , the continuing

challenges of the Greek contract and a communication from an employee raising concerns about the management

of the Greek contract, an independent review was initiated to identify the cau

‘ses of these problems for the

purpose of understanding and addressing them. A special committee of independent directors was established to
oversee this review and independent legal counsel was retained to assist the committee. The scope of the review

included consideration of potential implications to financial reporting. The comm
evaluate the findings of independent counsel and consider whether there were
reporting and disclosure. The independent counsel commenced its review in early
substantial number of individuals and reviewed substantial amounts of informat
were reported to our board of directors. Management evaluated the findings
concluded that there were no implications to financial reporting, the design of the
appropriate, disclosure controls operated as designed and there were no material

ttee instructed management to
any implications to financial
December 2005, interviewed a

ion. The results of the review

of independent counsel and
disclosure control process was
weaknesses in internal control

r board of directors, the Chief
resulting from the review and
cies, processes and procedures

over financial reporting with respect to the Greek contract. At the request of ou
Executive Officer has initiated an analysis of the observations and conclusions
begun the implementation of a number of improvements in our operational poli
with the goal of preventing the recurrence of similar problems in the future.

Arbitration Proceedings. Although we have been pursuing a contract mpdification with the Customer
since shortly after the Memorandum was signed in July 2004, due to the dif‘ficulties in reaching mutually
satisfactory terms, we instituted arbitration proceedings on April 21, 2006, before the International Chamber of
Commerce (ICC) against the Customer to pursue our rights and remedies provic!ied for in the contract and the
Memorandum and under Greek law. The arbitration complaint filed by us: (1) seeks an order under the contract
that the Customer’s extended use of the System under the circumstances constitutes constructive acceptance and
precludes the Customer from rejecting the System, (2) seeks damages for breach of contract, bad faith, use of the
System and other damages, (3) seeks a determination as to the legal status of ‘the contract as a result of the
illegality issue discussed above, and (4) if the contract is determined to be illegal, seeks compensation for the
commercial value of the System delivered and its use by the Customer and other dJamages. Under the terms of the
contract, disputes are subject to ultimate resolution by binding arbitration b‘efore a panel of three Greek
arbitrators in Greece. Due to the complex nature of the legal and factual issues i*‘nvolved and the uncertainty of
litigation in general, the outcome of the arbitration is uncertain. There is no assurance that we will prevail in the
arbitration.

In the event we do not prevail in the arbitration or are unable to resolve| the various disputes under the
contract as anticipated, we could incur additional losses. If the Customer as‘serts claims against us in the
arbitration and it is determined that we have breached the contract and, as a resqlt, owe the Customer damages,
such damages could include, but are not limited to, (1) re-procurement costs, (2) repayment of amounts paid
under the contract, (3) penalties for delayed delivery in an amount up to $15 million, and (4) forfeiture of a good

performance bond in the amount of $32 million.

Successful imposition of damages or claims by the Customer or subcontractors against us, the calling of
our bonds, additional contract costs required to fulfill our obligations, or additional revenue reductions arising
from the negotiation of the contract modification could have a material adverse affect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
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DS&S Joint Venture

In March 2006, we sold our interest in DS&S, a joint venture in which we owned a 50% interest at
January 31, 2006. DS&S maintains a $25 million credit facility, under which $7 million in principal amount and
$12 million in standby letters of credit were outstanding at January 31, 2006. We and the other joint venture
member each guaranteed 50% of DS&S’s commitments under this credit facility (up to a maximum amount of
$12.5 million each, plus certain additional charges), but we have not been required to perform under this
guarantee. As of January 31, 2006, we had an outstanding receivable of $1 million due us from DS&S, which
was repaid in conjunction with the sale. We and the other joint venture member also each guaranteed the
payment of 50% of legal and accounting fees incurred by DS&S in conjunction with an ongoing government
investigation. As of January 31, 2006, the fair value of the guarantee for legal and accounting fees was not
material to us, and we have not been required to perform on this guarantee. We were released from our guarantee
obligations relating to DS&S’s credit facility and legal and accounting fees as part of the sale. In addition, as part
of the sale, we agreed to indemnify the other joint venture member who purchased our interest in DS&S for
certain legal costs and expenses relating to the on-going government investigation involving DS&S and any
litigation resulting from that investigation up to the sum of the purchase price plus the amount received by us in
repayment of the $1 million loan receivable.

INTESA Joint Venture

INTESA. INTESA, a Venezuelan joint venture we formed in fiscal 1997 with Venezuela’s national oil
company, PDVSA, to provide information technology services in Latin America, is involved in various legal
proceedings. We had previously consolidated our 60% interest in the joint venture, but the operations of INTESA
were classified as discontinued operations as of January 31, 2003 and INTESA is currently insolvent. PDVSA
has refused to take action to dissolve the joint venture or have it declared bankrupt.

QOutsourcing Services Agreement and Guarantee. INTESA had derived substantially all its revenues from
an outsourcing services agreement with PDVSA that it entered into at the time the joint venture was formed. The
services agreement expired on June 30, 2002 and the parties were not able to reach agreement on a renewal. We
guaranteed INTESA’s obligations under the services agreement to PDVSA. Under the terms of the services
agreement, INTESA’s liability for damages to PDVSA in any calendar year is capped at $50 million. As a result,
our maximum potential liability to PDVSA under the guarantee in any calendar year, based on our guarantee of
PDVSA’s ownership interest in INTESA, is $20 million. To date, PDVSA has not asserted any claims.

Expropriation of Our Interest in INTESA. In fiscal 2003 and 2004, PDVSA and the Venezuelan
government took certain actions, including denying INTESA access to certain of its facilities and assets, that
prevented INTESA from continuing operations. In fiscal 2005, the Overseas Private Investment Company
(OPIC), a U.S. governmental entity that provides insurance coverage against expropriation of U.S. business
interests by foreign governments, determined that the Venezuelan government had expropriated our interest in
INTESA without compensation and paid us approximately $6 million in settlement of our claim.

Employment Claims of Former INTESA Employees. INTESA is a defendant in a number of lawsuits
brought by former employees seeking unpaid severance and pension benefits. PDVSA and SAIC Bermuda, our
wholly-owned subsidiary and the entity that held our interest in INTESA, were added as defendants in a number
of these suits. Based on the procedural standing of the cases and our understanding of applicable laws and facts,
we believe that our exposure to any possible loss related to these employment claims is either remote or, if
reasonably possible, immaterial.

Other Legal Proceedings Involving INTESA. The Attorney General of Venezuela initiated a criminal
investigation of INTESA in fiscal 2003 alleging unspecified sabotage by INTESA employees. We believe this
investigation is inactive. In connection with our expropriation claim, OPIC determined that INTESA did not
sabotage PDVSA’s infrastructure as alleged by PDVSA and the Venezuelan government. In addition, the
SENIAT, the Venezuelan tax authority, filed a claim against INTESA in fiscal 2004 for approximately $30
million for alleged non-payment of VAT taxes in fiscal 1998.

114




Potential Financial Impact. Many issues relating to INTESA, including |the termination of the services
agreement and the employment litigation brought by former INTESA employees, remain unresolved. Due to the
complex nature of the legal and factual issues involved in these matters and the uncertain economic and political
environment in Venezuela, the ocutcome is unot presently determinable; however, adverse resolutions could
materially harm our business, consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Other Joint Ventures

We are an investor in Danet Partnership GbR (Danet GbR), a German partnership accounted for under the
equity method. Danet GbR is the controlling shareholder in Danet GmbH. a German operating company (Danet
GmbH). Danet GbR has an internal equity trading market similar to our limited market. We are required to
provide liquidity rights to the other Danet GbR investors in certain circumstances. Absent a change in control
whereby we gain control over Danet GbR, these rights allow Danet GbR investors who are withdrawing from the
partnership to put their Danet GbR shares to us in exchange for the current fair value of those shares. If we gain
control over Danet GbR, all Danet GbR investors have the right to put their shares to us in exchange for the
current fair value of those shares. If Danet GbR investors put their shares to us, we may pay the put price in
shares of our common stock or cash. We do not currently record a liability for these put rights because their
exercise is contingent upon the occurrence of future events which we cannot determine will occur with any
certainty. In fiscal 2006, we paid $2 million to withdrawing Danet GbR investors who exercised their right to put
their Danet GbR shares to us. The maximum potential obligation assuming all the current Danet GbR investors
were to put their Danet GbR shares to us would be $7 million as of January 31, 2006. If we were to incur the
maximum obligation and buy all the partnership shares currently held by other Danet GbR investors, we would
then own 100% of Danet GbR and would hold a controlling interest in Danet GmbH

We have a guarantee that relates only to claims brought by the sole cu‘stomer of another of our joint
ventures, Bechtel SAIC Company, LLC, for specific contractual nonperformance of the joint venture. We also
have a cross-indemnity agreement with the joint venture partner, pursuant to which we will only be ultimately

responsible for the portion of any losses incurred under the guarantee equal to éur ownership interest of 30%.

Due to the nature of the guarantee, as of January 31, 2006, we are not able to [\.)roject the maximum potential
amount of future payments we could be required to make under the guarantee but, based on current conditions,
we believe the likelihood of having to make any payment is remote. Accordingly, no liability relating to this

guarantee is currently recorded.

On September 15, 2004, we entered into an agreement with EG&G Technical Services, Inc. (EG&QG), and
Parsons Infrastructure & Technology Group, Inc. (Parsons), to form Research and Development Solutions, LLC
(RDS), a Delaware limited liability company that will pursue contracts offered by the Department of Energy’s
National Energy Technical Laboratory. We, EG&G and Parsons, each have a| one-third equal joint venture
interest. In conjunction with a contract award to RDS, each joint venture partner was required to sign a
performance guarantee agreement with the U.S. Government. Under this agreement, we unconditionally
guarantee all of RDS’s obligations to the U.S. Government under the contract award, which has an estimated

total value of $217 million. We also have a cross-indemnity agreement with each of the other two joint venture

partners to protect us from liabilities for any U.S. Government claims resulting fr(s)m the actions of the other two
joint venture partners and to limit our liability to our share of the contract work. As of January 31, 2006, the fair

value of the guarantee is not material to us.
Other

We are subject to investigations and reviews relating to compliance with‘ various laws and regulations
with respect to our role as a contractor to agencies and departments of the U.S. Government and in connection
with performing services in countries outside of the United States. Such matters‘ can lead to criminal, civil or
administrative proceedings and we could be faced with penalties, fines, repayments or compensatory damages.

Adverse findings could also have a material adverse effect on us because off our reliance on government

115




contracts, Although we can give no assurance, based upon management’s evaluation of current matters that are
subject to U.S Government investigations of which we are aware and based on management’s current
understanding of the facts, we do not believe that the outcome of any such matter would have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows or our ability to conduct business.

We are also involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal conduct of our business, none
of which, in the opinion of our management, based upon current information, will likely have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows or our ability to conduct
business.

In the normal conduct of our business, we seek to monetize our patent portfolio through licensing
agreements. We also have and will continue to defend our patent positions when we believe our patents have
been infringed and are involved in such litigation from time to time. As described in Note 18 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements, on March 15, 2005, we sold our Telcordia subsidiary. Pursuant to the terms of
the definitive stock purchase agreement, we will receive 50% of any net proceeds Telcordia receives in the future
in connection with the enforcement of certain patent rights.

As part of the terms of the sale of Telcordia, in addition to the indemnification related to the Telkom
South Africa litigation, we also have indemnified the buyer for all income tax obligations on and through the date
of close. While we believe we have adequate accruals for these tax contingencies, the ultimate resolution of these
matters could differ from the amounts accrued. All of these future contingent payments or contingent purchase
price proceeds will continue to be reflected as discontinued operations in the period in which they arise.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management evaluates these estimates and
assumptions on an on-going basis, including those relating to allowances for doubtful accounts, inventories, fair
value and impairment of investments, fair value and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, income taxes,
warranty obligations, estimated profitability of long-term contracts, pension benefits, contingencies and
litigation. Our estimates and assumptions have been prepared on the basis of the most current reasonably
available information. The results of these estimates form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from
these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

We have several critical accounting policies that are both important to the portrayal of our financial
condition and results of operations and require management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments.
Typically, the circumstances that make these judgments complex and difficult have to do with making estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. We no longer consider our accounting policies for
pension plans and derivative instruments to be critical accounting policies. With the sale of Telcordia, our
remaining pension plans are not of a material size, and therefore our accounting policies for pension plans are not
considered critical accounting policies as the impact of management judgment related to pension plans is not
considered significant. Similarly, our use of derivative instruments has not been material since fiscal 2003, and
therefore we no longer consider our derivative instrument accounting policies to be critical accounting policies.
Our critical accounting policies are as follows:

Revenue Recognition. Our revenues are primarily recognized using the percentage-of-completion method
as discussed in Statement of Position 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain
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Production-Type Contracts.” Under the percentage-of-completion method, revenues are recognized based on
progress towards completion, with performance measured by the cost-to-cost method, efforts-expended method
or units-of-delivery method, all of which require estimating total costs at completion. Estimating costs at
completion on our long-term contracts, particularly due to the technical nature of the| services being performed, is
complex and involves significant judgment. Factors that must be considered in making estimates include labor
productivity and availability, the nature and technical complexity of the work| to be performed, potential
performance delays, the availability and timing of funding from the customer, the| progress toward completion
and the recoverability of claims. Adjustments to original estimates are often required as work progresses,
experience is gained and additional information becomes known, even though theJ scope of the work required
under the contract may not change. Any adjustment as a result of a change in estimates is made when facts
develop, events become known or an adjustment is otherwise warranted, such as in the case of a contract
modification. When estimates indicate that we will experience a loss on the contraét, we recognize the estimated
loss at the time it is determined. Additional information may subsequently indicate that the loss is more or less

than initially recognized, which would require further adjustment in our fin“amcial statements. We have
procedures and processes in place to monitor the actual progress of a project against estimates and our estimates

are updated quarterly or more frequently if circumstances warrant.

Although our primary revenue recognition policy is the percentage-of-completion method, we do have
contracts under which we use alternative methods to record revenue (see Note 1‘J of the notes to consolidated
financial statements). Selecting the appropriate revenue recognition method involves judgment based on the

contract and can be complex depending upon the structure and terms and conditions of the contract.

Costs incurred on projects accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method can be recognized
as pre-contract costs and deferred as an asset when we have been requested by the{customer to begin work under
a new contract, or extend or modify work under an existing contract (change order). We record pre-contract costs
when formal contracts or contract modifications have not yet been executed, and it is probable that we will
recover the costs through the issuance of a contract or contract modification. 'When the formal contract or
contract modification has been executed, the costs are recorded to the contract and revenue is recognized based
on the percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

Contract claims are unanticipated additional costs incurred in excess of the executed contract price that
we seek to recover from the customer. Such costs are expensed as incurred. |Additional revenue related to
contract claims is recognized when the amounts are awarded by the customer.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are provided utilizing the liability method, which requires the recognition of

deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the

carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Under the liability m(ethod, changes in tax rates and

laws are reflected in income in the period such changes are enacted. In addition, the provisions for federal, state,

. . . . . .
foreign and local income taxes are calculated on reported financial statement income before income taxes based

on current tax law and include the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates‘ from those used previously in
determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such provisions differ from the amounts currently payable because
certain items of income and expense are recognized in different time periods for financial reporting purposes than
for income tax purposes. We also have recorded liabilities for tax contingencies for open years based upon our
best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid. A significant portion of our income taxes payable

balance is comprised of tax accruals that have been recorded for tax contingencie[s.

Recording our provision for income taxes requires management to make significant judgments and
estimates for matters whose ultimate resolution may not become known until final resolution of an examination
by the IRS or State agencies. Additionally, recording liabilities for tax cor{rltingencies involves significant
judgment in evaluating our tax positions and developing our best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be

paid.
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Investments in Marketable and Private Equity Securities. Our marketable debt and equity securities are
carried on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded through equity. When the fair value
of a security falls below its cost basis and the decline is deemed to be other-than-temporary, we record the
difference between cost and fair value as an unrealized loss. Investments accounted for on the cost method or
equity method must be marked down to estimated fair value if an other-than-temporary decline occurs. In
determining whether a decline is other-than-temporary, management considers a wide range of factors that may
vary depending upon whether the investment is a marketable debt or equity security or a private investment.
These factors include the duration and extent to which the fair value of the security or investment has been below
its cost, recent financing rounds at a value that is below our carrying value, the operating performance of the
entity, its liquidity and our investment intent. The private equity investments involve more judgment than the
marketable equity securities because there is no readily available fair market value of a private equity security.
Therefore, management, in addition to considering a wide range of other factors, must also use valuation
methods to estimate the fair value of a private equity investment. Management judgments about these factors
may impact the timing of when an other-than-temporary loss is recognized, and management’s use of valuation
methods to estimate fair value may also impact the amount of the impairment loss.

Business Combinations and Goodwill Impairment. We have engaged and expect to continue to engage in
significant business acquisition activity. The accounting for business combinations requires management to make
judgments and estimates of the fair value of assets acquired, including the identification and valuation of
intangible assets, as well as the liabilities and contingencies assumed. Such judgments and estimates directly
impact the amount of goodwill recognized in connection with each acquisition. As of January 31, 2006, goodwill
represents 52% of our consolidated long-term assets and 12% of consolidated total assets.

Goodwill is tested annually in our fourth fiscal quarter and whenever an event occurs or circumstances
change such that it is reasonably possible that an impairment condition may exist. The goodwill impairment test
is a two-step process that requires management to make judgments in determining what assumptions to use in the
calculation. The first step of the process consists of estimating the fair value of each of the reporting units based
on a discounted cash flow model using revenue and profit forecasts and comparing those estimated fair values
with the carrying values, which includes the allocated goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying value, a
second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an implied fair value of
goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is the residual fair value derived by deducting the fair value of a
reporting unit’s identifiable assets and liabilities from its estimated fair value calculated in step one. The
impairment charge represents the excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied
fair value of goodwill. The revenue and profit forecasts used in step one are based on management’s best
estimate of future revenues and operating costs. Changes in these forecasts could cause a particular reporting unit
to either pass or fail the first step in the impairment test, which could significantly change the amount of the
impairment recorded from step two. In addition, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted to present value by
applying a discount rate. Changes in the discount rate impact the impairment by affecting the calculation of the
fair value of the reporting unit in step one.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment,” which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and
supercedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its
related implementation guidance. SFAS No. 123(R) focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which
share-based awards are granted to employees in exchange for services and requires recognition of compensation
expense over the vesting period in an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments, including stock
options, granted to and earned by employees. SFAS No. 123R also requires recognition of compensation expense
for the 15% discount on employee stock purchases made under our employee stock purchase plan (ESPP). SFAS
No. 123(R) retained the guidance from SFAS No. 123 for share-based payment transactions to non-employees.
We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) effective February 1, 2006.
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Prior to September 1, 2005, we met the definition of a non-public entity for
provisions of SFAS No. 123 and used the minimum value method for estimati

assumed no volatility in our fair value calculations in our pro forma net income c‘

the purposes of applying the
ng fair value. We, therefore,
lisclosures (see Note 1 of the

notes to consolidated financial statements). Effective with the filing of a registration statement by SAIC, Inc.

with the SEC on September {, 2005, we met the definition of a public comp
accordingly, have included a volatility estimate based on the estimated stock vol
awards granted after September 1, 2005. Including a volatility assumption resu
greater than that resulting from the minimum value method as has historically been

any per SFAS No. 123 and,
atility of our peers in valuing
Its in compensation expense
used.

We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) prospectively for awards

granted prior to September 1,

2005 and accounted for under the minimum value method. This means there will be no carryover expense on the
unvested portion of awards issued prior to September 1, 2005. We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R)

on a modified prospective basis for awards granted after September 1, 2005. This

expense on the unvested portion of awards issued after September 1, 2005 of appro
be recognized in our consolidated financial statements over approximately th
February 1, 2006.

The amount of compensation expense in fiscal 2007 is dependent upon

means there will be carryover
ximately $11 million that will

e next four years beginning

the number of awards to be

granted and ESPP participation levels. Since February 1, 2006, we awarded stock

options with an estimated fair

value of approximately $49 million, net of forfeiture estimates, that will be recognized ratably over the next four

years. Substantially all of these stock options were granted in conjunction with

compensation awards. Of the total options granted in fiscal 2006, 2005 and
respectively, of the options were granted in conjunction with the annual fiscal yea

the annual fiscal year bonus
2004, 75%, 75% and 67%,

r bonus compensation awards.

If we had adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in fiscal 2006, we would have also recognize
discount on ESPP shares.

Effects of Inflation

Our cost-reimbursement type contracts are generally completed within o

generally been able to anticipate increases in costs when pricing our contracts.
T&M contracts typically include sufficient provisions for labor and other cost esc
over the period of performance. Consequently, revenues and costs have generally

d expense of $9 million for the

ne year. As a result, we have
Bids for longer-term FFP and
alations to cover cost increases
both increased commensurate

with the general economy. As a result, net income as a percentage of total consolidated revenues has not been
significantly impacted by inflation.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks in the normal course of business. Our current market risk
exposures are primarily related to interest rates and foreign currency fluctuations. The following information
about our market sensitive financial instruments contains forward-looking statements.

Interest Rate Risk. Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rat‘es relates primarily to our cash
equivalents, investments in marketable securities, interest rate swaps and long-term debt obligations.

We have established an investment policy to protect the safety, liquidity) and after-tax yield of invested
funds. This policy establishes guidelines regarding acceptability of instruments and maximum maturity dates and
requires diversification in the investment portfolios by establishing maximum amounts that may be invested in
designated instruments. We do not authorize the use of derivative financial inst‘ruments in our managed short-
term investment portfolios. Our policy authorizes the limited use of derivative ins‘truments only to hedge specific

interest rate risks.
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The table below provides information about our financial instruments at January 31, 2006 that are
sensitive to changes in interest rates. For debt obligations and short-term investments, the table presents principal
cash flows in U.S. dollars and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. For interest rate
swap agreements, the table presents the notional amounts and weighted average interest rates. The notional
amounts are used to calculate the contractual cash flows to be exchanged under the contracts. As described in
Note 8 of the notes to consolidated financial statements, the swap agreements we entered into in May 2003 are
expected to substantially offset interest rate exposures related to the swap agreements previously entered into in
January 2002. As a result, on a combined basis, these swaps are no longer exposed to changing interest rates and
we have excluded these swap agreements from the table below.

Estimated
There- Fair Value as of
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 after Total January 31, 2006
(dollars in millions)
Assets:
Cash equivalents (1) .......... $1,032 — — — — —  $1,032 $1,032
Average interestrate .......... 4.41% — — — — —
Investment in marketable
securities:
Variablerate .............. $1,659 — — — — —  $1,65% $1,659
Weighted average interest
TAtE . 4.53% — — — — — —
Liabilities:
Short-term and long-term debt:
Variable interest rate (2) .. ... $ 44 — $ 1 § 1 $ 1 $ 3 $ 350 $ 50
Weighted average interest
FALE e 4.01% — 4.46% 4.46% 4.46% 4.46%
Fixedrate ................ $ 3 $§ 1 $100 — —  $1,100 $1,204 $1,252
Weighted average interest
TAte .. 587% 590% 6.75% — — 6.24%
Interest Rate Derivatives
Interest rate swap agreements . . .
Fixed to variable ........... $ 100 $ 100 $ 3
Average receiverate ...... 6.75% 6.75% 6.75%
Average payrate ......... 788% 7.88% 7.88%

(1) Includes $21 million denominated in British pounds

(2) The fiscal 2006 amount includes $19 million denominated in Euros and $7 million denominated in Canadian
dollars

Short term interest rates related to these financial instruments have increased since January 31, 2005,
while long term interest rates remained relatively consistent. At January 31, 2006, our investments in marketable
securities and cash equivalents were higher than January 31, 2005 by approximately $292 million and $64
million, respectively. We also had a larger portion of our marketable securities invested in financial instruments
bearing variable interest rates at January 31, 2006 than January 31, 2005. The combination of the increase in
overall investments in cash equivalents and higher concentration of marketable securities bearing variable
interest rates results in greater sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Foreign Currency Risk. Although the majority of our transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars, some
transactions are denominated in various foreign currencies. Our objective in managing our exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations is to mitigate adverse fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Our policy allows us to actively manage cash flows, anticipated
transactions and firm commitments through the use of natural hedges and forward foreign exchange contracts.
We do not use foreign currency derivative instruments for trading purposes.
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We assess the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical (changes in foreign currency
exchange rates on market sensitive instruments by performing a sensitivity analysis. The fair values for forward
foreign exchange contracts were estimated using spot rates in effect on January 31, 2006. The differences that
result from comparing hypothetical foreign exchange rates and actual spot rates as of January 31, 2006 are the
hypothetical gains and losses associated with foreign currency risk. As of January 31, 2006, holding all other
variables constant, a 10% weakening of the U.S. dollar against each hedged currency would affect the fair values
of the forward foreign exchange contracts by immaterial amounts.
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BUSINESS
The Company

We are a leading provider of scientific, engineering, systems integration and technical services and
solutions to all branches of the U.S. military, agencies of the U.S. Department of Defense (DoD), the intelligence
community, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and other U.S. Gfovemment civil agencies, as
well as to customers in selected commercial markets. Our customers seek our domain expertise to solve complex
technical challenges requiring innovative solutions for mission-critical functions in such areas as national
security, intelligence and homeland defense. Increasing demand for our serviceé and solutions is driven by

priorities including the ongoing global war on terror and the transformation of the ULS. military.

On September 1, 2005, our newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary, SAIC, Inc., filed a registration
statement on Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) forj an initial public offering of
common stock (public offering). In addition, SAIC, Inc. filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-4
and we delivered to our stockholders a proxy statement/prospectus to obtain stockholder approval of a merger
agreement pursuant to which we would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of SAIC, Inc. In the merger, each
share of our Class A common stock would be converted into the right to receive thfo shares of Class A preferred
stock of SAIC, Inc., and subject to the exercise of appraisal rights, each share o“f our Class B common stock
would be converted into the right to receive 40 shares of Class A preferred stock of SAIC, Inc. If the merger is
completed, the new common stock of SAIC, Inc. would have the same economic rights as the new Class A
preferred stock but would be entitled to one vote per share while the new Class A preferred stock would be
entitled to 10 votes per share. After the merger, SAIC, Inc. intends to offer its sPares of common stock to the
public. As a publicly traded company, SAIC, Inc. would have no right of first refusal on transfers of the new

Class A preferred stock or the new common stock and no right to repurchase thdse shares upon termination of

affiliation of an employee, director or consultant. The special meeting of stoc%kholders that was previously
scheduled for December 16, 2005 to vote on the merger was postponed due to derelopments regarding the firm
fixed-price contract with the Greek government as discussed in Note 19 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements. We intend to reschedule the special meeting of stockholders and, subject to stockholder approval of
the merger agreement, satisfactory market conditions and other factors, complete the merger and the public

offering in the Fall of 2006.

In conjunction with the public offering, the board of directors intends to declare a special dividend that
would be paid to the holders of our common stock as of a record date that would be set by the board of directors.
Payment would be conditioned upon completion of the public offering and it iF anticipated that the dividend
would be paid within 25 days after the completion of the public offering. The special dividend is expected to
range from approximately $8 to $10 per share of our Class A common stock and from approximately $160 to

$200 per share of our Class B common stock.

We have three reportable segments: Government, Commercial, and Corp}orate and Other. Our operating
business units, on which performance is assessed, are aggregated into the Government or Commercial segments,
depending on the nature of the customers, the contractual requirements anrd the regulatory environment
governing the business units’ services. The Corporate and Other segment includ?s the operations of our broker-
dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc., our internal real estate management subsidiary, Campus Point Realty Corporation,
and various corporate activities, including elimination of intersegiment revenues. For additional information
regarding our reportable segments and geographic areas, see Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial

statements.
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Government Segment

Our Government segment provides a wide array of technical services and solutions in the following areas,
primarily to U.S. federal, state and local government agencies and foreign governments.

*  Defense Transformation. We develop leading-edge concepts, technologies and systems to solve
complex challenges facing the U.S. military and its allies, helping them transform the way they fight.

s Intelligence. We develop solutions to help the U.S. defense, intelligence and homeland security
communities build an integrated intelligence picture, allowing them to be more agile and dynamic in
challenging environments and produce actionable intelligence.

*  Homeland Security and Defense. We develop technical solutions and provide systems integration and
mission-critical support services to help federal, state, local and foreign governments and private-sector
customers protect the United States and allied homelands.

» Logistics and Product Support. We provide logistics and product support solutions to enhance the
readiness and operational capability of U.S. military personnel and weapon and support systems.

*  Systems Engineering and Integration. We provide systems engineering and integration solutions to help
our customers design, manage and protect complex IT networks and infrastructure.

*  Research and Development. As one of the largest science and technology contractors to the U.S.
Government, we conduct leading-edge research and development of new technologies with applications
in areas such as national security, intelligence and life sciences.

Revenues from our Government segment accounted for 94%, 94% and 93% of our total consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Within the Government segment, substantially all of our
revenues are derived from contracts with the U.S. Government. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, we derived 89%,
86% and 85%, respectively, of our total consolidated revenues from contracts with the U.S. Government. These
revenues include contracts where we serve as the prime or lead contractor, as well as contracts where we serve as
a subcontractor to other parties who are engaged directly with various U.S. Government agencies as the prime
contractor.

We own 55% of AMSEC LLC, a joint venture that provides maintenance engineering and technical
support services to the U.S. Navy and marine industry customers. The results of AMSEC are reported in our
Government segment on a consolidated basis.

Commercial Segment

Our Commercial segment provides technology-driven consulting, systems integration and outsourcing
services and solutions in selected commercial markets, currently IT support for oil and gas exploration and
production, applications and IT infrastructure management for utilities and data lifecycle management for
pharmaceuticals, in the United States and abroad. We apply domain-specific expertise, and adapt consulting and
technology services and solutions developed for our Government segment customers, to fulfill the needs of our
Commercial segment customers. Revenues from our Commercial segment accounted for 7% of our total
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Discontinued Operations

On March 15, 2005, we completed the sale of our subsidiary, Telcordia Technologies, Inc. (Telcordia) to
TTI Holding Corporation, an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC and Providence Equity Partners Inc. The
operations of Telcordia are classified as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of income and
cash flows and the notes to consolidated financial statements, and its assets and liabilities classified as held for
sale in the consolidated balance sheets. Telcordia’s results of operations had been previously reported as our
Non-Regulated Telecommunications segment. For further discussion related to Telcordia, see “Management
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Commitments and Contingencies—
Telkom South Africa” and Note 18 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Other Company Information

We were originally incorporated as a California corporation in 1969 and re-incorporated as a Delaware
corporation in 1984. Our corporate headquarters are located at 10260 Campus Point‘l Drive, San Diego, California
92121 and our telephone number is (858) 826-6000. All references to “SAIC,” ‘fwe,” “us,” or “our” include,
unless the context indicates otherwise, our predecessor.

Contracts

We generate revenues under the following types of contracts: (1) cost-reimbursement,
(2) time-and-materials (T&M), (3) fixed price level-of-effort, (4) firm fixed-price (FFP) and (5) target cost and
fee with risk sharing. Cost-reimbursement contracts provide for reimbursement of|our direct costs and allocable
indirect costs, plus a fee or profit component. T&M contracts typically provide For the payment of negotiated
fixed hourly rates for labor hours, which includes allocable indirect costs and fee or profit, plus reimbursement of
our other direct costs. Fixed price level-of-effort contracts are substantially similar/ to T&M contracts except that
the deliverable is the labor hours provided to the customer. FFP contracts provide for payments to us of a fixed
price for specified products, systems and/or services. If actual costs vary from|the FFP target costs, we can
generate more or less than the targeted amount of profit or even incur a loss. Target cost and fee with risk sharing
contracts provide for reimbursement of costs, plus a specified or target fee or profit, if our actual costs equal a
negotiated target cost. Under these contracts, if our actual costs are less than the ta‘rget costs, we receive a portion
of the cost underrun as an additional fee or profit. If our actual costs exceed the [target costs, our target fee and
cost reimbursement are reduced by a portion of the cost overrun. We do not use target cost and fee with risk
sharing contracts in our Government segment.

The following table summarizes revenues by contract type as a percentage of total contract revenues for
the last three fiscal years:

Year Ended January 31

2006 2005 2004
Cost-reimbursement . ...........n ittt 46% 44% 45%
T&M and fixed price level-of-effort ........... ... . ... ... ..... 35 38 38
FFP and target cost and fee withrisk sharing .. ...................... 19 18 7

TOtAl ..ttt 100%  100%  100%

Contract Procurement

The U.S. Government technology services procurement environment has evolved in recent years due to
statutory and regulatory procurement reform initiatives. U.S. Government agencies traditionally have procured
technology services and solutions through agency-specific contracts awarded toj a single contractor. However, in
recent years the number of procurement contracting methods available to U.S. Government customers for
services procurements has increased substantially. Today, there are three p}edominant contracting methods
through which U.S. Government agencies procure technology services: traditional single award contracts, GSA

Schedule contracts, and single and multiple award IDIQ contracts. Each of these is described below:

¢ Traditionally, U.S. Government agencies have procured services and solutions through single award
contracts which specify the scope of services that will be delivered and identify the contractor that will
provide the specified services. When an agency has a requirement, interested contractors are solicited,
qualified and then provided with a request for a proposal. The process of qualification, request for
proposals and evaluation of bids requires the agency to maintain a large, professional procurement staff

and can take a year or more to complete.
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*  GSA Schedule contracts are listings of services, products and prices of contractors maintained by the
U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) for use throughout the U.S. Government. In order for a
company to provide services under a GSA Schedule contract, the company must be pre-qualified and
awarded a contract by GSA. When an agency uses a GSA Schedule contract to meet its requirements,
the agency, or the GSA on behalf of the agency, conducts the procurement. The user agency, or the GSA
on its behalf, evaluates the user agency’s services requirements and initiates a competition limited to
GSA Schedule qualified contractors. GSA Schedule contracts are designed to provide the user agency
with reduced procurement time and lower procurement costs.

* Single and multiple award indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity (IDIQ) contracts are contract forms
used to obtain commitments from contractors to provide certain products or services on pre-established
terms and conditions. Under IDIQ contracts, the U.S. Government issues task orders for specific
services or products it needs and the contractor supplies products or services in accordance with the
previously agreed terms. The competitive process to obtain task orders is limited to the pre-selected
contractor(s). If the IDIQ contract has a single prime contractor, the award of task orders is limited to
that party. If the contract has muitiple prime contractors, the award of the task order is competitively
determined. Multiple-contractor IDIQ contracts that are open for any government agency to use for the
procurement of services are commonly referred to as government-wide acquisition contracts, or
GWACs. Due to the lower cost, reduced procurement time, and increased flexibility of GWACs, there
has been greater use of GWACs among many agencies for large-scale procurements of technology
services. IDIQ contracts often have multi-year terms and unfunded ceiling amounts, therefore enabling
but not committing the U.S. Government to purchase substantial amounts of products and services from
one or more Contractors.

Backlog

Government segment funded backlog primarily represents the portion of backlog for which funding is
appropriated and is payable to us upon completion of a specified portion of work, less revenues previously
recognized on these contracts. Commercial segment funded backlog represents the full value on firm contracts,
which may cover multiple future years, under which we are obligated to perform less revenues previously
recognized on these contracts. Our funded backlog in the Government segment does not include the full potential
value of our contracts because the U.S. Government and our other customers often appropriate or authorize funds
for a particular program or contract on a yearly or quarterly basis, even though the contract may call for
performance over a number of years. When a definitive contract or contract amendment is executed and funding
has been appropriated or otherwise authorized, funded backlog is increased by the difference between the funded
dollar value of the contract or contract amendment and the revenues recognized to date. Negotiated unfunded
backlog represents (1) firm orders for which funding has not been appropriated or otherwise authorized and
(2) unexercised priced contract options. Negotiated unfunded backlog does not include any estimate of future
potential task orders that might be awarded under IDIQ, GWAC or GSA Schedule contract vehicles.
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The approximate value of our total negotiated backlog for the last three fiscal

years was as follows:

January 31
2006 | 2005 2004
(in millions)

Government Segment:
Fundedbacklog ......... ..ot .., $ 3398 §3333 § 3127
Negotiated unfunded backlog . . ..................... 11,169 9,656 7,359
Total negotiated backlog ............... ... ... ... $»14,567,r $12,989  $10,486
Commercial Segment:
Fundedbacklog ............ciiiiiniinnn.. $ 490 5 313 § 228
Negotiated unfunded backlog . ...................... 5 114 187
Total negotiated backlog . ...............coouein... $ 495 $ 427 $ 415
Total Consolidated:
Funded backlog ........covviiiiineniinannn.n. $ 3,88§ $ 3646 $ 3,355
Negotiated unfunded backlog . . ............... ... .. 11,174 9,770 7,546
Total consolidated negotiated backlog . ............... $1 5,06}2 $13,416  $10,901

We expect to recognize a substantial portion of our funded backiog as|revenues within the next 12
months. However, the U.S. Government may cancel any contract or purchase order at any time. In addition,
certain contracts and purchase orders in the Commercial segment may include provisions that allow the customer
to cancel at any time. Most of our contracts have cancellation terms that would| permit us to recover all or a
portion of our incurred costs and potential fees in such cases.

Key Customers

Our largest customer is the U.S. Government, in the aggregate accounting rwfor 89%, 86% and 85% of our
total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Within the U.S. Government, our largest

customers for each of the last three fiscal years were the U.S. Army, U.S. Navy ana U.S. Air Force. Each of these

customers has a number of subsidiary agencies which have separate budgets an‘d procurement functions. Our

contracts may be with the highest level or with the subsidiary agencies of these customers.

The percentage of total consolidated revenues attributable to each of these three major customers for the
last three fiscal years was as follows:

Year Ended January 31
2006 2005 2004
LN o' o) 2 A RN 16% 13% 13%
U S NaVY o e e 14 13 12
US.AirForce ... ... e 10 11 11

Competition

Competition for U.S. Government contracts is intense. We compete against a large number of major,
established multinational corporations which may have greater financial capabilities than we do. We also
compete against smaller, more specialized companies that concentrate their resources on particular areas. As a
result of the diverse requirements of the U.S. Government and our commercial| customers, we frequently form
teams with other companies to compete for large contracts, while bidding against team members in other
situations. Because of the current industry trend toward consolidation, we| expect major changes in the

competitive landscape. We believe that our principal competitors include the following companies:
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* Among contractors focused principally on U.S. Government IT and other technical services, we
compete primarily with companies such as Anteon International Corporation, CACI International Inc,
ManTech International Corporation, SRA International, Inc. and The Titan Corporation, which was
acquired by L-3 Communications.

* Among the large defense contractors which provide U.S. Government IT services in addition to other
hardware systems and products, we compete primarily with engineering and technical services divisions
of The Boeing Company, General Dynamics Corporation, Lockheed Martin Corporation, Northrop
Grumman Corporation and Raytheon Company.

* Among the diversified commercial and U.S. Government IT providers, we compete primarily with
companies such as Accenture Ltd, BearingPoint, Inc., Booz Allen Hamilton Inc., Computer Sciences
Corporation, Electronic Data Systems Corporation, International Business Machines Corporation and
Unisys Corporation.

We compete on factors including, among others, our technical expertise, our ability to deliver cost-
effective solutions in a timely manner, our reputation and standing with government and commercial customers,
pricing and the size and scale of our company.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our technical services and products are not generally dependent upon patent protection. We claim a
proprietary interest in certain of our products, software programs, methodology and know-how. This proprietary
information is protected by copyrights, trade secrets, licenses, contracts and other means.

We actively pursue opportunities to license our technologies to third parties and enforce our patent rights.
We also evaluate potential spin-offs of our technologies.

In connection with the performance of services for customers in the Government segment, the U.S.
Government has certain rights to data, software codes and related material that we develop under U.S.
Government-funded contracts and subcontracts. Generally, the U.S. Government may disclose such information
to third parties, including, in some instances, competitors. In the case of subcontracts, the prime contractor may
also have certain rights to the programs and products that we develop under the subcontract.

Research and Development

We conduct research and development activities under customer funded contracts and with independent
research and development (IR&D) funds. IR&D efforts consist of projects involving basic research, applied
research, development, and systems and other concept formulation studies. In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, we
spent approximately $27 million, $25 million and $19 million, respectively, on IR&D, which was included in
selling, general and administrative expenses.

Seasonality

The U.S. Government’s fiscal year ends on September 30 of each year. It is not uncommon for U.S.
Government agencies to award extra tasks or complete other contract actions in the weeks before the end of its
fiscal year in order to avoid the loss of unexpended fiscal year funds. As a result of this cyclicality in the U.S.
Government budget process, we have from time to time experienced higher revenues in our third fiscal quarter,
ending October 31, and lower revenues in our fourth fiscal quarter, ending January 31.

Regulation

We are heavily regulated in most fields in which we operate. We deal with numerous U.S. Government
agencies and entities, including all of the branches of the U.S. military, the DoD, NASA, intelligence agencies,
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the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the DHS. When working with these an other U.S. Government
agencies and entities, we must comply with and are affected by laws and regulations relating to the formation,
administration and performance of contracts. These laws and regulations, among othefr things:

+ require certification and disclosure of all cost or pricing data in connection with various contract
negotiations

* impose acquisition regulations that define allowable and unallowable costs and otherwise govern our

right to reimbursement under various cost-based U.S. Government contracty

» restrict the use and dissemination of information classified for national security purposes and the
exportation of certain products and technical data.

In order to help ensure compliance with these laws and regulations, all of our employees are required to
attend ethics training at least bi-annually and other compliance traiming relevant to their position.

Internationally, we are subject to special U.S. Govermment laws and regulations (such as the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act), local government regulations and procurement policies and practices (including
regulations relating to import-export control, investments, exchange controls and repatriation of earnings) and
varying currency, political and economic risks. Some international customers requ/ire contractors to comply with
industrial cooperation regulations, sometimes referred to as offset programs. Offset programs may require
in-country purchases, manufacturing and financial support projects as a condition to obtaining orders or other
arrangements. Offset programs generally extend over several years and may provide for penalties in the event we
fail to perform in accordance with offset requirements.

Environmental Matters

Our operations, including the environmental consulting and investigative services we provide to third
parties, and our ownership or operation of real property are subject to various foreign, federal, state and local
environmental protection and health and safety laws and regulations. Failure to|comply with those laws could
result in civil or criminal sanctions, including fines, penalties or suspension or debarment from contracting with
the U.S. Government, or could cause us to have to incur costs to change or|upgrade or close some of our
operations or properties. Some environmental laws hold current or previous owners or operators of businesses
and real property liable for contamination, even if they did not know of and were not responsible for the
contamination. Environmental laws may also impose liability on any person who|disposes, transports, or arranges
for the disposal or transportation of hazardous substances to any site. In addition, we may face liability for
personal injury, property damage and natural resoutce damages relating to crontamination for which we are
otherwise liable or relating to exposure to or the mishandling of chemicals or other hazardous substances in
connection with our current and former operations or services. Although we dq not currently anticipate that the
costs of complying with, or the liabilities associated with, environmental Jaws will materially adversely affect us,
we cannot ensure that we will not incur material costs or liabilities in the future.

Employees and Consultants

As of January 31, 2006, we employed approximately 43,600 full and part-time employees. We also use
consultants to provide specialized technical and other services on specific |projects. To date, we have not
experienced any strikes or work stoppages and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

The highly technical and complex services and products provided| by us are dependent upon the
availability of professional, administrative and technical personnel having high levels of training and skills and,
in many cases, security clearances. Because of our growth and the increased cqmpetition for qualified personnel,
it has become more difficult to meet all of our needs for these employees in a timely manner and this has affected
our growth in recent years. We intend to continue to devote significant resources to recruit and retain qualified

employees.
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KEY OFFICERS

The following is a list of the names and ages (as of April 21, 2006) of all of our key officers, indicating
all positions and offices held by each such person and each such person’s principal occupation or employment
during at least the past five years. Except as otherwise noted, each of the persons listed below has served in his or
her present capacity for us for at least the past five years. All such persons have been elected to serve until their
successors are elected or until their earlier resignation or retirement.

Name of officer .‘A‘.ES
Deborah H. Alderson .... 49

Kenneth C. Dahlberg .... 61

Thomas E. Darcy

Steven P. Fisher

Donald H. Foley

John R. Hartley

Position(s) with the company and prior business experience

Group President since October 2005. Ms. Alderson previously served as
Deputy Group President from August 2005 to October 2005. Prior to joining
us, Ms. Alderson held various positions with Anteon International
Corporation, a systems integration services provider, including President of
the Systems Engineering Group from January 2002 to August 2005, and
Senior Vice President and General Manager of the Systems Engineering
Group from November 1998 to January 2002. Ms. Alderson held various
positions with Techmatics, Inc., a systems engineering provider, from 1985
to 1998.

Chairman of the Board since July 2004 and Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director since November 2003. Prior to joining us,
Mr. Dahlberg served as Corporate Executive Vice President of General
Dynamics Corp. from March 2001 to October 2003. Mr. Dahlberg served as
President of Raytheon International from February 2000 to March 2001, and
from 1997 to 2000 he served as President and Chief Operating Officer of
Raytheon Systems Company. Mr. Dahlberg held various positions with
Hughes Aircraft from 1967 to 1997. Mr. Dahlberg has served as a director of
Teledyne Technologies since February 2006.

Executive Vice President—Strategic Projects since November 2005. Mr.
Darcy had previously served as Corporate Executive Vice President since
December 2003 and Chief Financial Officer since October 2000. From
October 2000 to December 2003, Mr. Darcy was an Executive Vice
President. Prior to joining us, Mr. Darcy was with the accounting firm
currently known as PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP from July 1973 to
September 2000, where he served as partner from 1985 to 2000.

Treasurer since January 2001 and Senior Vice President since July 2001. Mr.
Fisher has held various positions with us since 1988, including serving as
Assistant Treasurer and Corporate Vice President for Finance from 1997 to
2001 and Vice President from 1995 to 1997.

Chief Engineering and Technology Officer since January 2005, Executive
Vice President since July 2000, and a Director since July 2002. Dr. Foley has
held various positions with us since 1992, including serving as Group
President from February 2004 to January 2005 and a Sector Vice President
from 1992 to July 2000.

Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller since August 2005. Mr.
Hartley has held various positions with our finance organization since 2001.
For 12 years prior to that, he was with the accounting firm currently known
as Deloitte & Touche LLP.
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Name of officer A_gf
Larry J.Peck ........... 58
Lawrence B. Prior, I .... 50
Amold L. Punaro ....... 59
William A. Roper, Jr. .... 60
Douglas E. Scott ........ 49
George T. Singley, IIT .... 61
Theoren P. Smith, IIT . ... 31
Mark W.Sopp . ......... 40
Joseph P. Walkush ...... 54
John H. Warner, Jr. ...... 65

Position(s) with the company and prior business experience

Group President since February 2004. Mr. PeckJ has held various positions
with us since 1978, including serving as a Sector Vice President from 1994 to
February 2004.

Group President since February 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Prior served as
Chief Financial Officer and then President and |Chief Executive Officer of
LightPointe Communications, Inc. from 2000 until 2004,

|

Executive Vice President, Government Affairs, Communications and Support
Operations since February 200S. Mr. Punaro has held various positions with
us since 1997 including Sector Vice President|and Senior Vice President,
Director of Corporate Development. Mr. Punaro also served as the Staff
Director of the Senate Armed Services Committee and retired as a Major

General in the United States Marine Corps Reserjve.

Executive Vice President since December 2005. Mr. Roper served as
Corporate Executive Vice President from 2000 to 2005, Senior Vice
President from 1990 to 1999, Chief Financial (Dfﬁcer from 1990 to October
2000 and Executive Vice President from 1999 tcP 2000. Mr. Roper has served
as a director of VeriSign, Inc. since November 2003,

Secretary since July 2003, Senior Vice Presi(/ient since January 1997 and
General Counsel since 1992. Mr. Scott has held various positions with us
since 1987, including serving as a Corporate [Vice President from 1992 to

January 1997.

Group President since February 2004. Mr. Smgley has held various positions
with us since 1998, including serving as a Sector Vice President from 2001 to
February 2004 and Group Senior Vice Premdent from 2000 to 2001.

Group President since February 2005. Dr. Smith served as Sector Vice
President from July 2002 until February 2004 Jand Executive Vice President,
Federal Business from February 2004 until ffebruary 2005. From 2000 to
March 2002, Dr. Smith served as Global Chief Technology Officer at Cable
& Wireless, PLC and as President of Cable J‘& Wireless USA, Inc., which
filed for bankruptcy protection in December 2003. Dr. Smith also served as
Senior Vice President and Chief Technology [Officer at Road Runner, LLC
from 1999 1o 2000.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial|Officer since November 2005.
Mr. Sopp had served as Senior Vice Presider{lt, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer of Titan Corporation since April 2001, prior to which he had served
as a Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Titan Systems

Corporation, a subsidiary of Titan Corporation‘, since 1998.

Executive Vice President since July 2000 an}d a Director since April 1996.
Mr. Walkush has held various positions with us from 1976 to 1979 and since

1981, including serving as a Sector Vice Presihent from 1994 to 2000.

Executive Vice President since December 2005, Chief Administrative Officer
since December 2003, Corporate Executive Vice President from 1996 to
2005 and a Director since 1988. Dr. Warner thas held various positions with
us since 1973, including serving as Executive Vice President from 1989 to
1996.
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MARKET FOR THE COMPANY'’S STOCK, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
COMPANY PURCHASES OF ITS STOCK

The Limited Market

Since our inception, we have followed a policy of remaining essentially employee owned. As a result,
there has never been a general public market for any of our securities. In order to provide some liquidity for our
stockholders, however, we have historically maintained a limited secondary market, which we call the limited
market, through our wholly-owned broker-dealer subsidiary, Bull, Inc.

The limited market has permitted existing stockholders to offer for sale shares of Class A common stock
on predetermined days which we call a trade date. Historically, there have been four trade dates each year.
However, a scheduled trade date could be postponed or cancelled. When we announced our intention to conduct
a public offering in September 2005, we postponed a limited market trade originally scheduled for September
2005 to October 2005, and also stated at that time that we believed the October 2005 trade would be the last one
conducted before completion of the public offering. However, after the December 2005 postponement of the
special meeting of stockholders and the announced delay in our public offering schedule, we conducted a limited
market trade in January 2006.

As previously announced, we now plan to complete the public offering in the Fall of 2006, and a limited
market trade has been scheduled for June 30, 2006. If the public offering is completed on our current schedule,
the June 2006 limited market trade will be the last limited market trade. If, however, the public offering is
postponed, we intend to conduct a limited market trade at the same time as the retirement plans trades until the
public offering process recommences. In addition to trades currently scheduled for May 12, 2006 (retirement
plans only) and June 30, 2006 (retirement plans and limited market trades), a retirement plans trade has been
scheduled for October 27, 2006 and at least three additional dates will be announced at which a limited market
trade also may be held if the public offering is postponed.

In these trades, participants may offer to buy or sell shares in accordance with the terms of the plans. In
addition, we intend to conduct four scheduled trades directly between us and our retirement plans following
completion of the public offering in which participants may offer to buy or sell shares in accordance with the
terms of the plans. In all these retirement plans trades, we will have the right, but not the obligation, to buy the
net balance of shares offered by participants in our retirement plans. In addition, following the public offering,
our retirement plans would have the opportunity to convert shares of Class A preferred stock of SAIC, Inc. into
common stock of SAIC, Inc. and sell those shares into the public market to the extent permissible under the
transfer restrictions on the Class A preferred stock of SAIC, Inc.

All sales and purchases are made at the prevailing price of the Class A common stock determined by the
board of directors or its stock policy committee pursuant to the valuation process described below. All
participants who wish to participate in a particular trade must submit a trade request in the form of a limit order.
A limit order is a request to buy stock at or below the limit price specified by the person placing the order or a
request to sell stock at any price equal to or above the limit price specified. A limit order will not be processed if
the limit price is not satisfied by the price established by the board of directors unless the order is modified. A
participant may not submit both a buy limit order and a sell limit order on the same account for the same trade.

The purchase of Class A common stock in the limited market is currently restricted to:

+ current employees of SAIC and eligible subsidiaries who desire to purchase Class A common stock in
an amount that does not exceed a pre-approved limit established by the board of directors or a
designated committee of the board, currently $20,000

* current employees, consultants and non-employee directors of SAIC and eligible subsidiaries who have
been specifically approved by the board of directors or its designated committee or subcommittee to
purchase a specified number of shares which may exceed the pre-approved limit
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These employees, consultants, directors, trustees and agents are referred to a

other than these authorized buyers, is eligible to purchase Class A common stock in

The following shares of Class A common stock, with certain exceptions, m

market:

shares acquired through a vesting stock bonus that vested less than six mon

If the aggregate number of shares offered for sale in the limited market on
the aggregate number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers, offers

trustees or agents of the retirement and benefit plans of SAIC and its eligibl

shares acquired through an option exercise or a vested stock bonus less than

e subsidiaries

s authorized buyers. No one,
he limited market.

ay not be sold in the limited
six months prior to sale
ths prior to sale

any trade date is greater than
by stockholders to sell shares

of Class A common stock will be accepted on a pro-rata basis determined by dividing the total number of shares

under purchase orders by the total number of shares under sell orders.

We are currently authorized, but not obligated, to purchase shares of Class A

market on any trade date, but only if and to the extent that the number of shares oft
exceeds the number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers, and we
to make such purchases. However, the number of shares we may purchase in the

common stock in the limited
fered for sale by stockholders
, in our discretion, determine
limited market on any given

trade date is subject to legal and contractual restrictions. Under Delaware law, we may repurchase our shares
only out of available surplus. In addition, financial covenants under our credit agreement or agreements we enter
into in the future may restrict our ability to repurchase shares. In deciding whether to make such purchases, we
will consider a variety of factors, including our cash position and cash flows, investment and capital activities,
financial performance, financial covenants, the number of shares outstandillag and the amount of the
undersubscription in the market. We have purchased a significant amount of Class A common stock in the
limited market during recent periods. We purchased a total of 8,359,372 shares on|the trade dates in fiscal 2006
and a total of 9,331,128 shares on the trade dates in fiscal 2005. These purchases accounted for 64.4% and
75.4%, respectively, of the total shares purchased by all buyers in the limited market during fiscal 2006 and
2005. Our purchases balanced the number of shares offered for sale by stockholders with the number of shares
sought to be purchased by authorized buyers. We may not continue to purchase such excess shares in the future.
Accordingly, if the aggregate number of shares offered for sale exceeds the aggregate number of shares sought to
be purchased by authorized buyers, and we elect not to participate in a trade or otherwise limit our participation
in a trade, our stockholders may be unable to sell all the shares they desire to sell in the limited market. Because
no other market exists for our stock, our stockholders may be unable to sell all the shares they desire to sell. In
addition, if a limited market trade were undersubscribed and prorated or the liquid/'ty of our stock in the limited
market were otherwise impaired, the stock price, as set by the board of directors, could be adversely impacted

because the independent appraiser could apply or increase any liquidity discount used in valuing our stock.

During fiscal 2006 and 2005, the trustees of certain of our retirement aqd benefit plans purchased an
aggregate of 1,875,484 and 2,294,161 shares, respectively, in the limited market. These purchases accounted for

approximately 14.4% and 18.5% of the total shares purchased by all buyers in th

e limited market during fiscal

2006 and 2005, respectively. Such purchases may change in the future, depending on the levels of participation

in and contributions to such plans and the extent to which such contributions are

invested in Class A common

stock. In addition, the trustees of our retirement plans are not permitted to purchase shares of our Class A

common stock in the limited market unless the stock price established by the boar

good faith by the plan fiduciaries, in reliance on an appraisal by an independent a

value of the shares. The inability of the retirement plans to purchase shares in the |
impact the liquidity of our stock.

To the extent that purchases by the trustees of our retirement and benefit pla

us decrease or do not increase, the ability of stockholders to resell their shares in th
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adversely affected. Although all shares of Class A common stock offered for sale were sold in the limited market
on each trade date occurring during fiscal 2006 and 2003, a stockholder desiring to sell all or a portion of his or
her shares of our Class A common stock on any future trade date in the limited market may not be able to do so.

To the extent that the aggregate number of shares sought to be purchased by authorized buyers exceeds
the aggregate number of shares offered for sale by stockholders, we may, but are not obligated to, sell authorized
but unissued shares of Class A common stock in the limited market. In making this determination, we will
consider a variety of factors, including our cash position and cash flows, investment and capital activities,
financial performance, financial covenants, the number of shares outstanding and the amount of the over
subscription in the limited market. The final determination is not made before the trade date. In fiscal 2006 and
2005, we did not sell any shares of Class A common stock in the limited market as the number of shares sought
to be purchased by authorized buyers did not exceed the number of shares offered for sale by stockholders. To
the extent that we choose not to sell authorized but unissued shares of Class A common stock in the limited
market, the ability of individuals to purchase shares in the limited market may be adversely affected. We cannot
assure our stockholders that they will be able to buy shares of our Class A common stock on any future trade date
in the limited market.

Price Determination of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

Valuation Process

Our board of directors has historically determined the price of the Class A common stock using the
valuation process described below. In establishing the stock price, the board of directors considers a broad range
of valuation data and financial information, including analysis provided by Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin
Financial Advisors, Inc., or HLHZ, our independent appraisal firm. The board also considers valuation data and
financial information relating to publicly traded companies considered by our appraiser to be comparable to
SAIC or relevant to the valuation of our stock. The valuation process includes the valuation formula set forth
below, which has an earnings component and an equity component and includes a variable called the market
factor. After considering the analysis of the independent appraisal firm and other valuation data and information,
the board of directors sets the market factor at the value that causes the formula to yield a stock price that the
board believes represents a fair market value for the Class A common stock within a broad range of financial
criteria. The stock price and market factor, as determined by the board of directors, remain in effect until
subsequently changed by the board of directors or its designated committee.

The Class A common stock is traded in the limited market maintained by Bull, Inc. at the stock price
determined by the board of directors. In accordance with our certificate of incorporation, the price of the Class B
common stock is equal to 20 times the stock price applicable to the Class A common stock.

Role of Appraiser

In conjunction with the board of directors’ valuation process, HLHZ performs an appraisal of our Class A
common stock using market multiple analysis of comparable public companies as part of its methodology to
value SAIC as a whole and major business areas of SAIC.

In its appraisal of our stock, HLHZ may apply, and from time to time has applied, a liquidity discount
based on its assessment of the liquidity provided by the limited market. HLHZ provides substantial valuation
data and analysis, which the board relies upon, among other factors, in establishing the stock price. The data and
analysis include the reasonable range of fair market value established by the appraisers. In establishing the range
of fair market value, the appraiser considers, among other things, the volatility of the stock prices and implied
volatility of stock options of the comparable companies and any significant publicly traded securities that we
may own. After the board has established the stock price, HLHZ reviews the price and provides an opinion letter
to the board of directors and the SAIC retirement plans committee as to whether the stock price appears to reflect
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the fair market value of our stock. The trustees of our retirement plans are not permi
Class A common stock unless the stock price established by the board of directors i
the plan fiduciaries, in reliance on an appraisal by an independent appraiser, amon
market value of the shares. If the trustees of our retirement plans are not permitt‘
Class A common stock, the liquidity of our stock and our stock price would be adve

Stock Price Formula
The following formula is used in the valuation method:
The price per share is equal to the sum of

(1) a fraction, the numerator of which is our stockholders’ equity at
immediately preceding the date on which a price determination is to occur, a

tted to purchase shares of our
s determined in good faith by
g other factors, to be the fair
ed to purchase shares of our
rsely impacted.

the end of the fiscal quarter
Jjusted to reflect the value of

our publicly traded equity securities classified as investments in marketable securities, as well as the profit

or loss impact, if any, on stockholders’ equity arising from investment activities, non-recurring gains or

losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common stock or similar transactions closed, as of the valuation

date (“E”) and the denominator of which is the number of outstanding comm
equivalents at the end of such fiscal quarter (“W,,”) and

(2) a fraction, the numerator of which is 5.66 multiplied by the market fac

multiplied by our operating income for the four fiscal quarters imme
determination, net of taxes, excluding investment activities, losses on
non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary common

including our equity in the income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates and the 1

loss of consolidated subsidiaries (“P”), and the denominator of which is the
outstanding common shares and common share equivalents for those four-fis
computing diluted earnings per share (“W”).

The formula, shown as an equation, is as follows:
E

Stock Price = 5.66

‘on shares and common share

tor (“M” or “market factor”),
diately preceding the price
impaired intangible assets,
stock and similar items, and
minority interest in income or
weighted average number of
cal quarters, as used by us in

MP

W

The number of outstanding common shares and common ‘share equival
formula assumes that each share of Class B common stock is converted into 20 shar

The board of directors first used a valuation formula in establishing the p

stock in 1972. The valuation formula has periodically been modified ever since. T

first added to the formula in 1973. The 5.66 factor was added to the formula in 19

price generated by the formula to reflect a fair market value of the Class A commo

directors, with the assistance of an outside appraisal firm, began its current practic

W

ents described above in the
es of Class A common stock.

rice of the Class A common
he market factor concept was
76 as a constant to cause the
n stock. In 1984, the board of

F of establishing the value of

the market factor to reflect the broad range of business, financial and market forces that also affect the fair

market value of the Class A common stock. In 2001, the board of directors approved the modifications of the

definitions of the “E” or the stockholders’ equity component and “P” or the earnin

gs component of the formula.

Before approving these changes to the formula, the board of directors consulted with HLHZ and then determined

that these definitional changes were appropriate and that our valuation process wou

market value of the Class A common stock within a broad range of financial criteria.
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Other Valuation Considerations

. In determining the price of the Class A common stock, the board of directors considers many relevant
factors, including:

* valuation input from HLHZ

» the performance of the general securities markets and relevant industry groups
» our historical financial performance versus comparable public companies

* the prospects for our future performance

» the value of our investments

* general economic conditions

+ general capital market considerations

» other factors the board of directors deems appropriate

Although orders to buy or sell shares of Class A common stock in the limited market must be entered
prior to the board’s determination of the stock price, this information is not made available to the board of
directors and is not a consideration in determining the price. However, if we elect not to purchase shares in the
limited market to fully balance an undersubscribed trade, this could impact both the current and subsequent
valuations of our stock.

Review of Stock Price

Our board of directors has historically reviewed the stock price at least four times each year, generally
during its regularly scheduled board meetings, approximately one week before the four predetermined trade
dates. Due to the uncertainty of the completion date of the proposed public offering, the limited market trades
and retirement plan transactions have not occurred on a regular basis and the stock price has only been reviewed
by the board of directors as necessary to support such trades. When a trade does occur, the board of directors
reviews the stock price during the period between a board meecting and the trade date to determine whether the
stock price continues to represent a fair market value, and if necessary, modifies the price. The board of directors
has authorized its stock policy committee to conduct this review, and, in some instances, the stock policy
committee has conducted this review.

Modification of Valuation Process

The board of directors has broad discretion to modify the valuation process. However, the board of
directors does not anticipate changing the valuation process unless:

* achange in the formula or any other aspect of the valuation process used to value the Class A common
stock is required under applicable law

* in the good faith exercise of its fiduciary duties and after consultation with our independent accountants
as to whether the change would result in a charge to earnings upon the sale of Class A common stock,
the board of directors, including a majority of the directors who are not our employees, determines that
the valuation process no longer results in a fair market value for the Class A common stock

* in the good faith exercise of its fiduciary duties, the board of directors, including a majority of directors
who are not our employees, after consulting with an independent appraisal firm, determines that a
change in the formula or any other aspect of the valuation process is appropriate and that the stock price
established by the board of directors through the modified valuation process reflects a fair market value
of the Class A common stock
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Historical Stock Prices

The following table sets forth information concerning the stock price for the Class A common stock, the

applicable price for the Class B common stock and each of the variables contained|in the formula, including the
market factor, in effect for the periods beginning on the dates indicated. The Class A common stock has been

rounded to the nearest penny. There can be no assurance that the Class A common stock or the Class B common

stock will in the future provide returns comparable to historical returns or that the price will not decline.

The values of the variables of the stock price formula presented in the following table reflect the financial

. . . ‘ -
data that existed at the time of each stock price determination and have not been adjusted to reflect the
restatement of our consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2003, 2004 and the first quarter of fiscal 2005 or

Telcordia discontinued operations.

Price Price
“E” or “W” or Per Share Per Share
Adjusted - “P”or Weighted of Class A of Class B Percentage

Market Stockholders’ “W,” or Shares Adjusted Avg. Shares | Common Common Price

Date Factor  Equity(1) Outstanding(2) Earnings(3) Outstanding(4)| Stock Stock  Change(5)
April 16,2004 .......... 230 $2,190,267,000 191,418,123  $375,064,000 188,561,115 $37.34  $746.80 2.2%
July 16,2004 ........... 220 $2,261,422,000 191,943,098 $386,692,000 188,653,945 $37.31 $746.20 0.)%
October 8,2004 ......... 230  $2,283,435,000 189,671,084 $378,169,000 188,637,287 $38.14 $762.80 2.2%
January 14,2005 ........ 2.50  $2,304,706,000 188,204,746  $376,716,000 188,302,652 $40.55 $811.00 6.3%
April 8,2005 ........... 2.80 $2,891.459,000 186,780,832 $317,202,000 187,634,157 $42.27 $845.40 4.2%
June 10,2005 ........... 290 $2,800,164,000 183,331,888  $300,756,000 186,096,747 $41.80  $836.00 (1.1)%
October 7,2005 ......... 2.80 $2,834,277,000 181,337,258  $322,016,000 183,804,842 $43.39  $867.80 3.8%
December 23,2005 ...... 290 $2,838,172,000 179,685,724 $311,605,000 181,872,078 $43.92  $878.40 1.2%
January 6,2006 ......... 290 $2,838,178,000 179,685,724  $311,605,000 181,872,078 $43.92  $878.40 0%
(1) “E” is our stockholders’ equity at the end of the fiscal quarter immediately preceding the date on which a

2

3

“)

(5)

price determination is to occur, adjusted to reflect the value of publicly traded|equity securities classified as
investments in marketable securities, as well as the profit or loss impact, if|any, on stockholders’ equity
arising from investment activities, non-recurring gains or losses on sales of business units, subsidiary
common stock, or similar transactions closed, as of the valuation date.

“W,” is the number of outstanding common shares and common share equivalents at the end of the fiscal
quarter immediately preceding the date on which a price determination is to occur.

“P” is our operating income for the four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the price determination, net
of taxes, excluding investment activities, losses on impaired intangible assets, non-recurring gains or losses
on sales of business units, subsidiary common stock and similar items, and including our equity in the

income or loss of unconsolidated affiliates and the minority interest in income or loss of consolidated

subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of these items on a pre-tax basis is disclosed as “segment operating
income” in our consolidated quarterly and annual financial statements filed wi‘}th the SEC. The operations of
our former subsidiary, Telcordia Technologies, Inc. were classified as dlscontmued operations as of
January 31, 2005 and are no longer reflected in operating income. Begmmng with the April 8, 2005 stock
price determination, the “P” variable of the formula no longer includes|the operations of Telcordia
Technologies, Inc. The amounts shown for “P” prior to April 8, 2005 have not been adjusted to reflect the

. . . . . \
discontinued operations classification.

“W” is the weighted average number of outstanding common shares and common share equivalents for the
four fiscal quarters immediately preceding the price determination, as used by us in computing diluted
earnings per share.

Value shown represents the percentage change in the price per share of Class A common stock from the
prior valuation.
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Holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

As of May 17, 2006, there were 39,330 holders of record of Class A common stock and 189 holders of
record of Class B common stock. Substantially all of the Class A common stock and the Class B common stock
is owned of record or beneficially by our current and former employees, directors and consultants and their
respective family members and by our various employee benefit plans.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. However, in conjunction with
the proposed public offering, the board of directors intends to declare a special dividend that would be paid to the
holders of our common stock as of a record date that would be set by the board of directors. Payment would be
conditioned upon completion of the public offering and it is anticipated that the dividend would be paid within
25 days after the completion of the public offering. The special dividend is expected to range from approximately
$8 to $10 per share of the Class A common stock and from approximately $160 to $200 per share of the Class B
common stock. The exact amount of the proposed special dividend and any future determination to pay cash
dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on available cash, estimated cash

needs, earnings, financial condition, operating results, capital requirements, applicable contractual restrictions

and other factors our board of directors deems relevant.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

As of April 21, 2006, there were 517,141 shares of our Class A common stock outstanding which were
issued by us to non-affiliates since February 1, 2005 in transactions that were not registered under the Securities
Act. These shares are considered restricted securities (as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities
Act) and, subject to any contractual restrictions and our right of first refusal, may become eligible for resale
under Rule 144(k) as follows:

Date Holding Period Expires Number of Class A Shares
August 8,2006 ... 83,209
October 6, 20006 ... .ot it e e e 43,586
May 11, 2007 . 390,346

Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents repurchases of our common stock for the quarter ended January 31, 2006:

@
Maximum Number
() (or Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value) of

(a) Shares Purchased as  Shares that May
Total Number of (b) Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Shares Average Price  Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Period Purchased®®  Paid per Share Programs Programs
November 1, 2005 — November 30, 2005 .. 367,076 $43.39 -— —
December 1, 2005 — December 31,2005 ... 2,631,689 43.82 — —
January 1, 2006 — January 31,2006 ....... 3,754,227 4392 — —
Total ... e 6,752,992 $43.85 — —
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(1) Includes shares purchased by SAIC or affiliated purchasers as follows:

November |December January

Upon surrender by stockholders of previously owned
shares in payment of the exercise price of non-qualified
stockoptions . . ... L 320,186 190,229 746,063

From former employees, directors, consultants or other
entities pursuant to SAIC’s right of repurchase upon
termination of affiliation as set forth in its Certificate
of Incorporation or pursuant to SAIC’s contractual

rightof repurchase .. ........ ... .. ... ... ...... 42,716 — —
In the limited market:

by SAIC . ... e — — 2,140,881

by the trustees of SAIC’s retirement plans ........ — — 139,174

From SAIC’s retirement plans . ..................... — 11,972,034 487,337

In privately negotiated transactions .................. 4,174 469,426 240,772

Total .................. e 367,076 2,631,689 3,754,227

(2) Does not include (i) shares purchased by the agent of SAIC’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan for the benefit
of the plan’s participants, (ii) shares issued directly to the trusts of SAI‘\C’s retirement plans or SAIC’s
non-qualified stock plans for the benefit of the plans’ participants, (iii) shares forfeited to SAIC without the
payment of any consideration to the holder or (iv) newly issued shares acquired by SAIC in connection with
employee exercise of non-qualified stock options to satisfy employees statutory tax withholding obligations

related to the options.
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Executive Officers*

Chief Executive Offiééfénd Chairman of the Board

K.C: Dahlberg*
|
Group Presidents Executive Vice Presidents Senior Vice Presidents ;
D.H. Alderson* Strategic Projects Treasurer ‘
.E. .P. Fisher* 1.
L] Peck® T.E. Darcy . S.P. Fisher |
L.B. Prior, IIT* Chief Engineering and Controller '
. ) Technology Officer J.R. Hartley*
G.T. Singley, TIT* D.H. Foley*
T.P. Smith, III* Commercial and
Government Affairs, International
Communications, and ' C.F. Koontz i
Support Operations ' !
A.L. Punaro General Counsel and
Secretary
Strategic Investments D.E. Scott*

W.A. Roper, Jr.*
Corporate Business |

Chief Financial Officer Development 1
M.W. Sopp* P.W. Sullivan ‘
Strategic Initiatives Human Resources

J.P. Walkrush* B.L. Theule

Chief Administrative Officer
J.H. Warner, Jr.*

* Executive officers designated by the Board of Directors in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Board of Directors

+K.C. Dahlberg W.H. Demisch ' J.A. Drummond D.H. Foley

CEOQO and Chairman of Financial Consultant Vice Chairman, BeliSouth Executive Vice President,
the Board Corp. (Ret) SAIC

JJ. Hamre A K. Jones H.M]J. Kraemer, Jr. C.B. Malone

CEO and President, University Professor, Former Chairman, President, Financial &
Center for Strategic & Computer Sciences, University President and Chief Management Consulting Inc.
International Studies of Virgima Executive Officer, Baxter

International, Inc.

E.J. Sanderson, Jr. J. P Walkush - JH. Warner, Jr. A T.Young

Retired Oracle Corporation Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President,
Executive SAIC SAIC Lockheed Martin Corp. (Ret.)

Tive Board Mewmbers ~ TomYoung and John Warner — received special recognition for their contributions to the SAIC Board of
Directors. M. Young won a 2005 Outstanding Director Award from the prestigious Outstanding Directors Institute. Winners
were selected for “demonstrating courage, diligence and leadership in the boardroom,” and for being clearly aligned with interests of
shareholders. Dr. Warner won a 2006 Divector of the Year award from the Corporate Directors Forum in San Diego. As SAIC’s
longest serving current board member, Dr. Warner received the award for demonstrating leadership during times of major transition.
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